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Member Preface

INTRODUCTION TO THE 2019/20 STATEMENT OF
ACCOUNTS BY CABINET MEMBER FOR FINANCE
PROPERTY AND REGENERATION, COUNCILLOR
MELVYN CAPLAN

The 2019/20financial year proved a challenging, but
successful year withalot of change as the Council
appointed a new leader and cabinetin January 2020.
The Covid-19 pandemicimpacted at the very end of
the year and therefore the full impact of this is not
reflected in these statement of accounts. However,
the Council are expecting significant challengesin the
year ahead as it deals with the on-going crisis.

The Council have also updated its City for All priorities
to focus on our vibrant communities, beingcleaner
and greener environmentand a smart city

Headlines of our achievements in the year include:

e Remainingon courseto build morethan 1,850
new affordable homes by 2023.

e Funded 106 local organisations, throughthe
MyWestminster Fund, to the tune of £600,000
for local projects to benefit their communities

e Improved our planning system to make it more
transparentand easier forresidents to use,
includingintroducing live video streaming of our
planning committees

e Created 110 apprenticeshipopportunities with
Westminster-based employers

¢ Inspired 800young peopleto becomeinterested
inthe creativeindustries through our City Lions
programme, whichis particularly targeted at
thosefrom underprivileged backgroundsin
addition to the above, for 2019/20 we have seta
deliverable budget which includes circa £36m of
financial savings through efficiency programmes
and income generationactivities, with minimal
impactto frontlineservices.

In 2020 we took the tough decisionto increase
counciltaxby 1.43%, in line with inflation, in addition
to the 2% precept for adult social care. This increase
will help to deliver services forall of our residents.
However, our Band D council tax (the average for
most people) remains the lowestin the country.

COUNCILLOR MELVYN CAPLAN, CABINET MEMBER
FOR FINANCE, PROPERTY AND REGENERATION
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Annual Governance Statement 2019/20

INTRODUCTION

KEY ELEMENTS OF THE COUNCIL'S GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

Local authorities are responsible for ensuring that:

e businessisconducted in accordance
with all relevant laws and regulations o

e public money is safeguardedand
properly accounted for

e resourcesareused economically,
efficiently and effectively to deliver
agreed priorities and benefit local
people.

The CIPFA/SoLACE DeliveringGood Governancein

Local Government Framework (2016) also expects

local authorities to putin place proper governance
arrangements to ensure that these responsibilities
are being met.

The Council’sAuditand Performance Committee
reviews governance arrangements, risk registers
and quarterly performance reports. Their roleisto
recommend improvements or interventionsif
expected performanceis not beingachieved, or if
gapsin currentarrangements have been identified.

Council, Cabinet and Leader

Provide leadership,
develop and set policy

Develop and set policy
to maintain the City’s
global standing

Uphold Codes of
Corporate Governance

and expected standards
of behaviour

Supportthe City’s
diverse communities

and distinctive
neighbourhoods

Executive Leadership Team (ELT)

Key elements of the governance framework at Westminster City Council are:

Decision making

All meetings are held
in public

Scrutiny committees
review policy and can
challenge Council
decisions

Cabinet members
cannotscrutinize their
own decisions

All decisions and
minutes of meetings are
recordedon the Council
website

Risk management

Risk registers identify
operationaland
strategic risksand
explain how these
arebeingaddressed
Key risks are considered
by ELT and Auditand
Performance
Committee

Officers monitor
activities of group
companies and key
partnerships

Head of Paid Service s the Chief Executive who is responsible for all Council staffand for leading an
effective corporate managementteam (ELT)]

Executive Director of Finance and Resources is the Council's s.151 Officer and is responsible for
safeguarding the Council’s financial positionand ensuring value for money.

Monitoring Officeris the Council’s Director of Law who with the Chief Executiveis responsible

for ensuringlegality and promoting high standards of public conduct
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Annual Governance Statement (continued)

HOW WE COMPLY WITH THE CIPFA/SOLACE
FRAMEWORK

The Council has arrangements in place to meet all
relevantrequirementsof the CIPFA/Solace
Framework.The 7 “core principles” underpinning the
Framework areset out below together with a
summary of new or enhanced arrangements
introduced in 2019/20.

T
T T o
y \\ Engage with \|
I:\Behave with integrity | (\ stakeholders
S \\‘x.._ __r_/, @
Demonstrate \ "‘-\_ a '“'*m\‘
| transparency and ) Y Y ‘.
. accountability The I;'Deﬁne outcomes |
e R P . //,.
Framework e
. ]
e ./ |
(" Manage risks and 5 | Ensure planned
\_ performance effectively / outcomes are
~ 4 achieved
< -

Develop capacity,
apability and leadershi

e

PRINCIPLEA
Behaving with integrity, and
respecting the rule of law

PRINCIPLEB

Ensuring open and
comprehensive
stakeholderengagement

PRINCIPLESCANDD
Defining, optimisingand
achieving outcomes

PRINCIPLEE

Developing capacityand
capability

PRINCIPLEF
Managing risks and
performance

PRINCIPLEG
Implementing transparent
decision making, reporting,
and accountability

The Council has a robust Code of Corporate Governancefor elected members
and officers, this was updated and revised for 2019/20. Specific guidance for
Members involvedin planning matters was also revised during the year.
Another key change has been the appointment of Safecall as an
independent whistleblowing providerin 2019/20.

The Open Forumis a new way for residents and community
organisations to exchangeideas, collaborate, and let the Council know
their views by participationin:

. 3 public meetings each year

. an onlinecommunity and new community knowledge bank.

A key changein 2019/20 has been the development of the Corporate
Change Programme Boardto ensurethat all new initiatives are
strategically consistent, financially viable and delivered in line with Council
plans. This maximises value for money and avoids potential duplication or
waste.

The Council has continuedto develop the capacity and capability of its staff
by:

. launching an innovative Personal Development framework

. implementing new parental leave and transitioning at work
policies

. rolling out new technologythat supports agile working.

. introducing new HR systems so that teams can be managed in a

much more effective way.

2019/20 has seen significantimprovements to IT governance
arrangements and Data Protection arrangements. Otherimprovements
include:

. better option appraisal and financial management processes for
capital schemes
. a corporate Performance Dashboard.

All Committee meetings opentothe publicare now broadcast live onthe
Council website. Smarter useof Business Intelligence technology is streamlining
Council processes,improving accessibility to data and supporting evidence-
based decision making.
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Annual Governance Statement (continued)

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS
The Council uses several ways to review assess the effectivenessof governance arrangements, as set out below:
Inspections and assessments

Children’s Services across the Council have been given a clean sweep of outstanding ratings by Ofsted . Inspectors
highlighted that:

e excellentservices for vulnerable children resultin long-term positive changes for children and families
e carlyinterventionand a sensible approach means that more childrencan remainsafely with their families.

e whenchildren doneed to comeinto care, the service does this at the right time, sensitively and mirroringwhat
birth families provide

Assurances from Internal and External Audit

The annual reportand opinion of the Head of Internal Audit for 2019/20 states that the Council’s internal control

environment and systems of internal control in the areas audited were adequate except for the following areas

Issues Identified for 2019/20 Planned Action

Improvements to controls and clarity on roles and Improvements to be considered as part of a wider review of Adult Social
responsibilities in respect of Adult Social Care finances. Care which is expected to report during 2020.

Housing complaints are not fully integrated with corporate Improvements will integrate Housing complaints within corporate
systems and reporting. management and reporting.

The Council’sexternal auditor, Grant Thornton, provides assurance on the accuracy of the year -end Statement of Accounts
and theoverall adequacy of arrangements for securing and improving value for money. The most recent Audit Letter,
issued in August 2019, confirmed that they had been able to give an unqualified audit opinionin respect of the Council’s
2018/19 Statement of Accounts and to issue an unqualified opinion in respect of value for money, subject to some
recommendations whichare detailed in the 2018/19 audit findings report.
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Annual Governance Statement (continued)

Self-assessment and review of key performance indicators

The Council’sFinance Team work with Internal Audit to confirm that expected
governancearrangements have been in place throughout the year. Management
Assurance Statements, signed by senior officers, also confirm that Codes of Conduct,
Financial Regulationsand other corporate processes have operated as expected.

The Council uses several key outcome indicatorsto confirm the adequacy of
governance arrangements:

Key performance indicators

Outcomes 2019/20

Reports by s151 or Monitoring Officer

Proven frauds by councillors or members of
staff

Ombudsman referrals 2018/19
Objections from local electors
Internal audit reports

Group activities

Complaints about elected members

None issued

None in 2019/20

50% (9) of referrals upheld (national average 58%)
None in 2019/20

2 high risk areas identified as shown above

No governance issues to address in 2019/20

One complaint (dealt with by informal resolution)
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Annual Governance Statement (continued)

KEY GOVERNANCE ISSUES

Last year’s Annual Governance Report highlighted three key areas for improvement. The table below sets out action taken to address these issues during 2019/20:

Issues Identified in 2018/19 Actions to date

A number of shared service (s113) areas transitioned from a Tri-Borough to Successful s113 arrangements have been identified and will remain. Assurance reviews of services which transitioned from Tri-
a bi-borough arrangement. Borough to bi-borough or in-house arrangements will continue to take place to ensure these are delivering expected outcomes.
The housing contract with City West homes was terminated with effect Social housing has been brought back under Council control with responsibilities assigned to Council committees, Executive
from 1 April 2019. Directors and Cabinet Members in line with existing constitutional arrangements. Work has been completed to incorporate

these new functions into existing corporate governance arrangements, improve service delivery and establish regular
engagement with council tenants.

Need to ensure compliance with Freedom of Information and Subject Improvements have been identified and addressed including, reviewing and updating procedures, accurate recording of
Access Requests. requests and timely response to enquiries. More detailed information will be included in departmental registers in 2020/21.

Currently thekey issueis COVID-19. The Council is workingclosely with central government and the health service to support businesses and residents across the City as
follows:

e Supportingbusinesses - Rate relief coupled with grants for businesses in the retail, hospitality or leisure sector have to date helped around 4,500 businesses

e Supportingresidents —the Council is making contact with vulnerable residents andtenants and is workingwith partners to proactively support rough sleepers.
Residents who have serious underlying health conditions have been identified andthere are processesin place to support this highly vulnerable group

e Volunteering opportunities —an interactive map on the Council website provides details of local organisations that are assisting residents through COVID-19, the kinds
of supportthey offer, and how to getin touch

Virtual Council meetings are taking place to maintain openand transparent decision makingwhilst observing social distancing. COVID-19 pages on the Council website are
updated daily and provide further information see https://www.westminster.gov.uk/coronavirus
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Annual Governance Statement (continued)

Other key strategic risks for2019/20 have been identified as follows:

Issues Identified for 2019/20 (from risk register)

Planned Response

The impact of Brexit on Council services and communities across Westminster

A significant incident occurring in Westminster (e.g. weather event, fire,
terror attack, etc.)

Providing affordable housing remains a key issue despite a number of
successful initiatives to date

The Brexit Strategy Board has established a series of contingency plans and there is ongoing liaison with the London Resilience
Forum, Government departments and other local authorities to provide joint solutions for any problems caused by Brexit.

Plans are in place to safeguard business continuity and respond to major incidents. Learning outcomes from previous major
incidents are used to inform future plans.

To accelerate capacity the Council has set up Westminster Housing Investments Limited to work in partnership with the
private sector and deliver a substantial affordable housing programme.
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Annual Governance Statement (continued)

CONCLUSION

The Councilis satisfied that appropriate governance arrangements have been maintained in 2019/20. It recognises however that these arrangements are designedonly to
manage risk down to areasonablelevel and cannot provide absolute assurance that the Council willsuccessfully deliver all o fits policies, aims and objectives.

We remain committed to maintaining and where possibleimproving these arrangements, by:

e Addressingissuesidentified by Internal Audit
e  Focussingon key risks andareas for improvement
e Continuingregular, open and transparent engagement with local people.

Cllr Rachael Robathan Stuart Love

Leader of Westminster City Council Chief Executive of Westminster City Council
ot Ga et

24th Novemeber 2020 24" Novemeber 2020
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report

WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL
OVERVIEW AND EXTERNAL
ENVIRONMENT

1. THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER

Westminster is the UK’s political and cultural centre,
containing world-renowned theatres, restaurants,
hotels and entertainment. Businesses in the city
generatearound £54bnof the UK’s economicoutput,
morethan any other single local authority area.
Westminster is a unique place, hometo Monarchy,
Government, almost 11,000 listed buildings as well as
the West End and Soho, two of the most creative and
exciting locations in the world. Westminster is also
hometo over a quarter of a million people, livingin
distinctive and well-known neighbourhoods, which
areanimportant part of this great city. Westminster
is seen as an affluent place, butitalso faces significant
challenges: responding to a highly mobile population,
tackling wealth and other inequalities, managing
increasing demandfor services and now dealing with
the impact of a global pandemic. Approximately 1
million daytime visitors come into Westminster every
day, and whilst bringing significant economic benefit,
this level of daily movement places a strain on the
City’sinfrastructure, environmentand resources.

2. COVID-19 PANDEMIC

The Covid-19 pandemichas had a considerable
impact on the Council. The Government’s lockdown,
announcedon 23rd March 2020, has meant that
many of the businesses at the heart of the West End
have been forced to close — significantly impacting on

the local economy, which in turnimpacts on the
Council’scommercial income. Furthermore, the
Council has had to put considerable resources into
ensuring thatrough sleepers are safe during this
period and thatthe mostvulnerablein our
community are caredfor. This comes with additional
costpressures.

Financial Impact

These additional costs have nothad a dramatic
impacton thefinancial outturnfor 2019/20as the
pandemic only startedto make a notableimpacton
the public’sand businesses’ behaviour in the last two
weeks of March. However, the true scale of its impact
on the Council’s finances will be felt during 2020/21.
The Council is expectingsubstantial losses across
many of its largest streams of commercial income.
These include parking, commercial waste, licensing
fees, registrars and planning fees. As with any
recession, investmentincomeis anticipated to reduce
which will create further pressures on the Council’s
finances. On the expenditure front some of the key
areas of additional pressure will include
accommodation andsupport for roughsleepers,
temporary mortuary costsand additional costsin
supportingour mostvulnerable adults and children—
some of whom may not have required our support
previously.

It is difficult to quantifytheimpact of Covid-19 at this
stage with any certainty, butthefinancial pressure on
the Council willbe substantial— even after the
Government’s emergency Covid-19 funding forlocal
authoritiesis taken into account. Due to the Council’s
reliance on commercialincome and fees and charges

and consequentlyits exposure to the economic cycle,
the Council has soughtin recent years to buildup the
general fund balance to ensure the Council is
financiallyresilientin a recession. The Council is
thereforein a position to draw upon its general fund
reserve balancein 2020/21 to balanceits budget. This
is similar to the approach the Counciltook during the
financial crisis before it then proceeded to build back
reserves over the subsequent decade.

Moving forward, the Council will reset its Medium
Term Financial Plan (MTFP) in recognition of the
impact of the pandemic and the Council’s strategic
objectives. The Covid-19 crisis has meant that the
Council has had to review what its most critical
servicesareand whicharerequired to still be
operational even during a global pandemic. The
changing environmentand “new normal” in whichwe
arelikely to find ourselves will require the Council to
review the services it provides, its delivery models
and the outcomes thatare of the highest priority. This
will also requirethe Council to review the structural
position of its budget and how that needs to change
going forward.

Summary

The coronaviruspandemic has had a profoundimpact
on all aspects of lifein Westminster. Through 2020/21
the Council willadopt a pro-active evidence-led
approachto ensurethatitresponds to the emerging
needs of residents and businesses. Anticipated
impacts for exampleinclude an increased need for
employment services, homelessness prevention,
mental health and business support services.
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

3. OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENT
FUNDING ISSUES

Fair Funding Review and Business Rates Retention

The government have announced that the Fair
Funding Review (FFR) and Business Rates Retention
(BRR) will notbeimplemented in April 2021 as
originally planned. Council officers will continue to
work with the Government on informingthe
approachto funding forthe nextfinancial yearand
beyond.

4. CITY FOR ALL

In March of this year the Council refreshed its City for
All Strategy to align it to the Council’s key objectives
in an ever-changingexternal environment. The three
pillars of the Council’s City for All programme of
activity are:

e Greenerand Cleaner: Tackling the climate
emergency to create a better place now and to
safeguard our city for future generations.

e Vibrant Communities: Making the most of the
opportunitiesin the City, supporting the
economic recovery of businesses and well-
being of residents, and building much needed
affordable housing.

e Smart City: Using cutting edge technology to
transform council services and improve
peoples’ lives.

The Council willbe reviewingagreed City for All
commitments for 2020/21 in the light of the
pandemic in orderto respond to the changing needs

fromresidents and businesses as a clearer picture of
this emerges.

(AN

Gerald Almeroth
Executive Director — Finance and Resources
Section 151 Officer

Westminster City Council

24t Novemeber 2020
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About the City

8.3 square miles encompassing
11,000 listed buildings and structures
including the Westminster World
Heritage Site

More than 150 languages
are spoken in
Westminster's schools

Home to Government, the Royal Family
and 255,000 residents including
45,000 young people

A
e | J”“
k 15 5
) 51,400 businesses, L
% generating £2.2bn of business d
rates

715,000 jobs

/,
/

Highest economic output of any local authority
at £53.6bn per annum
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About the Council

Delivered over

600 new affordable

homes since 2017 — and we are

on track to deliver more than 1,850 by
2023

Raised over £1m through

the voluntary Community Contribution
Fund for local organisations to spend on
tackling rough sleeping and helping
socially isolated residents and young
people

Overall resident satisfaction
with the council at a record

high of 880/0

86% of residents said that

different communities in Westminster
get on well together

G

in
youth services which includes funds for
five youth hubs and 17 youth projects

Children's Services judged
“outstanding” vy ofsted,
one of only two in the country

Declared a climate emergency,
signalling our intention to become a

carbon neutral city by
2040

E|

0oooo
Uoood
UOOCC
UOOCC
UOOOC
UOOCC
Uooc

supported OV EF 1,000

unemployed residents into work

Upgraded 745 empty council

houses to the best standard, and
designed to be dementia friendly,
with more planned this year

Collected OVEr £71m in

Community Infrastructure Levy
charges to improve infrastructure for
residents including schools, green
spaces, community centres and roads|
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

WESTMINSTER CITY COUNCIL
GOVERNANCE

Westminster City Councilis abroad and complex
organisation. Policies are directed bythe political
leadership (Leader and Cabinet) and implemented by
the Executive Leadership Team (ELT).

5. POLITICAL STRUCTURE IN 2019/20

The Councilis made up of 60 councillors for 20 wards.

The political make-up of the Council during 2019/20
was:

e Conservative Party —41councillors
e labourParty—19councillors

The Council elected a new leader in January 2020 —
Cllr Rachael Robathan, whosubsequentlyappointed
Cabinet Members for variousportfolios andthe
delegation of executive functions.

The Council has a statutorydutyto setabalanced
budget and this underwent scrutinyvia the Budget
and Performance Task Groupin January 2020.
Thereafter the Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan,
Capital Strategy, HRABusiness Plan and Treasury
Management Strategy were all approved by Full
Council in March 2020.

6. CHIEF OFFICER STRUCTURE

Councillorsare supported by ELT, which is headed by
the Council’s Chief Executive, Stuart Love. ELT are
responsible forthe overall management of the
Council, for setting and monitoring overall direction
and ensuring high performancein the delivery of
council services. Including the Chief Executive, ELT is

made up of eight members, includingthe Bi-Borough
Executive Director for Adults, Bi-Borough Executive
Director for Children’s and Bi-Borough Director of
Law. These officers carryout their roles forboth
Westminster and the Royal Borough of Kensington
and Chelsea.
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

7.2019/20 FINANCIAL PLANNING

A netbudgetof £181mfor 2019/20was approved by Cabinetand Full Councilin
February and March2019. This included £35.8m of savings througha combination of
financing, commercial, transformation and efficiency activities. Councillors also
agreed a2.1%increasein Council Taxand 2% increase for the Adult Social Care
Precept. The 2019/20 outturn position is within 1% of the overall budget — an
underspend of £530k. This is reflective of strong financialmanagement througha
monthly budget monitoring and challenge process which ensures that budget
managers and directors are held accountable for variances to budgets, with monthly
budget monitoring reports being submitted to ELT and Cabinet members and
published quarterly through the Audit and Performance Committee. The 2019/20
budget allocations are outlined below:

2019/20 Budget Allocations to Services

8. MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN: 2020/21 TO 2022/23

The Council has moved towards a three-year Medium-Term Financial Plan (MTFP)
for 2020/21 onwards. This will further enhance the Council’s financial planning and
ensure strategic and operational decisions are based upon a robust understanding of
the Council’s medium-term financialresources. The Council’smedium-term financial
position, as reportedto Council in early March, is outlined below:

2020/21 2021/22 2022/23  Total

Eefgeit EE £'m £'m £'m £'m

Core Funding Changes 1.805 4.239 4.233 10.277
Total Service Pressures 7.972 3.876 10.000 | 21.848
Other Budget Changes 9.122 25905 28.456 | 63.483
Estimated Budget Gap 18.899  34.020 42.689  95.607
Savings Proposed to Date (18.899) (9.177)  (4.080) | (32.156)
Savings to be Identified 0.000 (24.843) (38.609) | (63.452

Balanced General Fund 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000

As outlined earlier in this report, the medium term plan will berevisited in light of
the Covid-19 pandemic.

An update on the Council’s MTFP, along with an analysis of the financial impacton
the Council of Covid-19 will be provided to Cabinet during the year. Anew medium
term plan for 2021/22 to 2023/24 willthen be submitted to Cabinet and Full Council
for approval in February/March2021.
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

9. CAPITAL STRATEGY

The Council has an ambitiousfive-year capital
investment programme of over £2bn, including:

The expenditurevariance to budgetis approximately 30%, primarily due to reprofling of some of the
Council’s largest developments and unused contingency budgets.

e Housing delivery schemes which will enable
the Council to achieveits target to deliver
1,850 new affordable homes by 2023.
Including the Luton Street and Parsons North

2019/20
Expenditure

Budget
$(0[0]0]

2019/20
Income

Outturn

Budget Expenditure

£000

£000

Outturn Expenditure

Income
£000

Variance

developments. Adults 500 (500) 135 (135) (365)

. , Children's 10,201 (7,663) 5,566| (4,386) (4,635)

* Commenced construction on thefirst scheme Growth, Planning and Housing 98,081 (36,458) 77,151| (35,122) (20,930)
tobe delivered by the Council’s subsidiary City Management & Communities 60,820/ (26,890) 50,941 (29,158) (9,879)
housing company Finance and Resources 40,776 0 8,757| (4,538) (32,019)
« Investment to ensure the continued success W estminster Housing Investment Limited 11,325 0 10,342 0 (983)
, ) Projects Funded from FCR 13,508 0 11,622| (11,622) (1,886)

of the West End as a business, leisure and Total 235.211| (71,511) 164,514 (84,961) (70,697)

heritage destination.

¢ New and improved leisure, adult social care
and educational facilities.

* More commercial spacefornew and
established businesses.

e Improved cycle paths, transport management
systems, roads, bridges and footpaths. This
expenditureis financed froma combination
of capital receipts, grant funding and the
Council’'sownfinancialresources. The table
below shows the 2019/20 capital expenditure
position.

Pt L L

arsons North/Venice

Luton Street
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

CAPITAL CASHFLOWS

10. CASHFLOWS & ASSETS Total Assets Brought Forward
£5,407m

Westminster City Councilmanages cashflows and
assetsin excess of £8 billion by:

-
e Collecting over £2bnof Business Rates, the oS Disposals Revaluations
largestamountin the country. The Council £308m £212m £120m

keeps only asmall proportion of this.

e Collecting £105min Council Tax —

Total Assets Carried Forward

e Administering the City of Westminster £5.383m
Pension Fund which provides pensions to
over 5,900 pensioners and has 4,300 active

members.
Property, Plant Investment Current Other Long Pension Fund
& Equipment Property Assets Term Assets Net Assets

e Managinga£3.4bnportfolio of land, £2 677m T A e £1,324m

buildings and other assets.

e Spendingnearly£1bn each yearon Council REVENUE CASHFLOWS
services.

Grants/

. Contributions
o ACCOUﬂtInngF f£1bn perannum of fees, Business Rates Council Tax £534m Fees & Charges Capital Receipts
charges, rents, and grant funding which are £2,345m £105m £405m £23m

used to help deliver services and keep v

council taxdown.
Total Resources
e Proactivelyinvesting cashand investment £3,412m
balances totalling over £1bn.

Paid to Others Retained by Westminster

£1,651m £1,761m

Business Rates Council Tax General Fund

£1,609m £42m £1,427m
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

11. GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE T —— Funded by: e T e Funded by:
ts

NET ASSETS £2,675M (£2,457M AT 31 Bl [ usable assets (property | ong-term Usable

MARCH 2019) investments) liabilities FESEINES investments) liabilities TESEIVES

see below £823m bel £831

The Council has maintaineda strong year-end Balance £3,118m ! ] £3,381m (see below] -

Sheet. Sufficientfundingisin place to repayboth long Net current £1,177m Unusable £1,005m Unusable

and shortterm liabilities as these fall due. accets TESEIVES NEECUrTent reserves
— £1,634m assets £1,844m

GROUP ACCOUNTS £2,730M (£2,495M o el

AT 31 MARCH 2019)

Group accountsprovide an overview of organisations . . .

. ) MNet Council assets £2,457m Met Council assets £2,675m
subjectto Council control. In 2019/20these were: 31 March 2019 31 March 2020

e Westminster Community Homes Limited —a
housing developmentvehicle.

e  WestCo Trading Limited — offer Councilservices
to public sector clients.

e Westmisnter Housing Investments Group—
delivery of affordable housing Long-term liabilities comprise: Long-term liabilities comprise:

e PaddingtonRecreation Ground charity - :e"SiG"_S A PF1sch ggim Pensions
. . . . OImowing ar: sChemes 1m i ; 5
maintains the park as open spacein perpetuity. = Borrowing and PFl scheme

Net Group assets £2,495m Net Group Assets £2,730m
31 March 2019 31 March 2020

Creditors and provisions £148m Creditors and provisions
Capital receipts received in advance £86m Capital Receipts received in advance
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(CONTINUED)

12. PENSION LIABILITIES £625M

The Council hadnetfuture pension liabilities of
£625m (£702masat31 March2019) on an IAS19
basis. The City of Westminster Pension Fundis
independently revaluedevery threeyears by an
independent actuary to set future contributionrates.
The mostrecentactuarial revaluation, asat31 March
2019, assessed the funding level at 100%. When the
Pension Fundisin deficit, it generates an interest cost
which would notoccurifit were fully funded. The
Council’s decisionto make increased deficit recovery
payments in recentyears has significantly reduced
both the overall pension fund deficit and the total
interest payable by the Councilto the Pension Fund.

The ongoingimpact of the Covid-19 pandemic has
created uncertainty surroundingilliquid asset values
and significantvolatilityin equity and credit markets.
Despite the Council’sshare of the Pension Fund assets
fallingby £51m, the netliability has fallenby £77m.
Thisisdueto a significant reductionin the pension
fund liabilities of £126m. The future value of pension
liabilities is determined by the discount rate, which is
based on theyield on investment grade corporate
bonds. Asthe spread on corporate bonds has
increased, it has lead to an increased discount rate
which reduces the future value of liabilities.

13. HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

The Council owns approximately 12,000 homes
generating rental income of over £73min theyear
(E75min 2018/19). Thisincomeis held in aring-
fenced account (the Housing Revenue Account, or
HRA) which can onlybe used for social housing
purposes.

The Council is planning to spend over £895min the
next fiveyearstoincrease and improveits social
housing stock.

The HRA has reserves of £17.365m (£17.234miin
2018/19)and anetrevenue surplusof £131k (deficit
of £17.301min 2018/19).

14. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Westminster has the largest business rateincomein
the countryand thereforethelargestappeals
provision.

The council currentlyholds£124.5m of provision for
repaymentin the future of which £117.5m relates to
the 2017 Rateable Valuelistand £7m for the
2010/2005 Rateable Value list.
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

15. ACHIEVEMENTS
Delivering a City for All

We havea relentless focus and work hard forour
communities, meaning we have an excellent
foundationto continue delivering a City for All. Here
arejustsome of our proudest achievements so far:

e Nineoutoften residents were satisfied with how

we keep our streets clean and regularly collect
bins

e Introduced20mph speed limits around 39 schools

in Westminster
e Supported over 1,000residents to stay in their

local community by making improvements to their

home

e Prevented 220 families from being at risk of
homelessness

e Officiallybecamealondon Living Wage employer

in2019
e Qur state-of-the-artcare home, Beachcroft, is

nearing completion. Itwillincorporate the latest

technology andinclude facilities such as a
dementia-supportive garden

e Broughttogether 5,000 residents to celebrate our

third annual MyWestminster Dayin June 2019
e Agreeda new protocolwith powerand utility
companies to make sure roadworks are
coordinated and disruption is minimised
e Won 11 Londonin Bloomawardsfor our parks,
gardens and cemeteries

Gained over 14,000 supporters forour
#DontBeldle campaign to cutengineidling at the
kerbside

Helped 42,600 children in Westminster getthe
beststart in lifethrough our healthier schools
programme

Inspired 800young people to become interested
in the creativeindustries throughour City Lions
programme, whichis particularly targeted at those
fromunderprivileged backgrounds

Created 110 apprenticeship opportunities with
Westminster-based employers

Helped 600 residents to start-up businesses
through ourPopUp Business School

Trialled electric-powered waste collection vehicles
to reduce carbonemissions

Secured £2.8mfor a European Regional
Development Fund project that aims to connect
small and medium-sized enterprises within
Westminster to superfast broadband connectivity.
The programme has connected 600 businesses to
date

Helped over 1,200 people #EndTheNightRight
thanks to our Soho Angels — reducing the burden
on local NHS services

Funded 106 local organisations, through the
MyWestminster Fund, to the tune of £600,000for
local projects to benefit their communities
Another successful West End LIVE attracted
crowds of morethan half a million people,
boosting the local economy

Celebrated community heroes, who volunteer to
make Westminster a great placeto live through
the MyWestminster Community Awards

Installed more electric vehicle charging points
than any other local authority, with many more
planned. So far, we have delivered 470 charging
points which equates to 59 per square mileand
eighttimes more points per resident head than
the UK average

Revolutionised our planningsystem to make it
moretransparentand easierfor residents to use,
includingintroducing live video streaming of our
planning committees

Improved the Report It section of our website,
allowing residents to tell us aboutincidents across
the city instantly online

Partnered with universities in Westminster to find
technological solutions to our biggest challenges,
improve service deliveryand save residents
money

Engaged over 28,000 residents as part of our
Community Champions programmeto improve
the health and wellbeing of people living in their
local area

Supported over 738residents with disabilities,
health conditions and significant barriersto
employmentinto work placements, paidwork and
apprenticeships. The council isa proud role model
of thisinitiative — we negotiate opportunities
through social value and Section 106, and have
opened our own social enterprise café

Over 4mvisits to our sports and leisure facilities
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

NON-FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
(CONTINUED)

16. PEOPLE STRATEGY

Westminster employs approximately 2,500 staff in
full-time and part-time positions. This number has
increased by a quarter in the last year since bringing
in house the Council’s former ALMO City West
Homes.

The council, through the Westminster Way, puts great
emphasis on driving an organisational culture that
develops and supportsits people so staff thriveand
deliver their very best for Westminster's communities
and thereby achieve the council's City For All vision.
The council notonlyinvests significantly in its people
across the organisation through learning and
development butalso enables staff to work in an agile
manner providing them with the necessary tools,
equipmentand skills to do so.

The Westminster Way championsinclusionand
diversity and ensures that the council recruits and
nurtures diversetalent. Italso ensures thatthereis an
inclusive culture where everyoneis encouraged to be
themselves. Westminster celebrates the diversity of
its workforce and hosts events throughout the year to
champion different communities, bringing the
workforce together and creating opportunities for
learning and discussion.

The Westminster cultureis driven by the recognition
of the following, which serve as the key pillars of the
Westminster Way.

e Everyonehastalent
e Everyoneisvalued

e Everyoneisaleader
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)
17. TOP STRATEGIC RISKS FOR UPCOMING YEAR

A risk management strategy is in place to identify and evaluaterisk. There are clearly defined steps to support better decision making through the understandingof risk, whether

a positive opportunityor threatand thelikely impact. The risk management processes are subject to regularreview and updating. The key risksfor the forthcoming year include:

Risk

Impact

Mitigation

Covid-19 pandemic

The Council fails to meet its safeguarding
responsibilities for a child, young person
or adult

A major incident occurs in Westminster
(extreme weather, fire, terror attack etc)

Impact of Brexit on council services and
local communities

Loss of IT systems or data

Financial pressures result in an inability to
fund Council services

Failure of a major contract results in the
Council being unable to provide local
services

The coronavirus pandemic has had a profound impact on all aspects of life in
Westminster. Anticipated impacts include increased need for employment
services, homelessness prevention, mental health and business support
services.

Vulnerable children and adults are not protected in line with statutory
requirements.

Major disruption to Westminster transport and roads; difficulties for staff
getting to work.

Potential injury or death to Westminster staff and/or residents.

Potential impact on business rates income, investment returns and the tourist
economy.

Interruption to service delivery.

Loss of personal data belonging to Council employees, local taxpayers, suppliers,
and service users.

Impact of financial pressures will be mostimpact frontline services where the
Council has less discretion over the timing and nature of service to be provided
but where local demand for those services is volatile and increasing rapidly but
difficult to predict and manage effectively within a finite budget.

Potential impacts could include health and safety risks, additional costs to the
Council in relation to appointment of new contractors and emergency cover
during re-appointment phase. Potential reduction in service quality for local
people.

Strategic and Tactical Delivery Groups are taking place with participation from all
council directorates. These groups are coordinating responses to business continuity,
staff health and safety, human resource guidance alongside the impact on service
delivery and vulnerable groups.

All service areas have reviewed their business continuity plans with a focus on service
delivery in the event of a reduced workforce. A pandemic exercise pack has been
developed and cascaded to service areas to allow them test and exercise their business
continuity plans in a range of scenarios. Generic risk assessment for WCC colleagues
has been developed both for office based and front-line staff. Control measures have
been implemented as appropriate. London wide SCG is coordinating activity across
London.

Activities are monitored by the Local Safeguarding Board and staff are expected to
attend safeguarding training. Regular case reviews and audits take place to ensure
policies are implemented, disseminate lessons learned and identify good practice
through multiagency and partnership working.

Crisis communications plan is in place and all staff are aware of how to respond to an
emergency situation. A number of plans are in place to ensure business continuity and
respond to major incidents. Weather reports are regularly monitored and there is joint
working with the police to prepare for terrorist attacks.

There are a series of business continuity plans and contingencies in place to provide
assurance and minimise any potential disruption.

There are plans for improving system availability and reducing the risk of data loss. The
cybersecurity improvement works continue to strengthen technical controls and a
focussed staff awareness campaign including further promotion of mandatory training.
FOland Data Protection processes have been strengthened to further reduce the risk of
data breach.

Budgets and financial strategies are regularly updated to take account of current and
emerging financial pressures. The Council maintains adequate levels of reserves to
cover unforeseen contingencies.

Business continuity plans are now in place for all high value/high risk contracts.
Enhanced procurement and due diligence processes are now in place prior to
appointment and contractors are regularly monitored to ensure contracts do not fail.
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Executive Director’s Narrative Report (continued)

18. EXPLANATION OF ACCOUNTING
STATEMENTS

The Statement of Accounts sets out the Council’s
income and expenditure for the year, and its financial
position at 31 March2020. It comprises coreand
supplementary statements, together with disclosure
notes. The format and content of the financial
statements are prescribed by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accountingin the United
Kingdom 2019/20, whichin turnis underpinned by
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The Core Statements are:

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement —this records all of the Council’s
income and expenditurefor theyear. The top
half of the statement provides an analysis by
service area. The bottom half of the statement
deals with corporatetransactions and funding.

The Movement in Reserves Statementis a
summary of the changes to the Council’s
reserves over the course of theyear. Reserves
aredivided into “usable”, which canbeinvested
in capital projects orservice improvements, and
“unusable” whichmust be set aside for specific
legal or accounting purposes.

The Balance Sheetis a “snapshot” of the
Council’s assets, liabilities, cash balances and
reserves at the year-end date.

The Cash Flow Statement shows thereasonfor
changesinthe Council’scash balances during
the year, and whether that changeis dueto
operating activities, new investment, or
financing activities (such as repayment of
borrowing and otherlongterm liabilities).

The Group Accounts include:

e theassetsand liabilities of companies and
similar entities, which the Council either
controls or significantly influences.

The Supplementary Financial Statements are:

e The Annual Governance Statement, which sets
outthe governancestructures of the Council
and its key internal controls.

e The Housing Revenue Account — this separately
identifies the Council’s statutorylandlord
function as a provider of social housing under
the Local GovernmentandHousing Act 1989.

e The Collection Fund, whichsummarises the
collection andredistribution of Council taxand
business ratesincome

e The Pension Fund Account, whichreports the
contributions received, payments to pensioners
and thevalue of net assets invested in the Local
Government Pension Scheme.

The Notes to these financial statements provide
further detail about the Council'saccountingpolicies
and individual transactions.

A Glossaryof key terms can befoundatthe end of
this publication.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF WESTMINSTER CITY
COUNCIL

OPINION

We have audited thefinancial statements of
Westminster City Council (the ‘Authority’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’)for theyear ended 31 March
2020 which comprise the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Movementin Reserves
Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow
Statement, the Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, the Group Movementin
Reserves Statement, the Group Balance Sheetand the
Group Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue
AccountIncomeand Expenditure Statement, the
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account
Statement, the Collection Fund Statement and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies. The notes to the
financial statementsinclude the Notes to the
Accounts, Notes to the Housing Revenue Account
Statement, Notes to the Collection Fund Statement
and Notes to the Group Accounts. Thefinancial
reporting framework that has been appliedin their
preparationis applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local authority accountingin the
United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e Givea trueand fair view of the financial position
of the group and of the Authority asat 31 March
2020 and of the group’s expenditure and income

and the Authority’s expenditure and income for
the year then ended;

e Havebeen properly prepared in accordance with
the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local
authority accountingin the United Kingdom
2019/20; and

e Havebeen preparedinaccordance with the
requirements of the Local Auditand
Accountability Act 2014.

BASIS FOROPINION

We conductedour auditin accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
responsibilities forthe audit of the financial
statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of thegroup andthe Authority in
accordance with the ethical requirements thatare
relevantto our audit of thefinancial statementsin the
UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the auditevidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriateto provide a basis for our opinion.

THE IMPACT OF MACROECONOMICUNCERTAINTIES
ON OURAUDIT

Our audit of the financial statements requires us to
obtain an understanding of all relevant uncertainties,
includingthose arising as a consequence of the
effects of macro economic uncertainties such as Covid
19 and Brexit. All audits assess and challenge the
reasonableness of estimates made by the Executive

Director Finance and Resources andthe related
disclosures and the appropriateness of the going
concern basis of preparation of the financial
statements. All of these depend on assessments of
the future economic environment and the group’s
and Authority’s future operational arrangements.

Covid-19and Brexit are amongst the most significant
economic events currentlyfaced by the UK, and at the
date of this report their effects are subject to
unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with the full
range of possible outcomes and their impacts
unknown. We applied a standardised firm wide
approachin responseto these uncertainties when
assessing the group’s and Authority’s future
operational arrangements. However, no audit should
be expected to predictthe unknowable

factors or all possible futureimplications foran
authority associated with these particularevents.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothingto reportin respect of the following
mattersin relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us
toreporttoyou where:

e The Executive Director Finance and Resources’
use of the going concern basis of accountingin
the preparationof the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

e The Executive Director—Finance and Resources
has notdisclosed in the financial statements any
identified material uncertainties that may cast
significantdoubt about the group’s or the
Authority’s ability to continue to adoptthe going
concern basis of accountingfor a period of at
least twelve months
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

fromthe date when the financial statements are
authorised forissue.

In our evaluation of the Executive Director —Finance
and Resources’ conclusions, and in accordance with
the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local authority accounting in the
United Kingdom 2019/20that the Authority’s financial
statements shall be prepared on a going concern
basis, we considered therisks associated with the
group’sand Authority’s operating activities, including
effects arising from macro-economic uncertainties
such as Covid-19and Brexit. We analysed how those
risks might affect the group’s and Authority’s financial
resources or ability to continue operations over the
period of at least twelve months from the date when
the financial statements are authorisedfor issue.
Inaccordance with the above, we have nothingto
reportintheserespects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may resultin
outcomes thatareinconsistent with judgements that
werereasonable atthe time they were made, the
absence of reference to a material uncertaintyin this
auditor'sreportis notaguarantee that the Authority
or group will continuein operation.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER —EFFECTS OF COVID-19 ON
THE VALUATION OF LAND AND BUILDINGSAND
PROPERTY INVESTMENTS

We draw attention to Note 3 of the financial
statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-
19 pandemic on thevaluation of the Authority’sand
group’sland and buildings (includingInvestment
Property) andthe Authority’s share of the pension

fund’s property investments as at 31 March 2020. As
disclosed in Note 3 to the financial statements, the
outbreak of Covid-19 has had an unprecedented
impacton global financialmarkets and as at the
valuation date, less weight can be attached to
previous market evidence to inform opinionsof value.
A material valuation uncertainty was therefore
disclosed in both the Authority’s property valuer’s
reportsand the pension fund’s property valuation
reports. Our opinionis not modifiedin respect of this
matter.

OTHERINFORMATION

The Executive Director —Finance and Resourcesis
responsibleforthe other information. The other
information comprises theinformationincluded in
the Annual Accounts, other than the Authority and
group financial statements and ourauditor’s report
thereon, and our auditor’sreport on the pensionfund
financial statements. Ouropinionon thefinancial
statements does not cover the other informationand,
exceptto the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do notexpress any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection withour audit of the financial
statements, our responsibilityis to read the other
informationand, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materiallyinconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge of the group
and Authority obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we arerequired to determine
whether thereis a material misstatementin the
financial statements or a material misstatement of

the other information. If, based on the workwe have
performed, we conclude thatthereis a material
misstatement of this other information, we are
required to reportthatfact.

We have nothingto reportin this regard.

OTHERINFORMATION WE ARE REQUIRED TO
REPORT ON BY EXCEPTION UNDER THE CODE OF
AUDITPRACTICE

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the
National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptrollerand
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are
required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the ‘deliveringgood
governancein Local Government Framework 2016
Edition’ published by CIPFAandSOLACE or is
misleading or inconsistent with the information of
which weareaware from our audit. We arenot
required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statementaddresses all risks and controls or that risks
are satisfactorily addressed by internal controls.

We have nothingto reportin thisregard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER REQUIRED BY THE
CODE OF AUDITPRACTICE

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of theaudit of the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Authority gained throughour
work in relation to the Authority’s arrangements for
securing economy, efficiencyand effectivenessin its
use of resources, the other information published
together with the financial statements in the Annual
Accounts for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT
BY EXCEPTION

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we arerequired to
reporttoyou if:

e Weissuea reportinthepublicinterest under
section 24 of the Local Auditand Accountability
Act2014 in the course of, or atthe conclusion of
the audit; or

o  We makea written recommendation to the
Authority undersection 24 of the Local Auditand
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the
conclusion of the audit; or

e We makean application to thecourtfora
declaration thatan item of accountis contrary to
law under Section 28 of the Local Auditand
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the
conclusion of theaudit; or;

e Weissuean advisory notice under Section 29 of
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in the
course of, or atthe conclusion of the audit; or

e We makean application forjudicial review under
Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014, inthecourse of, or atthe conclusion of
the audit.

We have nothingto reportin respect of theabove
matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY, THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR -FINANCE AND RESOURCES
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FORTHE
FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Statement of
Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, set out
on page [x], the Authority is required to make
arrangements for the proper administration of its
financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers
has the responsibilityfor the administration of those
affairs. Inthisauthority, that officeris the Executive
Director —Finance and Resources. The Executive
Director —Finance and Resources is responsible for
the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with
proper practices as setoutin the CIPFA/LASAAC code
of practice on localauthorityaccountingin the United
Kingdom 2019/20, for being satisfied that they give a
true and fair view, and for suchinternal control as the
Executive Director —Finance and Resources
determinesis necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Executive
Director —Finance and Resources is responsible for
assessingthe group’s and the Authority’s ability to

continueasagoing concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concernand using the going
concern basis of accountingunless thereis an
intention by governmentthat the services provided
by the Authority willno longer be provided.

The Auditand Performance Committee is Those
Charged with Governance. Those charged with
governanceareresponsible for overseeing the
Authority’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FORTHE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Our objectives areto obtainreasonable assurance
aboutwhether thefinancialstatements asawhole
are freefrom material misstatement, whether dueto
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes ouropinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high
level of assurance, butis notaguaranteethatan
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or errorand are
considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influencethe economicdecisions of userstaken on
the basis of these financial statements.Afurther
descriptionof ourresponsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is located on the Financial
ReportingCouncil's website at:

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This descriptionforms part of ourauditor’sreport.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS -
CONCLUSION ON THE AUTHORITY’S
ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING
ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND
EFFECTIVENESS IN ITS USE OF RESOURCES

CONCLUSION

Onthebasis of our work, having regard to the
guidanceon the specifiedcriterionissued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, we are
satisfied thatthe Authorityputin place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectivenessin its use of resources fortheyear
ended 31 March 2020.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY

The Authority is responsible for puttingin place
proper arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectivenessin its use of resources, to
ensure proper stewardship andgovernance, and to
review regularly the adequacyand effectiveness of
these arrangements.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE REVIEW OF
THE AUTHORITY’S ARRANGEMENTS FOR SECURING
ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS IN ITS
USE OF RESOURCES

We arerequired underSection 20(1)(c) of the Local
Auditand Accountability Act 2014 to be satisfied that
the Authority has made properarrangements for
securing economy, efficiencyand effectivenessin its
useof resources. We are not required to consider,
nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the
Authority's arrangements for securing economy,

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are
operating effectively.

We have undertaken ourreview in accordance with
the Code of Audit Practice, having regardto the
guidance on the specifiedcriterionissued by the
Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to
whether in all significant respects the Authority had
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly
informed decisionsand deployed resources to
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for
taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and
Auditor General determined this criterion as that
necessary for usto consider underthe Code of Audit
Practicein satisfying ourselves whether the
Authorityputin place properarrangements for
securing economy, efficiencyand effectiveness in its
use of resources for theyear ended 31 March 2020.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of
Audit Practice. Based on ourriskassessment, we
undertook such workas we considered necessary to
be satisfied that the Authority has putin place proper
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectivenessin its use of resources.

REPORT ON OTHERLEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS - DELAY IN CERTIFICATION OF
COMPLETION OF THEAUDIT

We cannot formally conclude the auditand issuean
audit certificatein accordance with the requirements
of the Local Auditand Accountability Act 2014 and
the Code of Audit Practice until we have completed
the work necessaryto issue our Whole of

Government Accounts(WGA) Component Assurance
statement for the Authority fortheyear ended 31
March 2020. We are satisfied that this work does not
have a material effect on the financial statements or

onour conclusionon the Authority's arrangements
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in
its use of resources fortheyear ended 31 March
2020.

USE OF OURREPORT

Thisreportis madesolely to the members of the
Authority, asabody, in accordance with Part 5 of the
Local Auditand Accountability Act 2014 and as set out
in paragraph 43 of the Statement of Responsibilities
of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public
Sector Audit Appointments Limited. Ouraudit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Authority’s members those matters we are required
to state to themin an auditor'sreportand for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do notacceptor assume responsibility to anyone
other than the Authority and the Authority's members
as abody, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinionswe have formed.

ﬂj;mf ﬂo&&etﬁ

Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP,
Local Auditor

London

24 November 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report — Pension Fund

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE MEMBERS OF CITY OF
WESTMINSTER COUNCIL ON THE
PENSION FUND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CITY OF WESTMINSTER

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of City of
Westminster Pension Fund (the ‘pensionfund’)
administered by Westminster City Council (the
‘Authority’) for theyear ended 31 March 2020 which
comprisethe Fund Account, the Net Assets Statement
and notesto the pension fund financial statements,
includinga summary of significant accounting policies.
The financial reportingframework that has been
appliedin their preparationis applicable law and the
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accountingin the United Kingdom 2019/20.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

e givea trueand fair view of thefinancial
transactions of the pension fund during the
year ended 31 March2020 and of theamount
and dispositionat that date of the fund’s assets
and liabilities,

e havebeen properly prepared in accordance
with the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on
local authorityaccountingin the United
Kingdom 2019/20; and

e havebeen prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Auditand
Accountability Act 2014.

BASIS FOROPINION

We conductedour auditin accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK))
and applicable law. Our responsibilities underthose
standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements’ section of our report. Weare
independent of the Authorityin accordance with the
ethical requirements thatarerelevantto our audit of
the pension fund’s financial statements in the UK,
includingthe FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

THE IMPACT OF MACRO-ECONOMIC
UNCERTAINTIES ON OURAUDIT

Our audit of the pension fund financial statements
requires us to obtain an understanding of all
relevantuncertainties, includingthose arisingas a
consequence of the effects of macro-economic
uncertainties such as Covid-19 and Brexit. All audits
assess and challenge the reasonableness of estimates
made by the Executive Director — Finance and
Resources and the related disclosures and the
appropriateness of the going concernbasis of
preparation of the financial statements. All of these
depend on assessments of the future economic
environment.

Covid-19and Brexit are amongst the most significant
economic events currentlyfaced by the UK,

and at the date of thisreporttheir effects are subject
to unprecedented levels of uncertainty, with

the full range of possible outcomes and their impacts
unknown. We applied a standardised firmwide
approachinresponseto these uncertainties.
However, no audit should be expected to

predictthe unknowable factors or all possible future
implications fora fund associated with these
particularevents.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

We have nothingto reportin respect of the following
mattersin relation to which the ISAs (UK)

require usto reporttoyou where:

e the Executive Director—Finance and Resources
use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the pensionfund’s financial
statementsis notappropriate; or

e the Executive Director— Finance and Resources
has notdisclosed in the pensionfund’s financial
statements any identified material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt about the
Authority’s abilityto continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting forthe
pension fund fora periodof atleast twelve
months from the date when the pension fund’s
financial statements are authorised forissue.

In our evaluation of the Executive Director — Finance
and Resources conclusions, and in accordance with
the expectation set out within the CIPFA/LASAAC
code of practice on local authority accounting in the
United Kingdom 2019/20that the pension fund
financial statements shall be prepared on a going
concern basis, we consideredthe risks associated with
the fund's operating model, including effects arising

o
@
N
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
Q
o
(@]
c
2
puur
w
N
(=]
=4
©
~
N
(=]
[~}
(=]
[ ]
=
=
5
—
m
=z
[%2]
=
>
=
m
<
m
z
=
wv
>
=
o
m
>
m
o
c
=
<
m
o
X
m
9]
—
(@]
22
wv
z
>
X
X
>
=
<
m
X
m
B
O
el
3




Independent Auditor’s Report — Pension Fund (continued)

from macro-economic uncertainties such as Covid-19
and Brexit, and analysed how those risks might affect
the fund's financial resources or ability to continue
operations overthe period of at least twelve months
from the date when the financial statements are
authorised forissue. In accordance with the above,
we have nothingto reportin theserespects.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or
conditions and as subsequent events may result

in outcomes thatare inconsistent with judgements
that were reasonable at the time they were made,
the absence of reference to a material uncertainty in
thisauditor's reportis nota guarantee thatthe

fund will continue in operation.

EMPHASIS OF MATTER - EFFECTS OF COVID-190N
THE VALUATION OF PROPERTY AND
INFRASTRUCTURE

INVESTMENTS

We draw attention to Note 5 of the financial
statements, which describes the effects of the Covid-
19 pandemic on thevaluation of the pension fund’s
property investmentsasat31 March2020. As,
disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements, the
ongoingimpact of the Covid-19 pandemichas
created uncertainty surroundingilliquid asset values.
As such, the Pension Fund property and infrastructure
allocationsasat31 March2020are difficult to value
accordingto preferredaccountingpolicy. Professional
Valuers have not been actively valuing manysimilar
sized assets in the market due to the current
lockdown environment, as such values have been
rolled over from Period 11 with an adjustment and
may be inaccurateto thetrue 31 Marchposition. A
material valuation uncertainty was therefore

disclosed in the pensionfund’spropertyand
infrastructure valuation reports. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

OTHERINFORMATION

The Executive Director— Finance and Resources is
responsibleforthe other information. The other
information comprises theinformationincluded in
the Statement of Accounts, the Narrative Report

and the Annual Governance Statement, other than
the pension fund’s financial statements, our
auditor’sreport thereonand ourauditor’sreporton
the Authority’s and group’s financial statements.

Our opinion on the pension fund’s financial
statements does not cover the other informationand,
exceptto the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection withour audit of the pensionfund’s
financial statements, our responsibilityis to read

the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the pensionfund’s financial
statements or our knowledge of the pensionfund
obtained in the audit or otherwise appearsto be
materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we arerequired to determine whetherthereis

a material misstatementin the pension fund’s
financial statements or a material misstatement of
the other information. If, based on the workwe have
performed, we concludethatthereisa

material misstatement of this other information, we
arerequired to reportthatfact.

We have nothingto reportin this regard.

OPINION ON OTHER MATTER REQUIRED BY THE
CODE OF AUDITPRACTICE PUBLISHED BY THE
NATIONALAUDIT OFFICE ON BEHALF OF THE
COMPTROLLERAND AUDITOR GENERAL (THE CODE
OF AUDITPRACTICE)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of theaudit of the pension fund’s financial
statements and our knowledge of the pensionfund
the other information published together with the
pension fund’s financial statements in the Statement
of Accounts, [the Narrative Reportand the Annual
Governance Statement for the financial year for which
the financial statements are preparedis consistent
with the pension fund's financial statements.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT
BY EXCEPTION

Under the Code of Audit Practice, we arerequired to
reporttoyouif:

e weissueareportinthepublicinterestunder
section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 in the course of, or atthe conclusion
of the audit; or

e we makea written recommendationto the
Authority undersection 24 of the Local Audit
and Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or
at the conclusion of the audit; or

e we makean applicationtothecourtfora
declaration thatan item of accountis contrary
to law under Section 28 of the Local Auditand
Accountability Act 2014 in the course of, or at
the conclusionof the audit; or;

e weissuean advisory notice under Section 29 of
the Local Auditand Accountability Act 2014 in
the course of, or atthe conclusion of the audit;
or
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Independent Auditor’s Report — Pension Fund (continued)

e we makean application forjudicial review
under Section 31 of the Local Auditand
Accountability Act 2014, in the course of, or at
the conclusion of the audit.

We have nothingto reportin respect of theabove
matters.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE AUTHORITY, THE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - FINANCE AND RESOURCES
AND THOSE

CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FORTHE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

As explained more fully in the Statement of
Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the
Authority is required to make arrangements for the
proper administration of its financial affairs and to
securethatone of its officers has the responsibility
for the administration of those affairs. In this
authority, that officeris the Executive Director —
Finance and Resources. The Executive Director —
Financeand Resources is responsible forthe
preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the pension fund’sfinancialstatements, in
accordance with proper practices as set outin

the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local authority
accountingin the United Kingdom 2019/20,

for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the Executive
Director — Finance and Resources determines is
necessary to enablethe preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether dueto fraud or error.

In preparing the pensionfund’s financial statements,
the Executive Director— Finance and Resources is

responsible forassessing the pension fund’s ability to
continueasagoing concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concernand using the going
concern basis of accountingunless thereis an
intention by government that the services provided
by the pension fund will no longer be provided.

The Auditand Performance Committeeis Those
Charged with Governance. Those charged with
governanceareresponsible for overseeing the
Authority’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

Our objectives areto obtainreasonable assurance
about whether the pension fund’s financial
statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether dueto fraud or error, and to
issuean auditor’sreport thatincludes ouropinion.
Reasonableassuranceis a high level of assurance, but
isnota guaranteethatan auditconducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) willalways detecta
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arisefromfraud orerror andare considered
material if, individually orin the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of ourresponsibilities for the
audit of thefinancial statementsislocated on the
Financial Reporting Council’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
descriptionformspart of ourauditor’s report.

USE OF OURREPORT

This reportis madesolely to the members of the
Authority, as abody, in accordance with Part 5 of

the Local Auditand Accountability Act 2014 and as set
outin paragraph 43 of the Statement of
Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies
published by PublicSector Audit Appointments
Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that
we might state to the Authority’s membersthose
matters we arerequired to stateto themin an
auditor'sreportand forno otherpurpose. To the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other thanthe
Authority and the Authority's members as a body, for
our audit work, forthisreport, or forthe opinionswe
haveformed.

eﬁzuf ﬂo ssett

Paul Dossett, Key Audit Partner

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP,
Local Auditor

London

24 November 2020
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http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

Statement of Responsibilities
for the Statement of Accounts

THE COUNCIL’S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Councilisrequired to:

e makearrangements for the proper
administration of its financial affairs andto
securethat oneof its officers has the
responsibility for the administration of those
affairs, in line with statute thisis the Section
151 Officer;

e manageits affairs to secure economic, efficient
and effective use of resources andsafeguard its
assets; and

e approvetheStatement of Accounts.

THE SECTION 151 OFFICER’S
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Section 151 Officeris responsible for the
preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts
and of its Pension Fund Statement of Accountswhich,
in terms of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in Great Britain (‘the Code’), are
required respectivelyto presentfairly the financial
position of the Council and of the Pension Fund at the
accounting dateand theincome and expenditure for
the year then ended.

In preparing these Statements of Accounts, the
Section 151 Officer has:

e selected suitableaccountingpolicies and then
applied them consistently except where policy
changes have been noted in these accounts;

e madejudgmentsand estimates that were
reasonableand prudent; and

e complied with the Code.
The Section 151 Officer has also:

e keptproperaccountingrecords which were up
to date; and

e takenreasonablestepsfor the prevention and
detection of fraud and otherirregularities.

Gerald Almeroth

Executive Director — Finance and Resources
Section 151 Officer

24t November 2020

APPROVAL OF STATEMENT
OF ACCOUNTS

The Statement of Accounts was approved by the
Westminster City Council Auditand Performance
Committee.

A A —

Councillor lan Rowley
Chairman of the Audit and Performance Committee

24t November 2020
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Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES) records all of the Council’s revenue income and expenditure for the year. Expenditure represents a
combination of statutoryduties anddiscretionary spendfocused on localpriorities and needs. The CIPFA Code of Local Authority Accounting regulates how expenditure and
incomerelating to services is classifiedin the CIES.

[=)

w

~N

2018/19 Restated** Note 2019/20 ;

S

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net §
2

Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure g
o

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 8
=

(%]

S

94,426 (9,096) 85,330 Finance and Resources* 112,614 (63,281) 49,333 Q
N

6,855 (10,499) (3,644)  Policy, Performance and Communications 6,298 (8,943) (2,645) g

[ ]

153,204 (92,710) 60,494  Adults’ Services 151,862 (93,661) 58,201 8
X

146,086 (97,369) 48,717  Children’s Services 162,551 (115,551) 47,000 :
=

194,767 (134,903) 59,864 City Management and Communities 192,637 (140,096) 52,541 %
>

430,472 (401,912) 28,560  Growth, Planning and Housing 446,216 (360,228) 85,988 ;
4

>

1,025,810 (746,489) 279,321 Cost of services 1,072,178 (781,760) 290,418 g
z

=

wv




Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (continued)

2018/19 Restated** Note 2019/20

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- - 7270  Other operating expenditure Note 5 - - 590

- - (13,347)  Financing and investment income and expenditure Note 6 - - (32,573)

- - (350,317) Taxation and non-specific grant Income Note 7 - - (315,520)

- - (77,073)  (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services - - (57,085)

Items that will not be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services

- - (63,189)  (Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment assets - - (67,299)
- - Note - - 93,911
(38,470) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability 32b (i) ( )

Items that will be reclassified to the (Surplus) or Deficit on the Provision of Services
- - 223 (Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of financial assets (Available for sale) - - -
(101,436) Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure - - (161,210)
- - (178,509) Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Surplus)/Deficit - - (218,295)

*In 2018/19 City Treasurer and Corporate Services were shown separately. These have been included within Finance and Resources in 2019/20following a restructure.
**For further detail, pleaserefer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 8 The Expenditure and Funding Analysis demonstrates in further detail how the Council has used available funding for the year in providing services, in comparison with
thoseresources thatthe Council has consumed or earned in accordance with generallyaccepted accounting practices.




Movementin Reserves Statement

The Movement in Reserves Statement showsthe movementin year on reserve balances held by the Council.

2018/19 Restated** Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves Total Total Total Council
. . . Usable Unusable Reserves
Ger;erac: Earmarked Schools General RHousmg Earma::: HRA RCap‘IttaI :‘.iaplttal Reserves*  Reserves*
un GF Reserves Reserves Fund Total evenue Total eceipts rar.l s
Balance Account Reserves Reserve Unapplied
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31 March 2018 (58,865) (151,334) (5,643) (215,842) (25,366) (9,169) | (34,535) | (61,612)  (329,425)  (641,414) (1,637,068) (2,278,482)

Movement in reserves
during 2018/19

Surplus/(Deficit) on
provision of services (68,748) - - (68,748) (8,325) - (8,325) - - (77,073) - (77,073)
(accounting basis)

Other Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) (101,436) (101,436)
Total Comprehensive
Income and E xpenditure (6,728 ) } (68,748) (8,325) - | (8,325) - - (77,073) (101,436) (178,509)
Adjustments between
accounting basis and

(48,507) - - (48,507) 25,626 - 25,626 (65,879) (16,001) (104,761) 104,761 -

funding basis under
regulations

Net increase/(decrease)
before Transfers to (117,255) - - (117,255) 17,301 - 17,301 @ (65,879) (16,001) (181,834) 3,324 (178,509)
Earmarked Reserves

Transfers to/(from)
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113,338 (116,564) 3,226 - (9,169) 9,169 - - - - - -
Earmarked Reserves
Increase/(Decrease) In Year (3,917) (116,564) 3,226 (117,255) 8,132 9,169 17,301 @ (65,879) (16,001) (181,834) 3,324 (178,509)
Balance at 31 March 2019 (62,782) (267,898) (2,417) (333,097) (17,234) - | (17,238) | (127,491) (345,426) (823,248)  (1,633,743) (2,456,991)

* For further detail, please refer to Note 18 — Transfers to and from Earmarked Reserves and Note 17 — Unusable Reserves
** For furtherdetail, pleaserefer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment




Movement in Reserves (continued)

2019/20 Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves Total Total Total Council

General  Earmarked Schools General Housing  Earmarked HRA Total Capital Capital Usable Unusable Reserves

Fund  GF Reserves Reserves Fund Total Revenue HRA Receipts Grants Reserves*  Reserves*
Balance Account Reserves Reserve Unapplied
£'000 £'000 £'000 £/000 £'000 £'000 £/000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £/000

Balance at 31 March 2019 (62,782) (267,898) (2,417) (333,097) (17,234) = (17,234) | (127,491) (345,426) (823,248) (1,633,743) (2,456,991)
Restated **
Movementin reserves
during 2019/20
Surplus/(Deficit) on
provision of services (44,546) . = (44,546) (12,539) . (12,539) . 5 (57,085) . (57,085)
(accounting basis)
Other Comprehensive (161,210) (161,210)
Income and Expenditure ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ’ ’
Total Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure (44,546) (44,546) | (12,539) = (12,539) = = (57,085)  (161,210) (218,295)
Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding 11,517 = - 11,517 12,408 - 12,408 31,637 (6,535) 49,027 (49,027) -
basis under regulations
Net increase/(decrease)
before Transfers to (33,029) - - (33,029) (131) - (131) 31,637 (6,535) (8,058) (210,237) (218,295)
Earmarked Reserves
Transfers to/(from) 32,499 (33,168) 669 ) ) . ) . . ) ) .
Earmarked Reserves
'Y”:;fase/(De”ease) In (530) (33,168) 669 (33,029) (131) - (131) | 31,637 (6,535) (8,058)  (210,237) (218,295)
Balance at 31 March 2020 (63,312) (301,066) (1,748) (366,126) (17,365) - (17,365) | (95,854) (351,961) (831,306)  (1,843,980) (2,675,286)

*For further detail, please refer to Note 18 — Transfers to and fromEarmarked Reserves and Note 17 — Unusable Reserves
**For further detail, pleaserefer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet shows thevalues of assets and
liabilities held by the Council. The net assets of the
Council are matched by thereserves held by the
Council. Thereserves are presented withintwo
categories, usablereserves andunusablereserves.
Usablereserves may be used to provide services,
subject to statutory limitations on their useand the
need to maintain a prudentlevel of reserves for
financial stability. Unusable reserves cannot be used
to fund Council services.

31 March 2019 Restated* Note 31 March 2020
£/000 £000
ASSETS
Non-current
2,509,191  Property, plant and equipment Note 19¢ 2,677,424
42,846  Heritage assets Note 20 44,578
472,825  Investment property Note 21 499,382
724 Intangible assets 1,313
25,150 Long-term investments Note 22a 88,104
67,604  Long-term debtors Note 28 70,623
3,118,340 Totallong term assets 3,381,424
Current
673,751  Short-term investments Note 22a 543,945
101  Inventories 116
148,044  Short-term debtors Note 28 97,970
49,904 Cashand other cash equivalents Note 23 35,522
871,800 Current assets 677,553
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Balance Sheet (continued)

Certification by the Chief Financial Officer 31 March 2019 Note 31 March 2020

£000 £7000
| certify that the statement of accounts presents a

true and fair view of the financial position of the

Councilasat31 March2020and itsincome and LIABILITIES
expenditure for the year then ended. (2,486)  Short-term borrowing (16,828)
(348,976)  Short-term creditors Note 29 (349,341)
(=)
D
(685)  Short-term provisions Note 30 (687) L)
(3,643)  Revenue receipts in advance Note 13 (11,484) ]z’
2
2 c
(355,790) Total current liabilities (378,340) E
a
(@)
Gerald Almeroth e
) ] i Long term =
Executive Director — Finance and Resources -
(4,321)  Long-term creditors Note 29 (52) =
Section 151 Officer N 2
(144,150)  Long-term provisions Note 30 (72,299) S
th S
24" November 2020 (222,521)  Long-term borrowing (206,143) .
(@)
o
(720,187)  Other long-term liabilities Note 31 (642,316) =
“
(86,180)  Capital receipts in advance Note 13 (84,541) =
8
(1,177,359) Long-term liabilities (1,005,351) E
4
2,456,991 Net assets 2,675,286 E
<
m
=
A
(823,248) Total Usable Reserves (831,306)
(1,633,743)  Total Unusable Reserves Note 17 (1,843,980)
(2,456,991) Total Reserves (2,675,286)

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment




Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash
and cash equivalents of the Councilduring the
reporting period.

The Statement shows how the Councilgenerates
and uses cash and cash equivalents by classifying
cash flows as relating to operating, investingor
financing activities.

The amountof net cash flows arising from operating
activitiesis akey indicator of the extent to which the
operations of the Council are funded by way of
taxation and grantincome or fromthe recipients of
services provided by the Council.

Investing activities represent the extent to which
cash outflows have been madefor resources which
areintended to contribute to the Council’s future
servicedelivery. Cashflows arisingfromfinancing
activities are useful in predictingclaims onfuture
cash flows by providers of capital (i.e. borrowing by
the Council).

Cashisrepresented by cash-in-handand deposits
with financial institutions repayable on notice of not
morethan 24 hours demand without material
penalty. Cash equivalents are highly liquid
investments that maturein no morethan three days
or less and thatarereadily convertible to known
amounts of cash with low risk of changein value.

2018/19 Restated* Note 2019/20
£7000 £7000
(77,073)  Net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services (57,085)
Adjustments to net (surplus)/deficit on the provision of services for non-
(247,089) Note 33 (62,759)
cash movements
Adjustments for items included in the net (surplus)/deficit on the provision
146,342 ) ) ) ) ) L Note 33 138,880
of services that are investing and financing activities
(177,820) Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 19,036
(41,010) Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities Note 34 36,825
330,164 Net Cash Flows from Financing Activities Note 35 (41,479)
111,334 Net (increase)/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 14,382
161,238  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 49,904
49,904 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 35,522

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Notes to the
Accounts




Note 1 Accounting Policies

GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The Accounts and Audit Regulations2015 (S12015No
234) requirethe Council to prepare a Statement of
Accounts for eachfinancial year in accordance with
proper accountingpractices. For 2019/20, these
proper accountingpractices are the Code of Practice
on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2019/20 (the Code) supported by International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The Statement of Accounts has been prepared ona
‘going concern’ basis. The accounting convention
adopted in the Statement of Accountsis principally
historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain
categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments:

Assetclass

Property, Plantand Equipment: Dwellings

Property, Plantand Equipment: Other
Land and Buildings

Property, Plantand Equipment: Surplus
Assets

Investment Properties

Financial Instruments — Fair Value through
Profitor Loss

Pensions Assets

Pensions Liabilities

Measurement Basis in the Balance Sheet

Currentvalue, comprising existing use value for social housing
Dwellings arevalued using market prices for comparable properties,
adjusted to reflect occupancy undersecure tenancies.

Currentvalue, comprising existing use value

Where prices for comparable properties are availablein an active
market, properties are valued at market value taking into account the
existing use. Where no market exists or the property is specialised,
currentvalueis measuredat depreciatedreplacement cost.

Fair value

Fair value

Fair value

Fair value

Measured on an actuarial basis (see note 32)

The Statement of Accounts has been adjusted to reflect events after 31 March 2020 and beforethe date the
Statement was authorised forissue onlywhere the events provide evidence of conditions that existed at 31 March.

The Council’sover-arching accounting policies are set out below. Furtherdetail on theaccounting treatment
adopted for specific transactions and balances isincluded in relevant disclosure notes.
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ACCRUALS OF INCOME AND
EXPENDITURE

Activity is accounted for in the year that it takes place
rather than when cash payments are made or
received. In particular:

e Revenuefromthesaleof goodsor servicesis
recognised in accordance with theterms and
conditions of the contract.

o Suppliesarerecordedas expenditure whenthey
areconsumed —wherethereis agap between
the datesupplies arereceived and their
consumption, they are carriedas inventories on
the Balance Sheet.

e Expensesinrelation to services received
(including services provided by employees) are
recorded as expenditure when the services are
received rather than when payments are made.

e Interestreceivable oninvestments and payable
on borrowingsisaccounted foron the basis of
the effectiveinterest rate for therelevant
financial instrument rather thanthe cash flows
fixed or determined by the contract.

e Whererevenueand expenditure have been
recognised but cashhas not been received or
paid, adebtor or creditor fortherelevant
amountisrecordedin the Balance Sheet. Where
debts may not be settled, the balance of debtors
iswritten down and a charge madeto revenue
for theincomethat might not be collected.

e Accrualsarerecognised where the value exceeds
£10,000.

e The Council recognises revenue from contracts
with service recipients when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring promised

goods or services to arecipient, measuredas the
amount of the overall transaction price allocated
to that obligation.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cashisrepresented by cash in hand and deposits with
financial institutions repayable on notice of not more

than 24 hours demandwithout material penalty. Cash
equivalents are highly liquid investments that mature

in no morethan three days or less and that are readily
convertibleto known amounts of cash with low risk of
changeinvalue.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY

New Coderequirements aresetoutin Note 2. The
Council has notadopted any other new accounting
standards or amendments with a significantimpact
on the Council’s position.

INTERESTS IN COMPANIES AND OTHER
ENTITIES

The Council has material interests in subsidiaryand
associate companies, whichhave been consolidated
into the Council’s Group Accountson aline by line
basis for subsidiaries andthe equity method for
associates, after first realigning accounting policies
with the Council where appropriate and eliminating
intra-Grouptransactions.

Inthe Council single entity accounts, interests in
companies and otherentities are classifiedas long-
terminvestments and measured at cost less provision
for any losses.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment properties are measured initially at cost
and subsequently atfair value. Investment properties
arenotdepreciated butarerevaluedannually
according to market conditions at the year-end.

Revaluation gains and losses are recognisedin the
Financingand InvestmentIncome and Expenditure
line within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. However, regulationsdo not
permit unrealised gains andlosses to impact the
General Fund balance. Therefore, gains and losses are
reversed via the Movement in Reserves Statement
and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Net rental income together with any revaluation gains
and losses or impairments arerecognised in the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure
line within the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

SUPPORT SERVICES AND OVERHEADS

The costs of support services and overheads are
charged to those that benefit from the supplyor
servicein accordance with the absorption costing
principle. Thefull cost of overheadsand support
servicesisshared between usersin proportionto the
benefits received.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED BY
CAPITAL UNDER STATUTE

Legislation requires defined items of revenue
expenditure chargedto services within the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
to be treated as capital expenditure. All such
expenditureis transferred from the General Fund
balanceviathe Movement in Reserves Statement to
the Capital Adjustment Accountandisincluded in the
Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing disclosure
at Note 25.

ASSET RECLASSIFICATION

The Council adheres to CIPFA and RICSguidance on
the classification of properties. Where a property has
had a change of use the Council will reflect thisin the
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accounts and movements between asset classes are
usually between PPE and Investment Property. Upon
reclassificationassets are subsequently valued in line
with the relevant class of asset.

In certain cases, a property might be used for
combinationof investment and operational purposes.
In these instances the Councilwill split the valuation
of the property between PPE and Investment and
reflectthisin theaccounts.

ROUNDING

Itisnotthe Council’s policyto adjust forimmaterial
cross-casting differences between the main
statements and disclosure notes.

SCHOOLS

Local authority-maintained schools are considered to
be under the control of the Council. Consequently,
the income, expenditure, assets and liabilities of
maintained schools are accounted forin thesingle
entity accounts of the Council. The schools fall into
the following categories:

e 4 Maintained Nurseries

e 27 Voluntary Aided (26 Primaryand 1

Secondary)

e 7Community

e 2 Maintained Special.
Other types of schools, suchas academies and free
schoolsareoutside of the Council’s control and
therefore notincluded in this Statement of Accounts.

VALUE ADDED TAX

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account
excludes amounts relating to VAT and will beincluded
as an expenseonlyifitis notrecoverable from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivableis
excluded from income within the Council's Income
and Expenditureaccount.
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Note 2 Accounting Standards Issued but Not Yet Adopted

At the balance sheet date, thefollowing new
standards and amendments to existing standards
have been published but notyetadopted bythe
Code of Practice of Local Authority Accountingin
the United Kingdom:

e |FRS 16 Leases willrequire local authorities
thatare lessees to recognise most leases on
their balance sheets as right-of-use assets with
corresponding lease liabilities (thereis
recognitionfor low-value and short-term
leases). CIPFA/LASAAC have deferred
implementation of IFRS16for local
governmentto 1 April 2021.

e |AS 19 Employee Benefits willrequire the
remeasurement of net pension asset/liability
following plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements to be used to determine current
service costand net interest for the remainder
of the year after thechangeto the plan. The
updating of these assumptions onlyapplies to
changesfrom 15t April 2020 and, since this
could resultin positive, negative or no
movementin the net pension liability, no
prediction can be made of the possible
accounting impact.
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Note 3 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other
Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts containsestimated
figuresthatarebased on assumptions made by
the Council aboutthe future orsituations that
areotherwise uncertain. Estimates are made
using historical experience, currenttrendsand
other relevantfactors. However, because
balances cannot be determined with certainty,
actual results could be materially different
from the assumptions and estimates.

The itemsin the Council’s Balance Sheetat 31
March 2020 forwhich thereis a significant risk
of material adjustmentin theforthcoming
financial year areas follows:

Item Uncertainties Consequences if actual results differ from assumption
Valuation of Asset valuations are based on market prices and are A reduction in the estimated valuations would result in
operational periodically reviewed to ensure that the Council does not reductions to the Revaluation Reserve and / or a loss
property materially misstate its non-current assets. The Council’s recorded as appropriate inthe Comprehensive Income and
external valuers provided valuations as at 31 March 2020 Expenditure Statement. If the value of the Council's
for approximately 20% of its operational portfolio. The operational properties were to reduce by 10%, this would
remaining balance of operational properties were also result in a charge to the Comprehensive Income and
reviewed to ensure values reflect current values. Expenditure Statement of approximately £67m.
The outbreak of Covid-19 has impacted global financial Anincrease in estimated valuations would result in
markets and as at the valuation date, less weight can be increases to the Revaluation Reserve and/ or reversals of
attached to previous market evidence to inform opinions previous negative revaluations to the Comprehensive
of value. There is an unprecedented set of circumstances Income and Expenditure Statementand / or gains being
on which to base a judgement. recorded as appropriate inthe Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.
Valuations are therefore reported on the basis of
‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red Book Depreciation charges for operational buildings will change in
Global. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree direct relation to changes in estimated current value. The
of caution should be attached to the valuation. At the net book value of non-current assets subject to potential
current time, it is not possible to accurately predict the revaluation is £2.7 billion.
longevity and severity of the impact of Covid-19 on the
economy. Therefore, values have been based on the
situation prior to Covid-19, on the assumption that
values will be restored when the real estate market
becomes more fluid.
The estimated remaining useful life of all operational
assets is reviewed annually based on the advice from the
Council external valuers.
Fairvalue The Council’s external valuers use valuation techniques Estimated fair values may differ from the actual prices that
measurement to determine the fairvalue of investment property. This could be achieved inan arm'’s length transaction at the
of investment  involves developing estimates and assumptions reporting date.
property consistent with how market participants would price the

property. The valuers base their assumptions on
observable data as faras possible, but this is not always
available. In that case, the valuers use the best
information available.
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Note 3 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Items

Uncertainties

Consequences if actual results differ from
assumptions

Fairvalue
measurement
of investment
property
(continued)

Valuation of
HRA Dwellings

Pensions
Lia bility

At the current time, it is not possible to accurately predict the
longevity and severity of the impact of Covid-19 on the
economy. Therefore, it has been difficult to value property
assets. Values have been based on the situation prior to
Covid-19, on the assumption that values will be restored when
the real estate market becomes more fluid.

Valuations are therefore reported on the basis of ‘material
valuation uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red Book Global.
Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree of caution
should be attached to the valuation.

The HRA residential portfolio is valued based on a beacon
methodology. In order to value the whole portfolio, it was
necessary to research a number of information sources. These
include sales of directly comparable property, changes of
income flow for non-residential property, information
available ata local level showing house price movement plus
regional and National Indices.

Due to the impact of Covid-19, valuations are reported on the
basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per the RICS Red
Book Global. Consequently, less certainty and a higher degree
of caution should be attached to the valuation.

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on
several complex judgements relating to the discount rate
used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase,
changes in retirement ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on Pension Fund investments.

The Council has engaged Barnett Waddingham as its
consulting actuary to provide expert advice about the
assumptions to be applied. The ongoing impact of the Covid-
19 pandemic has created uncertainty surrounding illiquid
asset values. As such, the Pension Fund property and
infrastructure allocations as at 31 March 2020 are difficult to
value according to preferred accounting policy. Professional
valuers have not been actively valuing many similar sized
assets in the market due to the current lockdown
environment. As such values have been rolled over from the
end of February with an adjustment and may be inaccurate to
the true 31 March 2020 position.

A reduction in the estimate value of HRA dwellings
would be a reduction in the revaluation reserve or a
loss in the CIES. If the value of dwellings were to
reduce by 10% this would lead to a reduction in

value of about £155m.

Anincrease in estimated valuations would result in
increases to the Revaluation Reserve or gains being
recorded as appropriate inthe Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

A 0.25% increase in the discount rate will reduce the
net pension liability by £71.3m;

A 0.25% increase in the assumed level of pension
increases will increase the net pension liability by
£70.2m;

An increase of one year in longevity will increase the
net pension liability by £63.7m.
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Note 3 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Items

Uncertainties

Consequences if actual results differ from
assumptions

Business Rates

2019/20is the seventh year of the Business Rates Retention
Scheme and the second year of the London pilot scheme.
In 2019/20 the Council retained 48% (£1.067bn) of the
business rates income it collected,but paid a tariff of
approximately £0.941bn into the London pool.

The Council experienced very high levels of appeals against
the 2010 revaluation of business hereditaments when average
rateable values rose by 62% across the City. Most of the
appeals have been resolved with a residual number
outstanding with the Valuation Office Agency. In addition, the
2017 revaluation saw average rateable values rise by 17%. At
the same time a new check, challenge, appeal process was
introduced.

The impact of the new system remains highly uncertain with
no challenges lodged to date in Westminster. It is difficult to
determine the true amount of appeals provision due to the
fact that no appeals have been lodged and therefore we are
unable to calculate the actual future income loss. The council
has used a specialist in this field to help calculate an estimate
of appeals provision. The Collection Fund currently holds
£125m appeals provision to counter the potential impact of
successful appeals in future years.

The Council’s overall financial losses are protected
via the London Pool with any variance to the
Council’'s assumptions being offset by the safety
net payment entitlement for the London pool
which will be distributed according to each
Councils individual safety net position as
determined by central government (which is
accrued for atyear- end).

Thus, large falls in business rates income, including
the impact of a rise in appeals provision, will be
spread across the London pool. Therefore, the gain
and loss in business rates is spread across the 34
London authorities.

If London’s business rates income fell, the pool would
have a higher “safety net” threshold —95% rather
than the current 92.5% of the overall baseline
funding level. This reflects the greater reliance local
authorities will have on business rates and the fact
that, under the terms of the pilot, the 34 London
authorities will not collectively have less resources
than would have been the case with the previous
local government finance regime. The pool currently
has large growth, however in the event of a major fall
in income, including a large rise in appeals and the
potential economic impact of Covid-19, itis expected
that the council will lose no more than approx. £4.5m
in business rates income due to the safety net
protection (5% of £88.93m baseline funding level).
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Note 3 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of

Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Items Uncertainties Consequences if actual results differ from
assumptions
Impairment As at 31 March 2020, the Council had an outstanding balance An understatement of doubtful debts would lead to a

allowance for
doubtful debt

Valuation of
Group housing
dwellings

of short-term debtors totalling £189m. Against this debtors’
balance, there is an impairment allowance of £91m. It is not
certain that this impairment allowance would be sufficient as
the Council cannot assess with certainty which debts will be
collected or not. The economic impact of the Covid-19
pandemic has made the estimation of debt impairment more
difficult as there is more uncertainty about the economic
viability of debtors and hence their ability to settle their debts.

The value of the dwellings held by the Council’s subsidiaries
have been revalued from depreciated historic cost to existing
use value-social housing (EUV-SH) on consolidation. In
revaluing the dwellings, the value at 1 April 2020 was
estimated using an average of valuation indices for dwellings in
the relevant area. The indices used were the Land Registry,
Acadata and the Nationwide.

The outbreak of Covid-19 has had an unprecedented impact
on global financial markets and as at the valuation date, less
weight can be attached to previous market evidence to
inform opinions of value. Valuations are therefore reported
on the basis of ‘material valuation uncertainty’ as per the
RICS Red Book Global. Values have been based on the
situation prior to Covid-19, on the assumption that values
will be restored when the real estate market becomes more
fluid.

future adjustment and impairment to be reflected.
The impairment allowances held are based on
policies adapted to historic experience and success
rates experienced in collection. The nature of the
debt and service area have been considered and
further review has been carried out to reflect the
uncertainty of the collection rates as a result of
Covid-19. If collection rates were to deteriorate by
5% then the Council would need to review its policies
on the calculation of its impairment allowance for
doubtful debts.

A variation of +/- 1% in the indexed value would be
£0.59m on the EUV-SH of £59m.
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Note 4 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying theaccounting policies laid outin Note
1, the Council has had to make certaincritical
judgements about complextransactions or those
involving uncertainty about future events. In the
accounts, theseareas follows:

In management's judgement, the Council has
interests in other entities that fall within the
group boundary of the Council on the grounds
of control and significantinfluencein line with
the Code. The Council’sinterestsin
Westminster Community Homes Ltd and
Westminster Housing Investments Ltd are
material to the Council’s overallfinancial
position and therefore have been consolidated
within the Council’s groupaccounts. In October
2018, the Council decided to bring the housing
management services provided by City West
Homes in-house from 31st March 2019. Under
the termination agreement all assets and
liabilities transferred to the Council as at that
date. City West Homes Ltd and its subsidiary,
City West Homes Services Ltd, isin the process
of being formally wound up.

Thereisstill uncertainty about the implications
of Britain’s departure fromthe European
Union. Atthe currenttimeitis not possibleto
predictthe agreement that will bereached at
the end of the transition period. The
assumption has been made that this will not
significantlyimpairthe value of the Council’s
assets or changethediscountrate. However,
this assumption needs to berevisited and

reviewed regularly. Higherimpairment
allowances may need to be charged in the
futureif assetvaluesfall. If the discount rate
changes, the size of the net pension liability will
alsovary.

The Council has assessed the legal framework
underlying each type of school and determined
the treatment of non-current assets within the
financial statements according to whether it
owns or has some responsibility for, control
over or benefit fromthe service potential of
the premises and land occupied. The Council
has considered its accounting classification for
each school on anindividual case basisin
conjunctionwith relevant dioceses for
voluntary aided and voluntary controlled
schools. Asaresult, the Council:

o Recognises school assets for community
schoolsonits balance sheet because the
rights and obligations associated withsuch
schools rests with the Council; and

o Assessesthat theassets relating to
academies, voluntary aided (VA), voluntary
controlled (VC) or freeschoolsare not
controlled by the Council but, following
consultationand review, the VAand VC
schools have been deemed to be owned by
the relevant dioceses. Recognition of the
disposal of school assets on the Council’s
balance sheetoccurs on the date on which
a school converts to academy status, not
on thedate of any related announcement.

Neither is any impairment recognised by
the Council priorto conversion.

The Council collects approximately net £2.4bn
in business rates. The assumptions around the
outcome of appeals against the NNDR
valuations (either received to date or expected
in futureyears) represent a material and critical
judgement applied to theaccounts. The
appeals provision is empirically derived from
the experience with both the 2005and 2010
lists as well as appeals determinations so far
made againstthe 2017 list. The Council is
currentlyin the business rates pilotand the
pool will ensure that councils will not lose more
7.5% of their baseline funding, in our case 7.5%
of £88.93m whichis approximately £6.67m.
However, dueto thetechnical adjustment
relating to the Collection Fund Adjustment
Account, if the Council did enter the safety net
it would only impact the general fundtheyear
after this happens. Therefore, if the netrate
incomereduces belowthe levels set by central
governmentthe Council is expected to be
compensated via the pilot pool.

Dwellings held by Westminster Community
Homes Ltd have been re-valued to Existing Use
Value- Social Housing on consolidationinto the
Council’s Group Accounts to align with the
Council’s valuationof council dwellings. This is
because tenants occupy these dwellings on
assured tenancy terms similarto those of
council dwellingsexcept for the Rightto Buy.
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Note 5 Other Operating Income and Expenditure

The Council’s various income streams have been Other operating expenditure reported includes all levies payable, total payments made to the Government
assessed and classified in line with Chapter 2 of the Housing Receipts Pool in line with statutory arrangements for certain property sales withinthe Housing Revenue
2019/20 Code of Practice and revenue has been Accountand gains/losses generated fromin year disposals of non-current assets.
recognised accordingly, with specific consideration
given to: 2018/19 Restated* 2019/20
e implied or stated contractualterms for £000 £000
exchangetransactions 2,520 Levies 2,506
e obligating events and/or conditions 1,919 Payments to the Government Housing Capital Receipts Pool 3,911
attached to non-exchangetransactions, ) )
. . (12,660)  (Gains)/losses on the disposal of non-current assets (5,222)
where a party receives something of value
withoutdirectlygiving value in exchange 26,819  (Gains)/losses on acquisition of the business of City West Homes -
e thesignificance of theincomestreamto (11,328) Other income (605)
the Council.
7,270 Total 590

Government grants and third party contributions are
recognised when thereis reasonable assurance that
the Council willcomply with any conditions attached
to the payments, and that grant monies and
contributions will be received. Where conditions
attached to grants and contributions remain
outstanding, monies receivedto datearecarried
forward in the Balance Sheet as creditors (receipts in
advance) until the conditions have been satisfied.

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 6 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Financingand investmentincome and expenditure
includes interest receivable and payable on the
Council’sinvestment portfolio. The Council's net
rentalincome on the properties it holds purelyfor
investment purposesisalsoincluded. Italso includes
the interest element of the pension fundliability.

2018/19 2019/20
£000 £000
10,626 Interest payable and similar charges 10,507
17,286  Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) 16,269
(11,148) Interest receivable and similarincome (12,930)
1,634  Net (gains)/losses on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 883
(30,616)  Income and expenditure inrelation to investment properties and changes in their fair value (47,302)
(1,129)  Other investment income -
(13,347) Total (32,573)
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Note 7 Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income

This note consolidates all non-specific grants and 2018/19 2019/20
contributions receivable that cannot beidentified

with individualservice expenditure and therefore £000 £'000
cannot becredited to the gross income amount (54,728)  Council TaxIncome (57,319)
relevantto theservicearea. All capital grants and DR NerBmEste (RS e (108,521)

contributions are credited to non-specificgrant
income even if service-specific. The note also

identifies the Council's proportion of council taxand (127,918)  Capital grants and contributions (115,461)
business rates used to fund in year service activities.

(25,040)  Non-ringfenced government grants (34,219)

(350,317) Total (315,520)
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Note 8 Expenditure and Funding Analysis

The Expenditure and Funding Analysis demonstrates howthe Council has used available funding for the year (i.e. government gr ants, rents, council taxand business rates) in
providing services, in comparison with those resources that the Councilhas consumed orearned in accordance with generally a ccepted accounting practices. It also shows how
the Council has allocated this expenditure for decision making purposes between the Council’sExecutive Leadership Teams. Income and expenditure accounted for under
generally accepted accounting practices is presented more fullyin the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement .

Table A
2018/19 2019/20
Expenditure Adjustments between Net Expenditure in the Expenditure chargeable Adjustments between Net Expenditure
chargeable to GF and funding and accounting CIES to GF and HRA balances funding and accounting in the CIES
HRA balances basis (see Table D) basis (see Table D)
£'000 £000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £°000
(2,525) (87,855) 85,330  Finance and Resources* 17,282 (32,051) 49,333
(3,272) 372 (3,644)  Policy, Performance and Communications (2,220) 425 (2,645)
61,393 899 60,494  Adult Services 58,325 124 58,201
45,299 (3,418) 48,717  Childrens Services 45,599 (1,401) 47,000
19,181 (40,683) 59,864  City Management and Communities 23,343 (29,198) 52,541
34,162 5,602 28,560  Growth, GF-Housing and Planning 88,977 2,989 85,988
154,238 (125,083) 279,321  Net Cost of Services 231,306 (59,112) 290,418

*In 2018/19 City Treasurer and Corporate Services were shown separately. These have been included within Finance and Resourcesin 2019/20following a restructure.
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Note 8 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Table B

2018/19 Restated*

2019/20

Expenditure chargeable

Adjustments between

Net Expenditure in

Expenditure chargeable

Adjustments between

Net Expenditure in

to GF and HRA balances funding and accounting the CIES to GF and HRA balances funding and the CIES
basis accounting basis

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

57,698 50,428 7,270  Other Operating Income and Expenditure (17,248) (17,838) 590

(30,085) (16,738) (13,347)  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (48,593) (16,020) (32,573)

(281,805) 68,512 (350,317)  Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure (198,625) 116,895 (315,520)

(99,954) (22,881) (77,073)  Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (33,160) 23,925 (57,085)

*For further detail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 8 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Table C

2018/19 2019/20
Opening Balance  Surplus or Deficit on the Closing Balance Opening Balance  Surplus or Deficit on the Closing Balance

Provision of Services Provision of Services
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £°000
(58,865) (3,917) (62,782)  General Fund Balance (62,782) (530) (63,312)
(25,366) 8,132 (17,234)  Housing Revenue Account Balance (17,234) (131) (17,365)
(84,231) 4,215 (80,016) Sub-Total General Fund and Housing Revenue Account Balance (80,016) (661) (80,677)
(151,334) (116,564) (267,898)  General Fund Earmarked Reserves (267,898) (33,168) (301,066)
(9,169) 9,169 - Housing Revenue Account Reserves o - _
(5,643) 3,226 (2,417)  Schools Reserves (2,417) 669 (1,748)
(166,146) (104,169) (270,315) Sub-Total Earmarked and Schools Reserves (270,315) (32,499) (302,814)
(250,377) (99,954) (350,331) Total Reserves (350,331) (33,160) (383,491)
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Note 8 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Table D
Adjustments from the General Fund to arrive at the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement amounts:

2018/19 Restated** 2019/20
Adjustments for Net Change for  Other Differences Total Adjustments Net Change for Other Total
Capital Purposes Pensions Adjustments for Capital Pensions Differences Adjustments
Adjustments Purposes Adjustments e
£°000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £000 :
(85,718) (2,340) 202 (87,855)  Finance and Resources* (24,152) (8,272) 373 (32,051) ]é
(107) 410 69 372  Policy, Performance and Communications (38) 594 (131) 425 E
(110) 894 114 899  Adult Services (662) 1,010 (224) 124 g
(4,474) 879 177 (3,418)  Childrens Services (2,253) 1,143 (291) (1,401) é
(43,087) 1,813 591 (40,683)  City Management and Communities (30,863) 2,152 (487) (29,198) %
SN
6,553 662 (1,613) 5,602  Growth, GF-Housing and Planning 855 2,621 (487) 2,989 §
(126,943) 2,318 (460) (125,083) Net Cost of Services (57,113) (752) (1,247) (59,112) é
78,040 (27,612) - 50,428  Other Operating Income and Expenditure (17,838) - - (17,838) a
548 (17,286) - (16,738)  Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure (375) (16,269) 624 (16,020) g
126,951 (58,439) 68,512  Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income and Expenditure 110,298 - 6,597 116,895 g
(@]
Difference Between General Fund Surplus or Deficit and g
78,596 (42,580) (58,899) (22,881) the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 34,972 (17,021) 5,974 23,925 7

Suplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services

*In 2018/19 City Treasurer and Corporate Services were shown separately. These have been included within Finance and Resources in 2019/20following a restructure.

**For further detail, pleaserefer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment




Note 8 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

Adjustments for Capital purposes

This column addsin depreciationand impairment and
revaluation gains andlosses in the service line. For
other operating expenditure, it adjusts for capital
disposals with a transfer of income on disposal of
assets and the amounts written off for those assets.
For financing and investmentincome and
expenditure, itadjusts for the statutory charges for
capital financing and investmenti.e. Minimum
Revenue Provision andother revenue contributions
arededucted from other income and expenditure as
these are not chargeable under generally accepted
accounting practices. For taxation and non-specific
grantincomeand expenditure, capital grantsare
adjusted for income not chargeable under generally
accepted accounting practices. Revenue grants are
adjusted fromthosereceivable in the year to those
receivable without conditions or for which conditions
were satisfied throughout the year. The taxation and
non-specific grantincome and expenditurelineis
credited with capital grants receivablein the year
without conditionsor for which conditions were
satisfied in theyear.

Net change for the pensions adjustments

This column adjusts forthe net change for the
renewal of pension contributions and the addition of
IAS19 Employee Benefits pensionrelated expenditure
and income. For services, this represents the removal
of the employer pensioncontributions made by the
authority as allowed by statute and the replacement
with current service costsand past service costs. For
financing andinvestmentincome and expenditure,
this adjusts for the netinterest on the defined benefit
liability is charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Other differences

Other differences between amounts debited /
credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statementand amounts payable /
receivableto berecognised under statute. For
services, this represents removal of the annual leave
accrual adjustment. For financing and investment
income and expenditure the other differences column
recognises adjustments to General Fundfor the
timing differences for premiums and discounts and
financial instruments. The charge under taxationand
non-specific grantincome and expenditure represents
the difference between whatis chargeable under
statutory regulations for Council Taxand Non-
Domestic Rates that was projected to bereceived at
the start of theyear and theincome recognised under
generally accepted accounting practices in the Code.
Thisis a timing difference, as any difference will be
broughtforwardin future Surpluses or Deficits on the
Collection Fund.
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Note 8 Expenditure and Funding Analysis (continued)

EXPENDITURE AND INCOME ANALYSED BY NATURE

The Council’sexpenditure and incomeis analysed by typein the table below:

2018/19 Restated* 2019/20
£000 £000
177,321  Employee Benefits Expenses 250,943
855,960  Other Service Expenses 705,004
27,912  Interest Payments 26,776
2,519  Payments to Housing Capital Receipts Pool 3,911
1,919  Precepts and Levies 2,506
87,233  Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairments 77,407
1,152,864 Total Expenditure 1,031,308
(592,473)  Government Grants and Contributions (534,169)
(395,265)  Fees, Charges and Other Service Income (405,471)
(197,359) In‘cor‘ne from Council Tax, Non-Domestic Rates, (165,840)
District Rate Income
(33,692)  Gain the Disposal of Assets (5,222)
(11,148)  Interest and Investment Income (12,930)

(1,229,937)

Total Income

(1,088,393)

(77,073)

Surplus on the Provision of Services

(57,085)

*For further detail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment

The Council’sFees, Charges and Other Service Incomeis analysed by typein the

table below:
2018/19 Fees, Charges and Other Service Income 2019/20
£7000 £/000
(154,730)  Rent (161,573)
(86,558)  Parking Income (87,733)
(6,991)  Planning Application Fees (6,292)
(56,007)  Schools Income (73,921)
(18,441) Commercial Waste (18,684)
(8,473) Road Management (9,470)
(64,065)  Other Income (47,798)
(395,265) Total Income (405,471)

Benefits paid during employment

Short-term employee benefits such as wages and salaries, paid annual leave, sick

leave and expenses are paid on a monthly basis and reflected as expenditurein the

relevantservice linein the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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Note 9 Section 75

Social Care Gross expenditureincurred by the Council underthe section 75 agreement was £10.998min 2019/20(£41.775m
in 2018/19). Gross income received was £10.998m in 2019/20 (£41.775min 2018/19). The reduction between

The Council has enteredinto a non-pooled the two financial yearsis due to changesin the scope of the Better Care Fund programme.

partnershiparrangement under section 75 of the
National Health Service Act 2006 withthe Central 2018/19 2019/20
London and West London Clinical Commissioning
Groups for the provision of Adult Social Care and
Health Services with primary support needs of £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
physical support, mental health support, learning
disability support, support with memory and
cognition, social support and services to safeguard 21,678 12,620 34,298  Non - Better Care Fund - 7,163 7,163
adults. Theaimis to meet the needs of peopleliving
in the Westminster City Council area.

wcc CCGs Total .75 wcc CCGs Total

4,806 2,671 7,477  Better Care Fund Lead Commissioning - 3,835 3,835

26,484 15,291 41,775 Total - 10,998 10,998

Any surplus or deficit generated from the
arrangementis the responsibility of the respective
partner to whomiitis attributed and is shared in
proportion to the funding. The partner authorities
areresponsiblefor managingthe individual schemes
for which they have lead responsibility.
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Note 10 Officers’ Remuneration (including termination
benefitsand members’ allowances)

Note 10a Senior Officers’ Remuneration
Remuneration disclosures for Senior Officers whose salary is £150,000 or more per year/statutory post/reports directly to Hea d of Paid Service (HoPS).

2018/19 Salary, Feesand  Deferred Pay** Private Health Pension Election Expenses Compensation Total
Allowances* Insurance / Contributions Expenses*** for Loss of

Benefits in Kind Office °

&

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ —

Chief Executive -S Love 188,700 16,887 - 51,154 2,355 - - 259,096 g

City Treasurer (Section 151 Officer) (Ex) 67,516 20,422 5,376 22,221 25 - - 115,560 ,g

Executive Director of Finance Resources 11,237 - - 2,764 - - - 14,001 g

Executive Director Growth, Planning and Housing 149,298 13,872 - 40,263 502 - - 203,935 g

Bi Borough Executive Director of Adults Social Care 149,298 7,432 3,580 39,408 - - - 199,718 g

Executive Director of City Management & Communities (Ex) 126,514 12,307 - 34,150 - - - 172,971 E

Executive Director of City Management & Communities 31,787 - - 7,820 - - - 39,607 z

Bi Borough Executive Director of Children's Services 149,273 15,123 - 18,364 527 - - 183,287 %

»

Director of Communication and Strategy- J Corkey 157,447 13,525 1,329 42,386 - - - 214,687 6'

Her Majesty's Coroner - Inner West London - F Wilcox 160,283 - - 40,062 - 667 - 201,012 E

Director of Corporate Services (Ex) 70,754 19,741 3,845 - - - - 94,340 §

Director of Public Health (Ex) 56,978 18,381 4,569 = = 1,141 68,374 149,443 é
Director of Public Health (Ex) 31,425 - - - - - - 31,425
Director of Public Health (Ex) 60,259 - - - - - - 60,259
Director of Public Health 5,000 - - - - - - 5,000
Director of Law 121,604 12,173 33,671 - - - 167,448
Director of People Services 129,429 12,173 2,897 35,547 - - - 180,046

Acting City Treasurer (Section 151 Officer) 45,333 4,549 2,571 5,382 - - - 57,835




Note 10 Officers’ Remuneration (including termination benefits and members’ allowances) (continued)

2019/20 Notes Salary, Fees Deferred Private Health Pension Election Expenses Compensation Total
and Pay** Insurance /  Contributions Expenses for Loss of
Allowances* Benefits in Kind Office

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £

Chief Executive -S Love 211,722 18,870 - 56,726 4,249 - - 291,567
Executive Director of Finance Resources - G Almeroth 169,206 1,249 - 31,219 697 - - 202,371 2
(<)}
Executive Director Growth, Planning and Housing - B Brownlee 169,206 16,589 - 45,706 405 62 - 231,968 —
>
2
Bi Borough Executive Director of Adults Social Care - B Flaherty A 169,206 16,589 3,024 46,449 - - - 235,268 E
>
Executive Director of City Management & Communities — S Sutton 144,102 12,356 1,750 38,919 291 - - 197,418 ;
o
(@)
Bi Borough Executive Director of Children's Services (Ex) — M Caslake B 48,669 16,589 - 16,054 - 7 - 81,319 8
2
Bi Borough Executive Director of Children's Services — S Newman C 137,961 4,939 - 35,153 291 - - 178,344 7
N
(=]
Executive Director of Policy, Performance and Communications -J Corkey 160,308 14,435 1,398 43,331 - - - 219,472 =
S~
[
Her Majesty's Coroner - Inner West London - F Wilcox D 162,935 - 4,874 40,789 - - - 208,598 g
[ ]
Director of Public Health - H Al-Sharifi E 251,663 - - - - - - 251,663 =
o
Director of Law —T Shawkat 131,524 12,416 3,282 36,217 1,934 - - 185,373 a
3
Director of People Services — L Witham 143,632 12,645 3,020 39,187 = = = 198,484 3
=
3
* Salary, Fees and Allowances include elements such as market forces supplement, honorarium and allowances for election responsibilities. g
c
=
**Deferred Pay relates to 2018/19 pay paidin 2019/20. a

*** A new columnwas created for election expenses this year and the 2018/19 note was restated to reflect the change.




Note 10 Officers’ Remuneration (including termination benefits and members’ allowances) (continued)

A) The Bi-Borough Executive Director of Adult Social Care is employed by Westminster City Council. The costs of this post are shared b etween the Royal Borough of Kensington
& Chelsea and Westminster City Council. The share was 50% RBKC, 50%WCC.

B) The post holder ceased on 14 July 2019.

C) The Postholder commencedon 22 October 2019. The Bi-Borough Executive Director of Children'sServices is employed by Westminster City Council. The costs of this postare
shared between the Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea and Westminster City Council. The share was 50% RBKC; 50% WCC, the same as 2018-19

D) The post of Her Majesty's Coroner forthe Inner West London Coroner's Districtis shared across four Londonboroughs based on populationshare. The currentshare based
on mid-2014 population per Boroughis 25.8% Westminster City Council, 22.5% Merton, 17.2% RBKC and 34.5% Wandsworth (samerateas 2018-19).

E) The Bi-BoroughInterim Director of Public Health is employed by Westminster City Council. The costs of this postare shared between the Royal Borough of Kensington &
Chelseaand Westminster City Council. The share was 44% RBKC, 56% WCC.

F) A decision was made that all staff would be paid their deferred pay in fullfrom the beginningof 2019/20. Therefore 2018/19 deferred pay was paid in April2019 and 2019/20
deferred pay was paid monthly during 2019/20. As a result, this year’s note includes 2018/19 and 2019/20deferred pay (included in the salary column). The current year salary
columnincludes theincreasedsalary andthe deferred column includes 2018/19 deferred pay.

G) A new column was created for election expenses this year and the 2018/19 note was restated to reflect the change.
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Note 10 Officers’ Remuneration (including termination benefits and members’ allowances) (continued)

Note 10b Other Employees with
Remuneration over £50,000

2018/19 2019/20
The Council’sother employees receivingmorethan No of No of
£50,000remuneration forthe year (excluding Employees Employees
employer’s pension contributions) were paid the
following amounts. 208 £50,000 - £54,999 209
115 £55,000 - £59,999 151
57 £60,000 - £64,999 97 g
45 £65,000 - £69,999 48 g
35 £70,000 - £74,999 38 §
>
20 £75,000 - £79,999 32 E
14 £80,000 - £84,999 28 §
19 £85,000 - £89,999 13 g
13 £90,000 - £94,999 13 g
8 £95,000 - £99,999 8 ?
4 £100,000 - £104,999 5 §
2 £105,000 - £109,999 2 g
- £110,000 - £114,999 3 g
1 £115,000 - £119,999 6 é
1 £120,000 - £124,999 1 %
a
1 £125,000 - £129,999 1
2 £130,000 - £134,999 1
1 £135,000 - £139,999 2
1 £140,000 - £144,999 2
1 £145,000 - £149,999 1

548 Total 661




Note 10 Officers’ Remuneration (including termination benefits and members’ allowances) (continued)

Note 10c Exit Packages

TThe number of exit packages with total cost per bandand total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set outin the table below:

2018/19 2019/20
(b) Number of (c) Number of (d) Total number of Total cost of exit (a) Exit package cost band (b) Number of (c) Number of (d) Total number of  Total cost of exit
compulsory other departures exit packages by packages in each (including special payments) compulsory other departures exit packages by packages in each
redundancies agreed cost band [(b) + (c)] band redundancies agreed cost band [(b) + (c)] band °
[<2]
£000 £000 -
61 - 61 482 £0- £20,000 42 - 42 305 ]z>
2
29 - 29 781 £20,001 - £40,000 11 - 11 317 ;C>
2
>
6 - 6 308 £40,001 - £60,000 2 - 2 105 g
4 - 4 254 £60,001 - £80,000 - - - - g
w
3 - 3 277 £80,001 - £100,000 1 - 1 89 S
2
(-]
4 - 4 534 £100,001 - £150,000 2 - 2 258 E
N
1 - 1 180 £150,001 - £200,000 1 - 1 199 ?
=
- - - - £300,001 - £350,000 1 - 1 333 9
=]
(%]
108 - 108 2,816 Total 60 - 60 1,606 6'
5
The Council terminated the contracts of 60 employees in 2019/20. Of the total payment of £1.606m, there were no enhancements of retirement benefits. i
(@)
Note 10d Termination Benefits ©
=
wm

Termination benefits are payable following a decision by the Councilto terminate an officer’s employment before their normalretirement date or an officer’sdecision to accept
voluntary redundancyin exchange for those benefits. Costs are charged on an accruals basis to the respective Service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement at the earlier of when the Councilcan no longer withdraw the offer of the benefits or when the Council recognises costs for a restructuring.

Where termination benefits include the enhancement of pension benefits, regulations req uire the General Fund to be charged with theamount payable to the pension fund
rather than theamount calculated under accounting standards. Entries are made in the Movement in Reserves Statement to trans fer the accounting standards based entries to
the Pension Reserve and replace these with the amount payable to the pension fund.

Note 10e Members’ Allowances

The Council paidallowances to its members of £0.967min 2019/20 (£0.964min 2018/19).




Note 11 External Audit Fees

The Council hasincurred the following costsin
relation to the audit of the Statement of Accounts,
certificationof grant claims and statutory
inspections andto non-audit services provided by
the Council’s externalauditors:

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £7000
143 Fees payable to external auditors with regard to external audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for 143
the year
26  Fees payable to external auditors forthe certification of grant claims and returns for the year 38
- Fees payable in respect of other services provided by external auditors during the year relating to 18/19 Audit* 15
4 Fees payable in respect of Teacher's Pension audit 10
3 Fees payablein respect of audit of pooling of capital receipts 5
13 Fees payable in respect of CFO Insights toolkit -
189 Total 211

* The total fees of £211Kin 2019/20 include £15K thatisin respect of 2018/19.
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Note 12 Dedicated Schools Grant

The council’s expenditure on schools is funded
primarily by grant monies provided by the Education
and Skills Funding Agency, the Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG). DSGisringfenced and canonlybe
applied to meet expenditure properly included in the
schools budget, as defined in the School Finance and
Early Years (England) (No 2) Regulations 2018. The
schools budgetincludes elements for arange of
educational services provided on an authority-wide
basis and for theindividual schools budget (ISB),
whichis divided intoa budget shareforeach
maintained school.

Details of the Schools Budget funded by DSG
receivablefor 2019/20are as follows:

Central Individual Total 2019/20 Total 2018/19
Expenditure Schools Budget

£000 £000 £000 £000

Final DSG before Academy Recoupment 154,211 152,561
Academy figure recouped (67,642) (66,306)
Total DSG after Academy recoupment 86,569 86,255
Plus: Brought forward 2,581 4,079
Less: Carry forward projected (2,581) (4,079)
Agreed initial budgeted distribution 21,009 65,560 86,569 86,255
In year adjustments - (2,885) (2,885) (3,789)
Final budgeted distribution 21,009 62,675 83,684 82,466
Less Actual central expenditure (20,067) - (20,067) (3,777)
Less Actual ISB deployed to schools - (64,188) (64,188) (80,188)
(Drawdown from)/Contribution to DSG Reserve = 372 372 -
Estimated Carry Forward to 2020/21 942 (1,141) (199) (1,499)
Total 2,382 2,581
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Note 13 Grant Income

The Council credited the following grants,
contributions and donations to the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statementin 2019/20.

2018/19  Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income 2019/20
£'000 Non-Ringfenced Government Grants (Revenue) £'000
(12,717)  Section 31 Grant (13,298)
- Covid 19 Grant (9,125)

(8884)  New Homes Bonus (8370)
(3413)  Collection Allowance — Business Rates and Business Rates Supplement (3,426)
(26)  Other Grants Credited to Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income -
(25,040) Sub-Total (34,219)
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Note 13 Grant Income (continued)

2018/19 Restated Credited to Services 2019/20
£000 £000
(204,252)  Housing Benefits Subsidy (191,393)

(82,466)  Dedicated Schools Grant (83,684)

(31,250)  Public Health Grant (30,425)

(15,291)  Better Care Funding - Clinical Commissioning Group element** (19,444)

(12,317)  Improved Better Care Funding Programme (15,807) g
(8,517)  Education and Skills Funding Agency Grant (8,307) g
(6,921)  Flexible Housing Support Grant (6,869) §

2
(2,120)  Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Grant (4,338) E
(4,453)  Pupil Premium Grant (4,095) g
(827)  Social Care Support Grant* (2,260) g
(237)  DFE Teachers Pay Grant & TPECG* (1,538) g
(1,323)  Winter Pressures Grant* (1,323) ?
(1,379)  Housing Benefit Subsidy Administration Grant (1,241) §
(1,147)  Discretionary Housing Payments Grant (1,078) g
(1,062)  Universal Infant Free School Meals (903) %
(1,227)  Troubled Families grants (893) é
(1,941)  Other Government Grants*** (7,869) %
(2,960)  Other Non-Government grants and contributions (3,022)
(379,690) Sub-Total (384,489)
(404,730) Total (418,708)

* Grantsincludedin Other Government Grants in 2018/19 have been disclosed separately where equivalent
2019/20 grantsareabove £1m.

**Thisis notagrantbutacontribution from CCG to cover health and social care. 2018/19 contributions have been
added as a comparator.

*** Other Government grants consist of 50 grants, none of whichindividually are over£1m.




Note 13 Grant Income (continued)

2018/19 Capital Grants and Contributions 2019/20
£000 £000
(24,109) Community Infrastructure Levy (38,368)
(41,233)  S106 Contributions - Affordable Housing Fund General Fund (37,330)
(24,410)  S278 Contributions (18,486)
(2,131)  Transport for London Grants (6,556)
(1,285)  GLA Contributions (6,076)
(7,667)  S106 Contributions - General (2,483)
(873)  DfE Grants (1,857)
(50) Disabled Facilities Grant (1,452)

- Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea Contributions (1,026)

(13,473)  S106 Contributions - Affordable Housing Fund - HRA =
(7,223)  Free Schools Grant -
(1,454)  House of Commons Contributions -
(1,212)  Cabinet Office Contributions -

(2,798)  Other Capital Grants & Contributions (1,827)

(127,918) Total (115,461)
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Note 13 Grant Income (continued)

2018/19  Capital Grants Receipts in Advance (Non-Current) 2019/20
Restated
£000 £000
(67,773)  S106 / S278 Contributions (54,353)
(15,103)  Transport for London Grants* (26,119)
- School Condition Allocation Grant (1,503)
(796)  Basic Need Grant** (1,094)
(1,527)  Other Government Grants** (622)
(980)  Other Grants and Contributions (850)
(86,179) Total (84,541)

* Transportfor LondonGrants were disclosed ontwo separatelinesin last year’s accounts and have been
consolidatedin 2018/19 above.

* *Grantsincluded in Other Government Grants in 2018/19 have been disclosed separately where equivalent
2019/20 grants areabove £1m.
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2018/19 Revenue Grants and Contributions Receipts in Advance (Current) 2019/20
£000 £000

- Section 31 Grant (9,183)

(1,075) New Homes Bonus (267)
(1,098)  Other Government Grants (1,376)
(1,470)  Other non government grants and contributions (658)

(3,643) Total (11,484)




Note 14 Trading Operations

The Council has established various trading units 2018/19 2019/20

wheretheserviceisrequired to operateina

commercial environment by generating income from Turnover Expenditure (Surplus) /Deficit  Trading Unit Turnover Expenditure  (Surplus) /Deficit

either other parts of the Authority, other £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

organisations or the public to either offset (2,011) 3229 1218 Street Markets (1,940) 2790 350

expenditureincurred or, in certain instances, operate

within an approvedlevel of subsidy (343) 800 457  Building Control (513) 1,417 904
] ) ) o (301) 592 291  Cemeteries (327) 774 447

Trading operations areincorporated withinthe

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. (18,455) 18,555 100 Trade Refuse (18,713) 20,151 1438

(21,110) 23,176 2,066 Net deficit on trading operations (21,493) 25,132 3,639
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Note 15 Agency Services

2018/19 2018/19 2019/20 2019/20 TRANSPORT FOR LONDON

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 TransportforLondon reimburses the council for
works undertaken on the highway which aim to

Transport for London promote sustainable transport and improve the

(6,238) Contributions (7,190) public realm, includingtraffic management schemes.
_ During 2019/20£7.19m of works were undertaken
6,238 Expenditure 7,190 for TEL

- (Surplus)/ Deficit -

INNER WEST LONDON CORONER'’S

Inner West London Coroner's District DISTRICT
(1.155) Contributions (1,129) The Inner West London Coroner's District was set up
1,556 Expenditure 1,523 by statute and provides services to fourlocal
401 (Surplus)/ Deficit 304 authorities (Kensington & Chelsea, Merton,

Wandsworth and Westminster City Council).
Duringtheyear £1.52m of expenditure was incurred
Collection of Mayoral CIL by the Coroners Service towards which contributions
(16,762) Contributions (16,139) were received or accrued totalling £1.13mfromthe
other threelocal authorities this year. The balance of

(670)  Proportion retained by WCC (see note) (646) £0.39mis Westminster's contribution to the service.

Thames Water
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(4,385) Contributions (4,492)
3,342 Expenditure 3,486
(1,043) (Surplus)/ Deficit (1,006)

(1,312) Net Surplus (1,258)




Note 15 Agency Services (continued)

COLLECTION OF MAYORAL CIL

The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a planning charge, introduced by the Planning Act 2008, as a tool for
local authoritiesin England and Wales to help deliver infrastructure to support the development of their area. The
Levy was ratified on 29th February 2012 andapplies to developments agreed after 1st April2012.

The ClLis charged on most developmentsin Central London at the following rate:

e Zone 1boroughs- £50 per square metre: Camden, City of London, City of Westminster, Hammersmithand
Fulham, Islington, Kensington and Chelsea, Richmond-upon-Thames, Wandsworth.

The collectionof the ClLis delegated to the relevant planningauthorityin each administrative area and the
planning authorityis able to retain 4% of the levy to cover the costs of administration and collection.

During 2019/20, Mayoral CILcontributions of £16.14m is forecast to bereceived, the balance of £0.65mis
retained by Westminster to cover administrative costs.

THAMES WATER

The council charges its Housing tenants for water rates on behalf of Thames Water. Theamount repayable to
Thames Water is reduced by a commission, void rate, arrears and bad debt provision, all at fixed percentages
based on the total water charge.

Water Rate receipts amounted to Payments to Thames Water at the end of 2019/20amounted to £4.50m,
£3.49mwas transferred to Thames Water. The commissionelementis £1.01m.

In August 2018 Thames Water Utilities issued Westminster City Council (WCC)with notification of their decisionto
bring customerbilling backin-house. From 31 March 2020, WCC will no longer collect tenant water charges on
their behalf. WCCisnotalonein this changeto beimplemented by Thames Water, as the billing process is being
broughtbackin-house fromlocal authorities across the board.
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4 2 Notes Supporting the Movement
*&e¢ | in Reserves Statement



Note 16 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and
Funding Basis Under Regulations

The resources available to the Councilin any financial year andthe expenses that are charged against those resources are specified by statute (the Local Gov ernment Act
2003 and the 2003 Regulations). Where the statutory provisions differ fromthe accruals basis used in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
adjustments to the accounting treatment are made in the Movementin Reserves Statement (MiRS) so that usable reserves reflect the funding available at the year-end.
Unusablereserves are created to manage the timing differences between the accountingand funding bases. The material adjustments are summarised in the table
below, with details in the note following.

Expense

Accounting Basis in CIES

Funding Basis in MiRS

Adjustment Account

Property, plant and Equipment

Intangible Assets

Investment Properties

Revenue Expenditure Funded
from Capital under Statute

Capital Grants and Contributions

Financial Instruments

Pensions Costs

Council Tax

Business Rates

Holiday Pay

Depreciation and revaluation/impairment losses

Amortisation and impairment

Movements in fair value

Expenditure incurred in 2019/20

Grants that became unconditional in 2019/20 or were
received in 2019/20 without conditions

Premiums payable and discounts receivable on the early
repayment of borrowing in 2019/20

Interest receivable in 2019/20 on an amortised cost basis

Movements in pensions assets and liabilities (see Note 32)

Accrued income from 2019/20 bills

Accrued income from 2019/20 bills

Projected cost of untaken leave entitlements at 31 March
2020

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) to cover historical cost
determined in accordance with the 2003 Regulations

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) to cover historical cost
determined in accordance with the 2003 Regulations

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) to cover historical cost
determined in accordance with the 2003 Regulations

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) to cover historical cost
determined in accordance with the 2003 Regulations

No credit

Deferred debits and credits of premiums and discounts from
earlier years in accordance with the 2003 Regulations

Interest due to be received on soft loans in 2019/20

Employer’'s pensions contributions payable and direct payments
made by the Council to pensioners for 2019/20

Demand on the Collection Fund for 2019/20 plus share of
estimated surplus for 2018/19

Budgeted income receivable from the Collection Fund for 2019/20
plus share of estimated surplus for 2018/19

No charge

Capital Adjustment Account

Capital Adjustment Account

Capital Adjustment Account

Capital Adjustment Account

Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve (amounts
unapplied at 31 March 2020)

Capital Adjustment Account (other amounts)

Financial Instruments Adjustment Account

Pensions Reserve

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Collection Fund Adjustment Account

Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account
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Note 16 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations (continued)

2018/19 Restated** Usable Reserves
General Housing Capital Major Capital Unusable
Fund Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants Relevant Unusable Reserve*
o Reserves
Balance Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied
£'000 £7000 £7000 £'000 £7000 £'000
Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement differ from increases/decreases in =
revenue for the year calculated in accordance with statutory 2
requirements: —
S
Financial instruments (369) 77 B B B 292 F!nanc!al Instruments Adjustmgnt Account / E
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve >
2
Pensions costs (42,580) - - - - 42,580 Pensions Reserve E
e
Council tax (58,439) = = = = 58,439 Collection Fund Adjustment Account z
~
Holiday pay (459) - - - - 459 Accumulated Absences Account E
S~
[
(=]
Capital expenditure 46,302 3,725  (113,642) (24,256) (127,653) 215,524 Capital Adjustment Account 8
[ ]
Capital and Revenue Financing %
e
=
(%]
Resources set aside for capital financing 9,067 21,902 45,774 24,256 111,652 (212,651) Capital Adjustment Account 3
5
=
Use of capital receipts for revenue purposes (2,029) (78) 2,107 - - - >
8
S
Recognition and transfer on realisation of deferred capital receipts - - (118) - - 118 Deferred Capital Receipts =
Total adjustments (48,507) 25,626  (65,879) - (16,001) 104,761

*Details of movementsin unusable reserves arein note 17.
**For further detail, pleaserefer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment




Note 16 Adjustments Between Accounting Basis and Funding Basis Under Regulations (continued)

2019/20 Usable Reserves
. . . o Relevant Unusable Reserve*
General Fund Housing Cap!|tal Maj.o r el Unusable
Revenue Receipts Repairs Grants
Balance . Reserves
Account Reserve Reserve Unapplied
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Adjustments to Revenue Resources
Amounts by which income and expenditure included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement differ from =
increases / decreases in revenue for the year calculated in ]
accordance with statutory requirements: =
2
Financial instruments (322) 59 - - - 263 Financial Instruments Adjustment Account =
=
Pensions costs (17,022) - - - - 17,022 Pensions Reserve E
e
Council tax 6,597 S = s = (6,597) Collection Fund Adjustment Account z
o
Holiday pay (198) (163) - - - 361 Accumulated Absences Account E
S~
[
S
Capital expenditure 11,411 12,562 (23,481) (23,331) (75,354) 98,193 Capital Adjustment Account =
[ ]
Capital and Revenue Financing %
3
=
(%]
Resources set aside for capital financing 14,002 = 51,757 23,331 68,819 (157,909) Capital Adjustment Account z
3
z
Use of capital receipts for revenue purposes (3,766) (50) 3,816 - - - >
g
S
Recognition and transfer on realisation of deferred capial receipts 815 - (455) - = (360) Deferred Capital Receipts =
Total adjustments 11,517 12,408 31,637 - (6,535) (49,027)

*Details of movements in unusable reserves arein Note 17.




Note 17 Unusable Reserves

Adjustments between Accounting and Funding
Basis 2018/19 Restated*

Unusable Reserves Opening Balance 1 April 2018  Other Comprehensive  Adjustments to Capital and Other  Closing Balance
Income and Revenue Revenue Movements 31 March 2019
Expenditure 2018/19 Resources Financing

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Revaluation Reserve (455,974) (63,189) - - 68,405 (450,758) °
-]
w
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve (223) 223 - - - 0 —
>
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 2,725 - (1,342) = = 1,383 E
c
>
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve - - 1,634 1,634 ;
a
(@)
Pensions Reserve 697,568 (38,469) 42,580 - - 701,679 8
2
pur
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (76,202) - 58,439 - - (17,763) :
(=]
=
Accumulated Absences Account 1,031 - 459 = = 1,490 g
(=)
N
Capital Adjustment Account (1,803,523) - 215,573 (212,701) (68,405) (1,869,056) ?
Deferred Capital Receipts (2,470) - - 118 - (2,352) &
%
Total (1,637,068) (101,435) 317,343 (212,583) - (1,633,743) 3
=
m
. . . . >
*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment a
S
=
=
wv




Note 17 Unusable Reserves (continued)

Adjustments between Accounting and Funding

Basis 2019/20
Unusable Reserves Opening Balance 1 April 2019  Other Comprehensive  Adjustments to Capital and Other  Closing Balance
Income and Revenue Revenue Movements 31 March 2020
Expenditure 2019/20 Resources Financing

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revaluation Reserve (450,758) (67,299) - = 18,384 (499,673) o
[+
Financial Instruments Revaluation Reserve 1,383 - (620) - - 763 :
>
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account 1,634 - 883 - - 2,517 E
c
Pensions Reserve 701,679 (93,911) 17,022 - - 624,790 E
o
Collection Fund Adjustment Account (17,763) - (6,597) = = (24,360) g
2
Accumulated Absences Account 1,490 - 361 - - 1,851 a
N
(=]
Capital Adjustment Account (1,869,056) - 139,013 (198,729) (18,384) (1,947,156) Q
[
(=)
Deferred Capital Receipts (2,352) - - (360) (2,712) S
[ ]
Total (1,633,743) (161,210) 150,062 (199,089) - (1,843,980) 5
0
—
(@]
—
=
>
(@)
(@)
o
c
=
=
wm




Note 18 Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover contingencies. Earmarked reserves are created by appropriatingamounts out of the
General Fund Balance in the Movementin Reserves Statement.

Where expenditure has been incurred which is to be financed from an earmarked reserve, the expenditureis charged to the relevant service withinth e Surplus or Deficit onthe
Provisionof Services within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. An amount is then transferred from the earmarked reserve to the General Fund Balancevia
anentryin the Movementin Reserves Statement.

Earmarked Reserves 1 April 2018 Transfers Transfers 31 March 2019 Reclassification Transfers Transfers 31 March 2020
Out In Out In

[=)

&

£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £/000 £000 £'000 £000 —_

>

Adults Services Reserve (6,551) - (5,149) (11,700) (96) - (1,297) (13,093) %

c

Business Rate Equalisation Reserve - - (48,948) (48,948) - - - (48,948) E

. Lo o 3

Business Rates net contribution to the pool, timing [e]

) - - (6,000) (6,000) - - - (6,000) c

difference 2

a

Children's Services Reserve (5,234) 771 (1,071) (5,534) (50) 1,959 (1,267) (4,892) S

=

(-]

Contract Risk Reserve (11,713) - - (11,713) 7,175 530 (12,117) (16,125) E

N

(=)

Covid 19 Reserve - - - - - - (10,000) (10,000) e

=

o

Dedicated Schools Grant (4,079) 1,498 - (2,581) - 1,048 (849) (2,382) o=

(%]

—

Digitalisation Reserve - - (5,000) (5,000) - - - (5,000) 3

T

Economic recession not covered by safety net - - (7,000) (7,000) - - - (7,000) g

(@)

Economy and Enterprise Reserve (1,992) 604 (505) (1,893) - 307 - (1,586) 8

=

=

Housing Benefits Reserve (1,000) - - (1,000) - - - (1,000) ot
Infrastructure reserve (25,213) 3,467 (1,928) (23,674) 1 71 - (23,602)
Insurance Reserve (12,603) - (818) (13,421) - 712 - (12,709)
Invest to Save Reserve (24,907) 1,119 - (23,788) - 165 (4,500) (28,123)
Learning and Skills Council Reserve (1,673) - (622) (2,295) - - (54) (2,349)
Modermnisation Reserve (8,000) - - (8,000) - - - (8,000)

MRP Equalisation Reserve (7,187) - (3,500) (10,687) (13,738) - - (24,425)




Note 18 Transfer to/from

Earmarked Reserves (continued)

Earmarked Reserves 1 April 2018 Transfers Transfers 31 March 2019 Reclassification Transfers Transfers 31 March 2020
Out In Out In
My Westminster - - - - (3,324) 878 - (2,446)
Property Modernisation Reserve - 1,096 (4,500) (3,404) - - - (3,404)
Public Health Reserve (6,290) 15 - (6,275) - 989 - (5,286)
Business Rates Section 31 Grant Timing Reserve - - (6,000) (6,000) - - - (6,000)
Redundancy and Reorganisation (2,701) - - (2,701) - 174 - (2,527)
Receipts in Advance Reserve (2,258) 235 (1,364) (3,387) 1,185 1,014 - (1,188)
Business Rates Smoothing Reserve - - (24,000) (24,000) - - - (24,000)
Statues and Monuments Reserves (357) 17 - (340) (1) 16 (30) (355)
Transformation Reserve (14,843) 344 (2,331) (16,830) 14,499 - (3,307) (5,638)
Temporary Accommodation Reserve - - - - (10,782) 6,863 (5,511) (9,430)
Other Council Reserves (14,733) 6,496 (13,490) (21,727) 5,131 3,061 (12,023) (25,558)
Total General Fund Reserves (151,334) 15,662 (132,226) (267,898) - 17,787 (50,955) (301,066)
HRA Earmarked Reserves (9,169) 9,169 - - - - - -
Total Reserves (160,503) 24,831 (132,226) (267,898) - 17,787 (50,955) (301,066)
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Note 18 Transfer to/from Earmarked Reserves (continued)

The Adults’ Services Reserve is provided to
support joint working withthe CCG (Clinical
Commissioning Group) to support vulnerable
Adults within the borough and assist them in
living independent lives.

The Digitalisation Reserve isin place todeliver
enhanced digital services.

The Transformation Reserve is provided to
finance the transformation of the Council’s
services as required toachieve leading edge
service and financial provision

The Infrastructure Reserve is provided to
support improvements to the Council’ buildings,
estates, highways andrelated mattersallowing
more flexible and industrious use of these
premises

The Economy and Enterprise Reserve supports
the creation of innovative economic
development projectsto deliver growthand
regeneration within Westminster.

The Modernisation Reserve is provided to
support bringing the Council, where necessary,
up to modern standards

The Insurance Reserve isestablishedin order to
finance costs (e.g. claims and premium
payments) associated with insurable risk. The
reserve meets expenditure relating tovarious
types of future claims which are not covered by
the Insurance Fund.

The Invest to Save Reserverepresentsa sum set
aside to generate long term financial benefits
from pump-priming financial resources.

The Redundancy and Re-organisation Reserve is
provided to support staffing cost implications of
service transformation programmes.

The Council has a number of Business Rates
Reservesfor planned future spending based on
presumed business ratesincome thatis yet to
materialise. The Council has agreedtocreatea
Business Rates Equalisation Reserve (BRER) to
utilise in future yearsif the Council loses out on
funding from the Business Rates Baseline reset
and to smooth out Business Rates income
caused by timing differences. It is proposed that
the council place additional reservesinto the
BRER to counteract timing difference caused by
the net contribution to the business rate pool,
section 31 grant paymentsfrom central
government and the impact of economic
recession not covered by the SafetyNet
payment. These reserves ensure that that if
future business ratesincome falls short of the
expected sums, the reserve can be drawn upon.

The Housing Benefit Earmarked Reserve relates
to the carryforward of an unspent budget to
support HB payments while options to absorb
the planned reductionin Discretionary Housing
Benefit payment from government are
considered.

The Property Modernisation Reserveisto
enhance to Council’s operational estate.

The Receipts in Advance Reserve relatesto
grant monies receivedin prior years, which do
not have conditions but which is planned to be
spent on its original purpose.

The Statues and Monuments Reserveisin place
to provide the funds tomaintain some of the
many statues within Westminster.

The Children’s Reserve’s support projects within
Children’s services.

The Contracts Risk Reserve isheld to protect
the Council from any impact should any of its
contracted servicesgo into administration.

The Corporate Risk Reserve isto protect the
Council against the risk of externalfactorssuch
as economic shocks and other potential
nationalissues or crisises.

Other Council Reserves represent minor
balances.

Ring-Fenced Revenue Reserves represent
carriedforward funding, including Schools
balancesfrom the Dedicated Schools Grant
(DSG), grant funding of the Adult Education
Service from the Learning Skills Council (LSC) to
match expenditurein line with the academic
year.
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Notes Supporting the Balance Sheet




Note 19a Capital Contractual Commitments

At 31 March 2020, the Council has entered intoa
number of contracts forthe construction or

enhancement of Property, Plantand Equipmentin 31 M:rcth iozg 31 March 2020
X . estate

2019/20 andfuture years. The major commitments

amountingto £1mor moreareasfollows and £000 £'000

equivalent figures have been providedfor 31 March 18,755 FM Conway Various Public Realm Schemes 13,612

2019:
80,000  Axis* 70,000
80,000  United Living* 70,000
19,376  Precision Lifts* 16,954
10,000 Effectable* 8,000
26,400 Oakray* 23,100
15,600 GEM* 13,650

1,291  Dudley House -
14,940  Beachcroft House 2,558

6,825 Edgware Road* -
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20,174  WestEnd Gate 15,502

- Ashbridge, Ashmill & Cosway Street 1,977

- Parsons North 18,910

- Lisson Grove Refurbishment 3,457

9,580 Tollgate* 8,835
302,941 Total 266,555

*The commitments at 31 March 2019 have been restated to include commitments relating to City West Homes Ltd,
which was absorbed by Westminster City Council on 31 March 2019:

o Axis Ltd e Precision Lifts e Qakray
e United Living e Effectable e GEM




Note 19b Revaluations

The Council carries outarolling programme that The valuations of landand buildings were carried out
ensures thatall Property, Plantand Equipment in accordance with the methodologies and bases for
required to be measured at fair valueis revaluedat estimation set outin the professional standardsof
least every five years. Sanderson Whetherall the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.
undertook valuations on behalf of the Councilin Valuations concerning vehicles, plant, furniture and
2019/20 for operational propertyand investment equipmentare based on current prices wherethere
property. HRAstockwas valued at 31 March2020. isan active second-hand market or latest list prices,
with consideration givenfor the condition of the
asset. °
(-}
o
>
2
2
Council Other Land and Other Land and Investment Heritage Assets Vehicles, Plant, Infrastructure Community Total ;C>
>
Dwellings  Buildings (HRA) Buildings (GF) Property Furniture and Assets Assets g
Equipment 8
s
£7000 £000 £000 £000 £/000 £/000 £000 £000 £000 4
Held at Historic Costand at §
. o - - 17,524 5,400 - 81,060 580,948 25,101 710,033 G
depreciated historic cost N
S
- (=)
[ ]
Different Valuations are applied g
to different asset classes. ) a
2
31st March 2020 1,549,343 118,955 539,540 493,982 44,578 - - - 2,746,398 S
T
31st March 2019 - - - - - - - - - g
(@)
31st March 2018 - - - - - - - - - 9
=
5
wv

31st March 2017 - - - - - - - - -
31st March 2016 - - = = = - - - _
31st March 2015 - - - - - - - - -

31st March 2014 - - - a - - - - -

Total Cost or Valuation 1,549,343 118,955 557,064 499,382 44,578 81,060 580,948 25,101 3,456,431




Note 19c¢ Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or
enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided thatitis
probablethat the future economicbenefits or
service potential associated with the item will flow
to the Council and the cost of theitem can be
measured reliably. Expenditure that maintains but
doesnotadd to an asset's potential to deliver future
economic benefits or service potential(i.e. repairs
and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it
isincurred.

Property, plantand equipmentis recognised where
the initial cost or value exceeds £10,000.

Measurement
Assets areinitially measured at cost, comprising:
e thepurchaseprice
e any costs attributable to bringing the asset
to thelocation and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management
e the cost of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is
located
Infrastructure, community assets, assets under
constructionand vehicles, plant and equipment are
then carried in the Balance Sheet at depreciated
historic cost. Other categories of Property, Plant and
Equipmentare subsequently re-measured at existing
use or fair value — see General Principles within Note
1 for details. Assets arerevalued sufficiently
regularly to ensurethattheir carryingamountis not
materially different from their currentvalue at the
year-end, butas a minimum every fiveyears. Assets

arerevalued in accordance with the methodologies
and requirements of the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors.

Revaluation

Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the
Revaluation Reserve to recognise unrealised gains.
Where decreasesin valueareidentified, they are
accounted foras follows:

e wherethereisa balance of revaluation gainsfor
the assetin the Revaluation Reserve, the
carryingamount of the assetis written down
againstthatbalance (up to theamountof the
accumulated gains)

e wherethereisnobalancein the Revaluation
Reserve or an insufficient balance, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against the
relevantserviceline(s) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains
recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that
date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether
thereis any indication thatan asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and possible
differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverableamountof the assetis estimated and,
wherethisis less than the carryingamount of the
asset, an impairmentlossis recognised forthe
shortfall. Whereimpairmentlosses areidentified,

they areaccounted for in the same way as
revaluation losses. When an asset is disposed of or
decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset
in the Balance Sheet (whether Property, Plantand
Equipmentor Assets Held for Sale) is written off to
the Other Operating Expenditurelinein the CIES
againstany receipts arising fromthedisposal asa
gain or loss on disposal.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided foron all Property, Plant
and Equipment assets by the systematic allocation of
their depreciable amounts over their useful lives. An
exception is made for assets without a determinable
finite useful life (i.e. freehold land and certain
Community Assets) and assets that are not yet
availablefor use (i.e. assets under construction).

Depreciationis calculated on the followingbases:

e Buildings - straight-line allocation over the
useful life of the property as estimated by a
qualified valuer;

e HRA dwellings are depreciated based upon
component accounting basis. In the year of
disposal afull year’s depreciationis charged
to the accounts and nothing in the year of
acquisition;

e Vehicles, plant, furnitureand equipment - a
percentage of the value of each class of
assets in the Balance Sheet, as advised by a
suitably qualified officer;

e Infrastructure - straight-line allocation over
10-15years.

Where an asset is material and has major
components whose cost is significant to the total
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costof theasset and have markedly different useful
lives, the components are depreciated separately.

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an
amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciationcharged on assets and the
depreciationthat would have been chargeable
based on their historical cost being transferred each
year fromthe Revaluation Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Disposals

When an asset is disposed of or decommissioned,
the carryingamount of the assetis de-recognisedin
the Balance Sheet. Thisamount, net of any receipts
fromdisposal, are accounted forasagain or loss on
disposal and taken to the Other Operating
Expenditurelinein the CIES. Any revaluation gains
previouslyaccounted forin the Revaluation Reserve
aretransferred to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Any disposal receiptsin excess of £10,000are
categorised as capital receipts and must be credited
to the Capital Receipts Reserve. A proportion of
receipts relating to housing disposals must be paid
to the Government.

The written-off value of disposals is nota charge
againstcounciltaxbutis subject to separate
arrangements for capital financing. Amounts
reflected in the CIES are appropriated to the Capital
Adjustment Accountvia the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Minimum Revenue Provision

The Councilis notrequired to use Council Taxto
fund depreciation, revaluationand impairment
losses or amortisation of non-current assets.
However, itis required to makean annual
contributionfrom revenue towards provision forthe
reductioninits overall borrowing requirement equal
to either an amount calculated on a prudent basisor
as determined by the Council in accordance with
statutory guidance.
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Note 19c¢ Property, Plant and Equipment— Movement of
Balancesin 2018/19

Council Other Land Other Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Service

Dwellings and Buildings and Buildings Plant, Assets Assets Construction Property, Concession

(HRA) (GF)  Furniture and Plant and Assets

Equipment Equipment Included in

Property,
3
Plant and S
Equipment —
2
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 E
Cost of Valuation E
o
At 1 April 2018 1,467,974 131,608 419,740 70,396 477,268 21,301 117,202 2,705,489 6,622 S
c
Additions 76,592 137 65,542 6,289 53,391 1,833 74,220 278,004 - é
N
Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) recognised in the =
) (72,355) (4,116) 72,793 - - - = (3,678) 65 ©
Revaluation Reserve =5
<]
[~}
Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) recognised in the S
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services ) (570) (8,257) ) ) ) ) (8,827) ) =
o
Derecognition — disposals (4,075) - (22,918) - - - - (26,993) - a
5
Derecognition - other - (797) (255) - - - (13,282) (14,334) - 2
T
Other Movement in Cost or Valuation - (1,795) (27,777) - - - (35,061) (64,633) - g
o]
o
At 31 March 2019 Restated* 1,468,136 124,467 498,868 76,685 530,659 23,134 143,079 2,865,028 6,687 S
&
wm

*For further detail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment




Note 19c Property, Plant and Equipment — Movement of Balances in 2018/19 (continued)

Council Other Land Other Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Service
Dwellings and Buildings and Buildings Plant, Assets Assets Construction Property, Concession
(HRA) (GF) Furniture and Plant and Assets
Equipment Equipment Included in
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2018 (24,977) (1,243) (252) (66,348) (243,800) - - (336,620) (3,827)
Depreciation Charge (17,770) (6,485) (19,725) (2,234) (40,517) - - (86,731) (681)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 36,147 5,923 18,197 - - - - 60,267 -
Depreciation written out to the Surplus/Deficit on
- ) 6,600 - - - - - - 6,600 -
the Provision of Services
Impalrment'I('Jsses/(reversa?ls') recognlse?d in the ) % 590 ) ) ) ) 616 )
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services
Derecognition - Disposals - 14 17 - - - - 31 -
At 31 March 2019 Restated* - (1,765) (1,173) (68,582) (284,317) - - (355,837) (4,508)
Net Book Value:
At 31 March 2019 Restated* 1,468,136 122,702 497,695 8,103 246,342 23,134 143,079 2,509,191 2,179
At 31 March 2018 (Restated) 1,442,997 130,365 419,488 4,048 233,468 21,301 117,202 2,368,869 2,795

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 19c Property, Plant and Equipment— Movement of
Balancesin 2019/20

Council Other Land Other Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Service

Dwellings and Buildings and Buildings Plant, Assets Assets Construction Property, Concession

(HRA) (GF) Furniture and Plant and Assets

Equipment Equipment Included in

Property,

Plant and
Equipment =
(5}
£7000 £'000 £/000 £/000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 ;
2
Cost of Valuation E
>
At 1 April 2019 1,468,136 124,467 498,868 76,685 530,659 23,134 143,079 2,865,028 6,687 ;
o
2]
Additions 67,679 35 30,037 4,375 50,287 1,965 70,463 224,841 - 8
2
Revaluat{on Increases/(Decreases) recognised in the 16,356 5072 4,867 ) ) ) . 26,295 8,058 :
Revaluation Reserve (=]
(-]
S~
Revaluation Increases/(Decreases) recognised in the S
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services (5,116) (890) (24527) ) ) ) ) (30533) ) ?
Derecognition — Disposals (7,161) (7,486) (153) - - - (357) (15,157) - %
=
Derecognition — Other - (47) (2,802) - - - (832) (3,681) - 2
(@]
Other movement in Cost or Valuation 9,450 (2,194) 50,774 - 2 2 (59,550) (1,516) - =
==
>
At 31 March 2020 1,549,344 118,957 557,064 81,060 580,948 25,101 152,803 3,065,277 14,745 2
e
=
=
wm




Note 19c Property, Plant and Equipment — Movement of Balances in 2019/20 (continued)

Council Other Land Other Land Vehicles, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Service
Dwellings and Buildings and Buildings Plant, Assets Assets Construction Property, Concession
(HRA) (GF) Furniture and Plant and Assets
Equipment Equipment Included in
Property,
Plant and
Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
At 1 April 2019 - (1,765) (1,173) (68,582) (284,317) - - (355,837) (4,508)
Depreciation Charge (17,266) (2,688) (23,219) (2,842) (31,392) - - (77,407) (630)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 17,266 2,834 19,172 - - - - 39,272 -
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the 0 4303 4393
Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services B ’ B ) ) B ’ B
Derecognition - Disposals - 343 106 - - - - 449 -
Other Movements in Depreciation and Impairments - 1,275 720 (2) - - (716) 1277 -
At 31 March 2020 - (1) (1) (71,426) (315,709) - (716) (387,853) (5,138)
Net Book Value:
At 31 March 2020 1,549,344 118,956 557,063 9,634 265,239 25,101 152,087 2,677,424 9,607
At 31 March 2019 1,468,136 122,702 497,695 8,103 246,342 23,134 143,079 2,509,191 2,179
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Note 20 Heritage Assets

The Council’sheritage assets fall into two categories:

a) 86 statuesand monuments located throughout
the city the most notable of which are
Cleopatra’s Needle and Sphinxes on Victoria
Embankment and Shaftsbury Memorial Fountain
(commonly knownas Eros) at Piccadilly Circus,
and

b) A collectionof civicregalia, including the
Mayor’s chain, and works of art comprising 112
paintings largely of past mayors and aldermen of
the borough.

The Council’sheritage assets have been donated to
the Council andits predecessor bodies over the past
two centuries. All statues and monuments are
accessible to members of the publicas they form part
of the public realm. The Council's collection of civic
regaliaand works of artis held at City Hall —access is
by application.

Where assets are donated for nil consideration they
arerecognised atvaluation. All heritage assets were
revalued in 2019/200n an insurance basis
supplemented with a specialist valuation of the
collection of civicregalia andworks of art. Heritage
assets are not subjectto depreciation butthe carrying
amounts are reviewed wherethereis evidence of
impairment such as physical damage. Any impairment
is recognised and measured in accordance with the
Council’s generalaccountingpolicy onimpairment.

Statues and Monuments

Civic Regalia, Works of

Total Assets

(Notea)  Art, Trophies and similar

(Note b)
£000 £'000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2019 38,775 4,071 42,846
Revaluations 1,145 587 1,732
Balance at 31 March 2020 39,920 4,658 44,578

The valuation has been based upon an Insurance Valuation by Protector Insurance.
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Note 21 Investment Property

The following items of income and expense have been accounted forin the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure linein the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

2018/19 2019/20

HRA Commercial General Fund Total HRA Commercial General Fund Total
Properties Investment Properties Investment
Properties Properties

£°000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

8,629 18,595 27,224 Rental income from investment property 8,462 26,144 34,606

(2,275) (4,060) (6,335)  Direct operating expenses arising from investment property (1,784) (4,408) (6,192)

6,354 14,535 20,889 Net gain 6,678 21,736 28,414

Thereareno restrictions onthe Council’s ability to realise the value inherent in its investment property or on the Council s right to the remittance of income and the proceeds of
disposal. There are contractual obligations on the Council to repairand maintain certain investment properties and these have been includedin the relevant property valuations.
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Note 21 Investment Property (continued)

Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value. Investment Properties are not depreciated but are revaluedannuallyaccording to market
conditions attheyear-end.

The following table summarises the movement in the fair value of investment properties over the year:

2018/19 Restated 2019/20
HRA Commercial General Fund Total HRA Commercial General Fund Total
Properties Investment Properties Investment
(=)
Properties Properties 8
£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000 £°000 ;
2
202,852 202,372 405,224 Balance at 1 April 187,505 285,320 472,825 §
2
Additions: g
8
- - - Purchases - 5,775 5,775 %
pur
1,362 50 1,412 Subsequent expenditure 212 1,483 1,695 :
(=]
=
(305) (7,866) (8,171) Disposals (16) (24) (40) g
(=)
(7,998) 17,725 9,727 Net gains/losses from fair value adjustments 669 18,219 18,888 ?
Transfers: %
=
- - - To/from Investment Property Held for Sale - - - ﬁ
(@]
- - - Assets reclassified (to)/from HRA & GF (37,710) 37,710 - =
==
(8,406) 73,039 64,633 Assets reclassified (to)/from Property, Plant and Equipment (221) 460 239 5
o
187,505 285,320 472,825 Balance at 31 March 150,439 348,943 499,382 %
wm




Note 22 Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recognisedon the Balance
Sheet when the Council becomes partyto the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument.
They areclassified based on the business model for
holding theinstruments and their expected cashflow
characteristics.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost. For
the Council’s borrowing this means that the amount
presented in the Balance Sheetis the outstanding
principalrepayable (plus accrued interest).

Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditurelinein the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement are based on the
carryingamount of theliability, multiplied by the
effective rate of interest for the instrument.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified as below:

e Financial assets held at amortised cost
These represent loans and loan-type
arrangements where repayments of interest
and principal take place on set dates and at
specified amounts. The amount presented in
the Balance Sheet represents the
outstanding principal received plus accrued
interest. Interest credited to the CIES is the
amount receivable as per the loan
agreement.

e Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).
These assets are measured and carried at
fair value. All gains and losses due to
changes in fair value (both realised and
unrealised) are recognised in the CIES as
they occur.

Allowances for impairment losses have been
calculated for amortised cost assets, applying the
expected creditlosses model. Changesin loss
allowances (including balances outstanding at the
date of derecognition of an asset) are
debited/credited to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditurelinein the CIES.

Changesin thevalue of assets carried atfair value
aredebited/credited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure linein the CIES
as they arise.
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Note 22a Financial Instruments

The value of debtors and creditors reported in the table below are solely those amounts meeting the definition of a financial instrument. The balances of debtors and creditors
reported in the balance sheetand Notes 28 and 29 alsoinclude balances which do not meet the definition of a financialinstrument, such as tax-based debtors and creditors.

31 March 2019 Restated* 31 March 2020
Long term Short term Long term Short term
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fair Value Through Profit and Loss — Financial Assets

24,366 - Investments 29,874 -

Financial assets at amortised cost

784 673,751 Investments 58,230 543,945
57,457 107,174 Debtors 53,436 97,962
- 49,904 Cash and Cash Equivalents - 35,522
82,607 830,829 Total Financial Assets 141,540 677,429

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

(222)521) (2486)  Borrowing (206,143) (16,828)
(4,321) (171,448) Creditors (52) (142,465)
(16,747) (1,783) Service concession and finance lease liabilities (16,393) (1,136)
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(243,589) (175,717)  Total Financial Liabilities (222,588) (160,429)




Note 22b Financial Instruments

Income, Expense, Gains and Losses

2018/19 2019/20
Financial Financial Assets:  Financial Assets: Financial Liabilities  Financial Assets: Loans Financial Assets
Liabilities Loans and Available for Measured at and Receivables  Measured at Fair Value
Measured at Receivables Sale Amortised Cost through Profit and Loss
Amortised Cost
£'000 £'000 £'000 £7000 £'000 £7000
- - 1,634  Net loss on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss - - 883
10,626 - - Interest Expense 10,507 - -
- - - Impairment Losses - - -
10,626 - 1,634 Total Expense in Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Service 10,507 - 883
- (11,148) - Interest Income - (12,930) -
- (11,148) - Totalincome in Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services - (12,930) -
= = - Gains on Revaluation = = =
- - - Losses on Revaluation - - -
) i i Surplus/Deficit arising on Revaluation of Financial Assets in Other _ B )
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
10,626 (11,148) 1,634 Net Gain/(Loss) for the Year 10,507 (12,930) 883

During 2019/20, the Councilarranged forward borrowing loans totalling £400m. These loans have enabled the Councilto agree competitive rates for which the Council will not
pay any interest until the loans aredrawn down. Theseloans are summarised below:

Two forward borrowing deals with Phoenix Group:

£37.5m:startdate 15th March 2022, end date 15thMarch 2062 at 2.706%.

£12.5m:startdate 15th March 2023, end date 15thMarch 2063 at2.751%.

A forward deal agreed with Barings Bank/Mass Mutual:

£150m:startdate 15th August 2022, end date 15th August 2052 at 1.970%.

A forward deal agreed with Rothesay Life:

£200m: start date 8th May 2023, end date 8th May 2063 at 2.887%.
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Note 22c Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value of assets and liabilities

Financial liabilities and financial assets classed as
loans and receivables and financial liabilities at
amortised costarecarried in the balance sheet at
amortised cost.

Their fair values can be estimated by calculating the
presentvalue of cash flows that will take place over
the remaining term of the instruments.

The fair value of borrowing is greater than the
carryingvalue because this reflects the fact that the
averagerate of interest (4.2%) on the Council’s
borrowingis higherthan currentrates (1.90— 2.65%)
for new borrowing.

31 March 2019 Restated* 31 March 2020
Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Fair Value Through Profit and Loss
24,366 24,366 Investments 29,874 29,874
= - Financial Assets Held at Amortised Cost
674,535 674,535 Investments 602,175 603,473
164,631 167,200 Debtors 151,398 152,971
49,904 49,904 Cash and Cash Equivalents 35,522 35,522
913,436 916,005 Total Financial Assets 818,969 821,840
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowing*
(152,008) (180,584) Public Works Loan Board (152,004) (174,113)
(70,999) (101,150) Lender Option Borrower Options (70,967) (95,899)
(2,000) (2,000)  Other - -
(225,007) (283,734) (222,971) (270,012)
(175,769) (175,769)  Creditors (142,517) (142,517)
(18,530) (26,839)  Service concession and finance lease liabilities (17,529) (26,173)
(419,306) (486,342) Total Financial Liabilities (383,017) (438,702)
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Note 23 Cash and Cash Equivalents

The balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents is made up of the following elements:

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000

3,970 Cash held by the Authority 5,604

(13,830) Cashat bank (232)
59,764  Short-term liquid deposits 30,150

49,904 Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 35,522
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Note 24 Nature and Extent of Risk

The Council’soverall riskmanagement programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available to fundservices. Risk management is carried out by a
central treasuryteam, under policies approved by the Council in the annual treasury management strategy. The
Council provides written principles for overall riskmanagement, as well as written policies covering specificareas,
such asinterestraterisk, creditriskand the investment of surplus cash.

CREDIT RISK

Creditrisk arises from deposits with banks and financialinstitutions, as well as credit exposures to the Council’s
customers. This risk is minimised through the Annual Investment Strategy, which requires that deposits are not
made with financial institutionsunless they meet minimum credit ratings fromthe three major credit ratings
agencies. The Annual Investment Strategy also imposes a maximum sum to be invested with a financial institution
located within each ratingcategory and country. The Annual Investment Strategy is contained withinthe Council’s
approved Treasury Management Strategy.
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Note 24 Nature and Extent of Risk (continued)

A summary of the credit quality of the Council’s investments at 31 March 2019 is shown below: The credit quality of debtorsis reflected in the level of
the impairment allowance fortrade debtors shown In
Note 28.
31 March 2019 31 March 2020

The Council does not allow credit for customers, as

. ) such, all unpaid balances are past due date for
Fair Value through Profit Loans and Fitch Rati Fair Val h h Profit &I A ised Co
&loss  receivables ftch Rating air Value through Profit &loss  Amortised Cost payment. The gross past due sundry debtoramount
can beanalysed by age as follows:

£000 £000 £000 £000
- 59,764 AAA - 30,150 31 March 2019 31 March 2020
. i AA+ ) ] Restated
- 361,148 AA - 18,652 £000 £000
- 139,816 AA- - 381,423 96,825  Less than three months 89,347
- 138,145 A+ - 156,370 3,059  Three to six months 2,727
) 45,332 A . 50,319 3,130  Six months to one year 1,335
24,366 144,865 A i 152,181 4,160  More than one year 4,553
24,366 889,070 Total 29,874 789,095 107,174  Total 97,962
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Note 24 Nature and Extent of Risk (continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Council has a comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is available as needed. If unexpec ted movements happen, the Council has
immediate access to liquid investments as well as ready access to borrowingsfrom the money markets and the Public Works Loans Board. Thereis no significant riskthat it
will be unableto raise finance to meetits commitments underfinancial instruments. The maturity analysis of financial liabilities is as follows:

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
)
PWLB LOBO* Mortgage Other Total PWLB LOBO* Mortgage Other Total :
Annuity Annuity JZ>
2
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 ;C>
2
(963) (814) (42) (667) (2,486)  Lessthan one year (15,959) (824) (45) - (16,828) P
2]
(15,000) - (45) (667) (15,712)  Between one and two years (5,400) - (48) - (5,448) 8
2
pur
(5,400) (10,000) (98) (667) (16,165)  Between two and five years (10,000) (10,000) (50) - (20,050) :
(=]
(29,000) - - - (29,000)  Maturing in five to ten years (32,700) - - - (32,700) Q
[
(=]
Maturing in more than ten = S
(101,644) (60,000) - - (161,644) S E (87,945) (60,000) - (147,945) =
=
o
(225,007) Total (222,971) a
*The LOBO maturity profile assumes that the lender will not exercise their option until maturity. The LOBOs are of fixed rates, ranging between 3.65% and 10.75%. Of the total amount, £25m have a break clause of every 6'
5 years, whilst £45m have a break clause at every interest payment date twice a year. However, in the current low interest rate environment, itis unlikely that the lender will exercise their option to request early repayment =
of these LOBOs. o
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Note 24 Nature and Extent of Risk (continued)

MARKET RISK

Interest Rate Risk

The Council is exposed to changesin interest rates
as aresultofitsborrowings being at long-term
fixed rates and investment being short-termor at
variablerates of interest. Consequently, fallsin
interest rates will have an adverseimpacton the
Council’s finances.

Borrowings are not carried at fair value, so nominal
gains and losses on fixed rate borrowingwould not
impactonthesurplus or deficiton the Provision of
Services or Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure. However, changes in interest
receivable on a particularinvestment class, namely,
variablefloating rate notes in the sum of £10m, will
be posted to the surplus or deficit on the Provision
of Services and will affect the General Fund
Balance.

Movements in the fair value of fixed rate
investments that have a quoted market price will
bereflected in Other Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure.

Price Risk

The Council holdssome financial instruments of
which the capital value may fluctuate as aresult of
market conditions. However, these instruments are
all purchased on a holdto maturity basis and
thereforeany temporary fluctuations in the market
value of such products wouldhave no impacton
the Council’s finances.
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Note 25 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

The total amount of capital expenditureincurred in
the year isshown in the table below (including the
value of assets acquired under finance leases and
PFI/PP contracts), together with the resources that
have been used to financeit. Where capital
expenditureisto befinanced in futureyears by
chargesto revenue, as assets are utilised by the
Authority, the expenditureresultsin anincreasein
the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure
of the capital expenditureincurred historically by the
Authority that has yetto befinanced. The CFRis
analysed in the second part of this note

2018/19 GF HRA 2019/20 GF HRA

£000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000

633,909 372,626 261,283  Capital Financing Requirement at 1 April 746,454 471,633 274,821
Capital investment

278,005 176,981 101,024  Property, Plantand Equipment 224,841 106,073 118,768

1,412 51 1,362  Investment Properties 7,470 7,470 -

330 330 - Intangible Assets 698 698 -

34,497 34,497 - Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute 35,107 35,107 -

11,000 11,000 - Long-term Investments 14,342 14,342 -
Sources of finance

(45,775) (16,646) (29,128)  Capital Receipts (51,756) (21,251) (30,505)

(111,701) (98,139) (13,561)  Government grants and other contributions (109,637) (63,719) (45,918)

Sums set aside from revenue
(22,346) (443) (21,903)  Direct Revenue Contributions - - -
(24,256) - (24,256)  Major Repairs Allowance (23,331) - (23,331)
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Note 25 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing (continued)

2018/19 GF HRA 2019/20 GF HRA
£7000 £7000 £7000 £7000 £7000 £7000
Debt repayment
(7,686) (7,686) - Minimum Revenue Provision (13,021) (13,021) -
(936) (936) - Minimum Revenue Provision PFland Finance Lease (981) (981) -
746,454 471,632 274,820 Capital Financing Requirement at 31 March 830,186 536,351 293,835
Explanation of movements in year
121,168 107,630 13,538 Increase /(decrease) in underlyl.ng njeed fo-r borrowing 97734 78,721 19,013
(unsupported by government financial assistance)
(7,038) (7,038) _ Statutory prOYI?IOﬂ for repayment of debt (Minimum (13,021) (13,021) .
Revenue Provision)
(1,585) (1585) ) St;tgtory provision for P'Fl'and Finance Lease debt (981) (981) i
(Minimum Revenue Provision)
112,546 99,007 13,538 Total 83,732 64,719 19,013
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Note 26 Leases

COUNCIL AS LESSEE Statement. The principalelement of finance lease payments is applied to write downthe lease liability .
Finance Leases 31 March 31 March
Leases areclassified as finance leases where the 2019 2020

terms of the agreement transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset.
Key factors considered include the length of the lease
termin relation to the economic life of the asset, 106,200 Total 110,125
presentvalue of the minimum lease paymentsin
relation to the asset’s fair value and whether the
Council obtains ownership of the asset at the end of
the leaseterm.

£000 £000
106,200  Other Land and Buildings 110,125

Minimum Lease Payments

The Council is committed to making minimum lease payments under these leases to settle the long-term liability
for theinterestin the properties acquired by the Council. The table below reconciles the future minimum lease
For leases of land and buildings, the land and building payments to their presentvalues.

elements are consideredseparatelyfor classification.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020

Property, plantand equipment held under finance
leases are recognised onthe Balance Sheet at the Minimum Finance Present Minimum Finance Present Value
commencement of the lease at fair value measured at lree CEG VLS LEEs L
the lease'sinception (orthe presentvalue of the ChLELE ERTIET
minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset £/000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
recognised is matched bya liability for the obligation 904 885 812  Not later than one year 904 884 814
to pay the lessor. lr.”tlal directcosts of the Counc_ll are 3,617 3,528 2,737  Later than one year and not later than five years 3,617 3,523 2,737
added to the carryingamount of the asset. Premiums

41,502 30,903 7,136  Later than five years 40,597 30,024 7,117

paid on entry into alease are written off over the
initial rental period. Contingentrentsarechargedas 46,023 35,316 10,685 Total 45,119 34,431 10,668
expenses in the periodsin whichthey areincurred.
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Property, Plantand Equipment recognised under
financeleases is accountedfor using the policies
applied generally to suchassets and is subject to
depreciationwhichis charged overthelease termif
thisis shorter than the asset's estimated useful life 31 March 2019 31 March 2020
(where ownership of the asset does not transfer to
the Council atthe end of the lease period).

The minimum lease payments do notinclude rents that are contingent on event taking place after the lease was
entered into, such as adjustment following rent reviews and potentialhurdles linked to turnoverrents or profit
share.

£000 £000
. . . 3,421  Contingent Rent due within 1 Year 3,421
The interest element of financeleases is charged to
Financing and InvestmentIncome and Expenditure
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure




Note 26 Leases (continued)

Operating Leases
All other leases are treated as operating leases.

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as an
expense of the services benefitting from use of the leased assets. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease; even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g. if thereis a rent-free period at the
commencement of thelease).

The Council hasanumberof properties and equipment held under operating leases. The future minimum lease
payments due under non-cancellable leases in futureyears are:

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£000 £'000

52,895  Not later than one year 55,075

14,185  Later than one year and not later than five years 17,393
564,050 Later than five years 502,710
631,130 Total 575,178

The expenditure charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to
these leases was:
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31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£000 £'000

62,451  Minimum lease payments 52,569

597  Contingent rents 755

(29,341)  Sublease payments receivable (29,001)

33,708 Total 24,323




Note 26 Leases (continued)

COUNCIL AS LESSOR The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases in futureyears are:
Finance Leases 31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Where the Council grants a finance lease over a
property or an item of plant or equipment, the £'000 £'000
relevantassetis written out of the Balance Sheet as 22,700  Not later than one year 29,567
a dlsposal and replaced by a Iong—term debtor in the 74,950  Later thanone year and not later than five years 119,653
Balance Sheet valued on the futureincome due b

. . 706,120  Later than five years 1,266,376
under thefinance lease. This value then reduces ve v
over timeas principal repayments are made. 803,770 Total 1,415,596
Operating Leases The minimum lease payments receivable do notincluderents thatare contingent on events taking place after the
Wherethe Council grants an operating lease over a lease was entered into, such as adjustments following rent reviews.

property or an item of plant or equipment, the asset
isretained in the Balance Sheet. Rentalincomeis
recognised in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement on a straight-line basis over
the life of the lease, even if this does not match the
pattern of payments (e.g. thereis a premium paid at
the commencement of the lease).
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Note 27 Service Concessions

Service concessions are contracts to receive services,
wheretheresponsibilityfor making available the
property, plantand equipment needed to provide
the services passes to the contractor. The Council
recognises the assets used under such contracts on
its Balance Sheet within Property, Plantand
Equipment, becauseit controls the services thatare
provided under the contracts, has exclusive use of
the assets concerned, and ownership of the
property, plantand equipment will pass to the
Council atthe end of the contracts for no additional
charge.

The original recognition of these assets at fair value
(based onthe costto purchasethe property, plant

and equipment) is balancedby the recognition of a

liability for amounts due to the scheme operatorto
pay for the capital investment.

Non-current assets related to these contracts and
recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and
depreciated in the same way as property, plantand
equipment owned by the Council.

The amounts payable to the service concession
operators each year are analysed into five elements
which areaccounted foras set out below:

e the contracted value of services received
during the year — debited to the relevant
servicelinein the CIES

e finance costs, debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in
the CIES

e rentsto be paidfor the property during the
contract, debited to the Financing and

Investment Income and Expenditure line in

the CIES
e principal repayments — reduce the Balance
Sheet liability

e lifecycle replacement costs — recognised as
additions to Property, Plant and Equipment
when the relevant works have been carried
out

Veolia Waste Disposal Contract

2017/18 was dueto bethefinal year of a seven year
service concession contract forwaste and recycling
collection, street cleansing andancillary services,
terminating part way through 2017/18. this contract
was extended during the year to now terminate part
way through 2020/21. Under the contract, the
operator provides a fleet of vehicles subjectto a
renewal programme approved by the Authority for
the sole use of the contract. During the contract
period to date, the vehicle fleet was completely
renewed in April 2012 atacostof £5.015m. At the
end of the contract, the Authority has the option to
purchasethevehicles at netbook value, whichis
currently estimated to be £nil. The contract provides
for the Authority's depots to beleased to the
operator for the durationof the contract and
returned to the Authority in good conditionatthe
end of contract. The contract specifies the routes
and to whomtheservices are provided, minimum
standards of service with deductions from the fee
payableif performance falls below the minimum
standards.

Haven Contract

The Haven contractisa 25 year contract which
started in 1998. Underthe contract the operator has
provided a new nursing home at Forrester Court.
The operator valued the building at £4.2m when it
became operational. The Authority occupies the
majority of the beds (maximum 90 and minimum of
84) and asmall element (about 20 beds) is sold to
the market place by the operator. The Authority
regulates the services provided and has nomination
rights to the majority of the beds. Thereis no fixed
unitary charge butthe Council is charged per bed
and must usethe maximum 90 bed allocation (78
guaranteed) otherwise adjustments to charges are
made. The Authority owns thefreehold to the land.
At the end of the contractthe building transfersto
the Authority forno further payment.

Penfold Contract

Penfold Street was jointly commissionedin 2004
between the Council and Notting Hill Housing Trust
with the objective of providing housing forolder
peoplein the heart of London. Under the terms of
the contract, the Authority provided the operator
with a site for demolition and development on a 99
year lease, the operator constructeda new building
on thesite, which reverts to the Authorityattheend
of the lease, and the Authority has 100% nomination
rightsand provides an annual care contract for
residents. The operator retains all rent and service
chargeincome fromresidents.

Sport and Leisure Management Ltd contract
2019/20 was the fourth year of a ten year service
concession contract with Sportand Leisure
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Note 27 Service Concessions (continued)

Management Ltd which commenced on 1 July 2016, Property, Plantand Equipment

to take over the operation and maintenance of the The assets used to provide services underthe service concession contracts are recognised on the Authority’s
Council's eight leisure centres, including and Balance Sheet. Movements in their value over the year are detailed in the analysis of the movement on the
upgrade of the facilities over the first two years of Property, Plantand Equipment balancein Note 19c.

the contract. Under the contract, the contractor will
retain allincome generated, butin addition thereis

) . ) . Payments
a profitsharein the event the financial performance v

The Authority makes agreed payments each yearto the operators, increased in line with inflation where stated in

targets are exceeded. The contractor will paya T ] o } o =
. the contractandsimilarly reduced if performance falls below minimum standards in any year. Paymentsremaining G

management fee of £35.4mto the Council overthe . ) . . . ) ) —
. to be made under the Service Concession contracts at 31 March 2019 (including an estimate of inflation) are as =
life of the contract. =
follows: 2

) ) c

The Council has the rights underthe contract to 2
specify the activities and services to be providedand 2019/20 Payment for Reimbursement of Interest Total E
. o Services Capital Expenditure o

regulatethe prices charged. the contract specifies c
.. 4
minimum standards to be met by the contractor £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 a
with penalties payableif the facilities or Payable within 1year 22,632 322 48 23,002 2
performanceis below minimum standards. The . N
- . . Payable within 2 to 5 years 7,207 953 56 8,216 S
Councilisresponsible for the maintenance of the S
structure of heleisure centres, and the contractor Payable within 6-10 years - 363 - 363 _
. . . . (@]

for maintenance and redecoration, including Payable within 11-15 years _ 363 B} 363 a
equipmentreplacement. i
auip P Payable within 16 - 20 years - 363 - 363 3
The buildings, plantand equipment provided by the Pl widiln s e : 4,497 ) 4,497 iy
Council atthe startof the contract remainthe 9
. . (@]
Council's assets, together with the planned Total 29,839 6,861 104 36,804 =
ey . =]

enhancementworks. In additionthe Councilhas the ol

rightto buy any plantand equipment supplied by
the contractattheend of the contractatits written
down value. The Council hasan optionto extend
the contractforafurtherfiveyears. Also the Council
has the option to terminate the contract either for
poor performance, of in the event that the Council
wishes to reconfigure leisure services, it may
terminatethe contract subject to paying
compensationto the contactor.




Note 27 Service Concessions (continued)

2018/19

Payment for Services Reimbursement of Interest Total
Capital Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Payable within 1 year 45,564 949 61 46,574
Payable within 2 to 5 years 30,229 1,215 104 31,548
Payable within 6-10 years - 363 - 363
Payable within 11-15 years - 363 - 363
Payable within 16 - 20 years - 363 - 363
Payable within 21+ years - 4,571 - 4,571
Total 75,793 7,824 165 83,782

Whilst the unitary payments made to the contractors have been calculated to compensate the contractor forthe fair value of the services provided, the financing cost s arising
from the capital expenditureincurred remainto be reimbursed as set out below:

31 March 2018/19 31 March 2019/20
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£'000 £'000
Balance outstanding at start of the year 8,760 7,824
Payments made during the year (936) (963)

Balance outstanding at year end 7,824 6,861




Note 28 Debtors

31 March 2019* 31 March 2020
Long Term Short Term Total Long Term Short Term Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
= 78,747 78,747  Sundry Debtors = 45974 45974
- 42,411 42,411  Westminster Share of Business Rate - 37,232 37,232
- 26,610 26,610  Parking Fines - 29,242 29,242 -
- 19,400 19,400  Adults Services - 20,366 20,366 E
= 17,445 17,445  Housing Benefits overpayments - 17,214 17,214 g
- 13,415 13,415  Westminster Share of Council Tax - 13,856 13,856 ,g
- 20,870 20,870 VAT - 8,274 8,274 g
- 4,639 4,639  Property - 7,695 7,695 g
- 4,757 4,757  Housing - Temporary Accommodation - 4,871 4,871 g
- 4,235 4,235  HRA Rent & Lessee Service Charges - 3,253 3,253 E
23,135 6,084 29,219  HRA Major Works 15,013 825 15,838 Z
20,156 - 20,156  Local Government Association 20,155 - 20,155 %
»
12,912 - 12,912  Moberly Loan 13,500 - 13,500 6'
10,058 - 10,058  Westminster Community Homes 9,147 - 9,147 E
= = 0  Westminster Housing Investments Ltd 7951 - 7,951 §
1,343 - 1,343 Other Loans 4,857 - 4,857 é
- (90,569) (90,569)  Less: Provision for irrecoverable debts (see below) - (90,832) (90,832)
67,604 148,044 215,648 Total 70,623 97,970 168,593

*Thedisclosure requirements for this note have changed, 2018/19 and 2019/20 debtors are nowgrouped by type of debt.




Note 28 Debtors (continued)

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

31 March 2019* 31 March 2020
£000 £/000
(23,210)  Parking Fines (26,431)
(16,881)  Housing Benefits overpayments (17,053)

(19,776)  Business Rates (14,928) E

(8,339) Council Tax (8,012) ;

2

(3,832) Housing - Temporary Accommodation (4,391) E

>

(3,198)  Adults Services (3,185) %

(@)

(560)  Property (3,230) =

-4

(4,009) HRA Major Works (2,254) @

N

(=]

(1,580) HRA Rent & Lessee Service Charges (1,438) Q

N

(=)

(9,184)  Other Provisions (9,910) S

[ ]

(90,569) Total (90,832) z

o

. . . . . _|

*Thedisclosure requirements for this note have changed, 2018/19 and 2019/20 impairment allowance for doubtful debts are now grouped by type of debt. e
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Note 29 Creditors

31 March 2019* 31 March 2020

Long Term Short Term Total Long Term Short Term Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

- (80,968) (80,968) WCC share of Business Rate prepayements - (66,242) (66,242)

- (9,761) (9,761) WCC share of Council Tax prepayements - (6,879) (6,879)

- (6,284) (6,284) Amount owed by WCC to preceptors - Council tax - (3,736) (3,736)

- - - Amount owed by WCC to preceptors - Business rates - (135,971) (135,971)

= (6,036) (6,036) PAYE & NI = (4,047) (4,047)

- (15,336) (15,336) Major Works - (10,578) (10,578)

- (3,023) (3,023) HRA Rent Prepayments - (3,438) (3,438)

- - - HRA Service Charge Prepayments - (1,297) (1,297)

- (24,691) (24,691) Receipts in advance - (15,006) (15,006)

- (202,877) (202,877) Sundry Creditors - (102,147) (102,147)
(4,321) - (4,321) Long term Creditors (52) - (52)
(4,321) (348,976) (353,297) Total (52) (349,341) (349,393)

*The disclosure requirements for this note have changed, 2018/19 and 2019/20 creditors are now grouped by type of creditor.
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Note 30 Provisions

Provisions are recognised wherethe Council hasa
legal or constructive obligation arising from a past
eventthat will probably require settlement by a
transfer of economic benefits or service potential,
and areliable estimate can be made of theamount
of the obligation.

Provisions are chargedas an expenseto the
appropriate service linein the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statementin the year that
the Council becomes aware of the obligationand are
measured atthe best estimate at the balance sheet
date of the expenditure required to settlethe
obligation, takingintoaccount relevant risks and
uncertainties.

Where someor all of the paymentrequiredto settle
a provision is expected to be recovered from a third
party, thisis only recognised asincomefor the
relevant serviceifitis virtually certain that
reimbursement will be receivedif the Council settles
the obligation.

The table below sets out the provisions for2019/20.

Balance at 1 Transfers Additional Amounts used Unused Balance at 31
April 2019 between long- provisions in 2019/20 amounts March 2020
termand made in reversed in
short-term 2019/20 2019/20
Short Term Provision £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Compensation, Property and (369) - - - 159 (210)
Contractual Claims
Other (316) - (267) 106 - (477)
Total (685) - (267) 106 159 (687)
Long Term Provision
Compensation, Property and (9,732) - - 2,103 3,955 (3,674)
Contractual Claims
Insurance Claims (7,373) - (712) - - (8,085)
Business Rates Appeals (126,080) - - 66,320 - (59,760)
Other (965) - - - 185 (780)
Total (144,150) - (712) 68,423 4,140 (72,299)
Grand Total (144,835) - (979) 68,529 4,299 (72,986)
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Note 30 Provisions (continued)

Closing provisions include the following elements:

Compensation, Property and Contractual Claims
This provisionrelates to arange of smaller claims
againstthe Council for whichfinancial resources have
been set aside.

lll-health Pension Contributions

This provisionprovides foremployer’s pension
contribution obligations arising from Regulation 68(1)
of the Local Government PensionScheme 2013,
payableto the pension fund when employees retire
early onill-health grounds.

Insurance Claims

A provisionhas been made to meet known and
anticipated liabilities on claimsunderthe Council’s
insurance arrangements. This is assessed by a
professionalinsurance contractor onan annualbasis
and adjusted as appropriate.

Business Rates Appeals

Dueto thelocalisation of Business Rates, which
became effective from 1 April 2013, the Council has
set aside a provision forany potential liabilities as a
result of Business Rate payers’ appeals against
rateablevaluations. From 2018/19 the Council is
responsible for 64% share of this liability, and Greater
London Authority is responsible for 36%. The
provisionincludes an amountforappealslodged to
date butyet to be determined by the Valuation Office
Agency (VOA) plus an amountforappealsexpected
but notyetlodged with VOA which has been
estimated based on experience and analysis of the
appeals listing from the VOA.

Other

Other provisionsinclude those relating to property
search fees, the cost of staff redundancies scheduled
as aconsequence of moving back office processes to
a managed service model, planning decisions and
other potential liabilities.

Apartfromthe Business Rates Appeals provision, all
other provisionsare expected to be used within the
next two years.
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Note 31 Other Long-Term Liabilities

2018/19 Note 2019/20
£'000 £'000
(10,685)  Lease Liabilities Note 26 (10,668)
(7,823)  Service Concessions Note 27 (6,861)
(701,679) Pension Liability Note 32 (624,787)
(720,187) Total (642,316)
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Note 32 Pension Schemes

PARTICIPATION IN PENSIONS SCHEMES

As partof theterms and conditions of employment of
its officers, the Councilmakes contributions towards
the cost of post-employment benefits. Althoughthese
benefits will notactually be payable until employees
retire, the Council has acommitmentto fund the
payments (for those benefits) and to disclose them at

the timethat employees earn their future entitlement.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Employees of the Council are members of three
separate pension schemes:

e The Teachers' Pension Scheme, administered
by Capita Teachers' Pensions on behalf of the
Department for Education.

e The Local Government PensionScheme,
administered by Westminster City Counciland
the London Pension Fund Authority.

e The NHS Pension Scheme, administered by
NHS Pensions.

All of the above schemes provide defined benefits to
memberse.g. retirement lump sums and pensions,
earned as employees workingfor the Council, or for
related parties.

Under IAS 19 and Code requirements, the Council
recognises the cost of post-employment benefits in the
reported cost of services when they are earned by
employees rather than when the benefits are
eventually paid as pensions.

However, thearrangements forthe Teachers' scheme
and NHS Scheme mean that liabilities for these benefits
cannotordinarilybeidentified for the Council. These
schemes arethereforeaccountedfor asif they were
defined contributionsschemes and noliability for
future payments of benefits is recognisedin the
Balance Sheet. Children's Services and Adult Services
within the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statementare charged with theemployer's
contributions payable to Teachers' Pensions and NHS
Pensions respectivelyin theyear.
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Note 32a Pensions Schemes Accounted for as Defined

Contribution Schemes

TEACHERS’ PENSIONS SCHEME

Teachers employed by the Councilare members of the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme administered by the
Department for Education. The Scheme provides
teachers with specified benefits upontheir retirement
and the Council contributes towardsthe cost by
making contributionsbased on a percentage of scheme
members’ pensionable salaries.The Schemeitselfis a
defined benefit scheme but howeveris unfunded. The
Department for Education uses a notional fund as the
basis for calculating the employers’ contributionrate
paid by local authorities. The notional fund is valued
every four years. However, this is a multi-employer
scheme and the number of participating employers
makes it impossible to identifythe Council’s share of
the financial positionand performance attributable to
its own employees with sufficient reliability for
accounting purposes. For the purposes of this
Statement of Accounts, they are therefore accounted
for on the same basis as a defined contribution
scheme. In 2019/20, the Council paid £7.824m million
(£3.807min 2018/19) to the Teachers Pensions Agency
in respect of teachers’ retirement benefits. The
expected contributions to the Teachers' Pension
Schemefor 2020/21are £7.824m million, unchanged
from2019/20.

NHS STAFF PENSION SCHEME

Former NHS employees that work for The Council can
chooseto maintain their membership of the NHS
Pension Scheme. The Scheme provides these
employees with specified benefits upontheir
retirementand the Council contributes towards the
costs by making contributions based on a percentage
of members’ pensionable salaries. The schemeis an
unfunded defined benefit scheme.

However, the Council is not able to identifyits share of
the underlying financial positionand performance of
the Scheme with sufficient reliability foraccounting
purposes. Asaresult, for the purposes of this
Statement of Accounts, the Council accounts forthe
scheme on the same basis as a defined contribution
scheme. In 2019/20, the Council paid £0.055m million
(£0.058min 2018/19)to the NHS Pension Schemein
respect of former NHS staff retirement benefits. The
Council expects contributions to the NHS Pension
schemefor 2020/21 to remainunchanged from
2019/20, at £0.055m million.
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Note 32b Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION
SCHEME

The Local Government Pension Scheme is accounted
for as a defined benefits scheme.

The liabilities of the City of Westminster Pension Fund
attributable to the Councilareincludedin the Balance
Sheet on an actuarial basis. The basis of calculation is
the projected unit method-i.e. an assessment of the
future payments that will be madein relation to
retirement benefits earned to date by employees,
includingassumptionsabout mortality rates,
employeeturnoverrates and projectionsof projected
earnings for currentemployees.

This future liability is then discounted back to present
value, using a discount rate determined by reference
to market yields at the balance sheet date of high
quality corporate bonds.

The assets of the City of Westminster Pension Fund
attributable to the Councilareincludedin the Balance
Sheet at their fair value.

The changein the net pensions liability is analysed
into the following components:

Service costcomprising:

o currentservice cost—allocatedin the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement (CIES) to the services for which
the employees worked

o pastservicecost—debited to the Surplus

or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the
CIES as partof Non Distributed Costs

o netinterestonthenetdefined benefit

liability — chargedto the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line of
the CIES

e Remeasurements comprising:

o

the return on plan assets — excluding
amountsincluded in netintereston the net
defined benefit liability (asset) — chargedto
the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

actuarial gains and losses — changes in the
net pensions liability that arise because
events have notcoincided with
assumptions made at the last actuarial
valuation or because the actuaries have
updated their assumptions — chargedto
the Pensions Reserveas Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

o  contributions paid to the pensionfundare
charged to the General Fund viaan entry in
the Movementin Reserves Statement to
replacetheservice costitems above.

DISCRETIONARY BENEFITS

The Council provides discretionary post-employment
benefits which arise fromadditionalserviceand are
awarded on adiscretionary basis. These benefits are
unfunded with costs met directly from the Council's
revenueaccount.

DESCRIPTION OF THE WESTMINSTER
FUND

The Council administers a defined benefit final salary
scheme wheretheretirement benefits are
determined independently from investments of the
scheme, and employers have obligations to make
contributions where assets areinsufficient to meet
employee benefits. The schemes which make up the
overall Westminster Scheme are: The Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered
locally by Westminster City Council (WCC)which is a
funded defined benefit final salary scheme meaning
thatthe authority and employees pay contributions
into afund, calculated at a level intended to balance
the pension liabilities with investment assets, and; the
London Pensions Fund Authority (LPFA) Pension Fund
administered by the London Pension Fund Authority.
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Note 32b (i) — Net Pensions Liability

2018/19 2019/20
S e Pensions Net Pensions Programme area S e Pensions Net Pensions
Obligations Liability Obligations Liability
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
863,012 (1,560,578) (697,566) Opening Balance at 1 April 979,787 (1,681,464) (701,677)
- (32,970) (32,970)  Current Service Cost - (39,949) (39,949)
- (1,680) (1,680)  PastService Cost and gains/losses on curtailments - (9,442) (9,442)
22,026 (39,312) (17,286) Interest Income and Expense 23,589 (39,858) (16,269)
(373) - (373)  Administration Expenses (820) - (820)
(43,063) 43,063 - Retirement Grants and Pensions (47,404) 47,404 -
71,968 = 71,968  Settlements (1,378) = (1,378)
- (101,417) (101,417)  Effects of business combinations and disposals - 1,634 1,634
50,558 (132,316) (81,758) Total Post Employment Benefits Charged to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services (26,013) (40,211) (66,224)

Contributions
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39,178 - 39,178 ¢ The Council 49,202 - 49,202

6,633 (6,633) - ¢ Employees 8,329 (8,329) -

45,811 (6,633) 39,178 Employers contributions payable to scheme 57,531 (8,329) 49,202
Remeasurements

20,406 - 20,406 e Return on Plan Assets (86,855) - (86,855)

- - - ¢ Other Actuarial Gains and Losses 267 - 267

- 95,526 95,526 ¢ Actuarial Gains and Losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions - 54,633 54,633

- (76,885) (76,885) ¢ Actuarial Gains and Losses from changes in financial assumptions - 149,152 149,152

- 153 153 eExperience loss /(gain) on defined benefit obligation - (23,680) (23,680)

- (731) (731)  Changes in the effect of the Asset Ceiling - 394 394

20,406 18,063 38,469 PostEmploymentBenefits Charged to other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (86,588) 180,499 93,911

979,787 (1,681,464) (701,677) Closing Balance at 31 March 924,717 (1,549,505) (624,788)




Note 32b (ii) — Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT PENSION
SCHEME ASSETS COMPRISED

WCC Pension Scheme

31 March 2019

WCC Pension Scheme
31 March 2020

£'000

135,923
200,056

460,415

62,218
957

9,572

%

0%

0%

0%

0%

14%

21%

48%

0%

0%

9%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

7%

0%

1%

Gilts - UK

Gilts - Overseas

Gilts - Index Linked
Corporate Bonds - UK
Corporate Bonds - Overseas
Equities - UK

Equities - Overseas

Unlisted Equities - UK
Unlisted Equities - Overseas
Property

Pooled Fixed Interest
Investment Debtors

Cash

Net Current Assets - debtors
Net Current Assets - creditors
Private Equity

Infastructure

Multi Asset Credit
Cash/Temporary Investments

Infastructure

£'000

148,608

585,372

14,498
54,369

13,592

%

0%

0%

0%

0%

16%

0%

64%

0%

0%

10%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

2%

6%

2%

0%

957,204

100%

Total

906,148

100%

.
N
N
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
a
o
(@]
c
4
puur
w
N
(=]
=
©
<~
N
(=]
[~}
(=]
[ ]
=
(@]
=5
m
(%]
—
O
=
T
m
>
o)
Q
(@]
c
=z
=
wv




Note 32b (iii) — Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

LPFA Pension Scheme LPFA Pension Scheme

31 March 2019 31 March 2020

£'000 % £'000 %
12,286 54%  Equities 10,056 54%
0 0%  LDI/ Cashflow matching 0 0%
6,022 27%  Target Return Portfolio 4,526 24%
1,361 6% Infrastructure 1,303 7%
0 0%  Commodities 0 0%
2,124 9%  Property 1,696 9%
790 3% Cash 986 5%
22,583 100% Total 18,567 100%
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Note 32b (iv) — Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

A changein any of the key assumptions canhavea
significantimpact uponthesize of the Council’s
pension liabilities, whichwould require the Council
duringits triennial review to adjust theamountit
must pay the Westminster Pension Fund. The
biggestrisksinclude an increasein member life
expectancy, salary and pensionaccumulation rate or
a decreasein thereal discountrate, which would
have animpact on the Council’s liability to the
Pension Fund.

Discounting of future payments gives the amount in
today’s money thatis required to meet obligations —
a higher discount rate means alower current
requirementto meet future payments. Thisis why
the actuaries prudently use a discount rate based on
highly rated corporate bond yields, as a small change
in these would have avery largeimpactupon the
size of the liability, which taxpayers are statutorily
boundto pay.

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries
have been:

WCC Pension Scheme

LPFA Pension Scheme

WCC Pension Scheme

LPFA Pension Scheme

31 March 2019 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2020
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity at 65 for current
Pensioners (years):
234 20.7 Men 21.8 21.0
24.8 23.7 Women 244 24.2
Longevity at 65 for future 0.0
Pensioners (years):
25.0 23.1  Men 232 224
26.6 260 Women 25.8 257
3.4% 3.5% Rate of Inflation (RPI) 2.7% 2.9%
24% 2.5% Rate of Inflation (CPI) 1.9% 1.9%
3.9% 4.0% Rate of Increase in salaries 2.9% 2.9%
2.4% 2.5% Rate of increase in pensions 1.9% 1.9%
2.4% 2.3% Rate fordiscounting scheme 2.4% 2.4%

liabilities
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Note 32b (v) — Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

WCC Pension Scheme

WCC Pension Scheme

Increas? in Decrease in Assumption
Assumption

£'000 £'000

Longevity (increase or decrease in 1 year) (63,694) 60,958
Rate of inflation (increase or decrease by 0.1%) (70,222) 66,979
Rate of increase in salaries (increase or decrease by 0.1%) (4,862) 4,764
Rate of increase in pensions (increase or decrease by 0.1%) (70,222) 66,979
Rate for discounting scheme liabilities (increase or decrease by 0.1%) 71,265 (74,932)
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Note 32b (vi) — Defined Benefit Pension Schemes (continued)

IMPACT ON THE COUNCIL'S CASH
FLOWS

The objectives of the scheme are to keep employers'
contributions at as constant a rate as possible. The
Council has agreed a strategy with the scheme's
actuary, Barnett Waddingham, to achieve a funding
level of 100% over the next 22 years. Funding levels
aremonitored on an annualbasis. The next triennial
valuationis dueto be completed for 31 March 2022.

The scheme will need to take account of the national
changes to thescheme under the Public Pensions
Services Act 2013. Underthe Act, the Local
Government Pension Schemein Englandand Wales
and the other main existing public service schemes
may not provide benefits in relation to service after
31 March 2014. The Act provides for scheme
regulations to be made within a common framework,
to establish new career average revalued earnings
schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to certain
public servants.

The Council anticipated paying £42.7m (mainscheme)
employer contributions in 2019/20butis no longer
paying towards the LPFA scheme as the lastactive
member has now left.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation for the WCC scheme membersis 20 years,
2019/20 (19 years 2018/19).

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit
obligation for the LPFA scheme membersis 12 years,
2019/20 (12 years 2018/19).

In general, participating in a defined benefit pension
scheme means thatthe Employer is exposed to a
number of risks:

e Investmentrisk: The Fund holds investment
in asset classes such as equities, whichhave
volatile marketvalues and while these assets
areexpected to providereal returnsover the
long-term, the short-term volatility can cause
additional funding to be requiredif a deficit
emerges.

e Interestraterisk: The Fund’s liabilities are
assessed using market yields on high quality
corporate bonds to discount the liabilities. As
the Fund holds assets such as equities, the
value of the assets and liabilities may not
movein the same way.

e Inflation risk: All the benefits under the Fund
arelinked to inflation and so deficits may
emergeto the extent that the assetsarenot
linked to inflation.

e longevityrisk:In theeventthatthe
members live longer than assumed, a deficit
willemergein the Fund. Therearealso other
demographicrisks.

In addition, as many unrelated employers participate
in both the City of Westminster Pension Fundand the
LPFAPension Fund, thereisan orphan liabilityrisk,

where employers leave the Fund but with insufficient
assets to cover their pensionobligations so thatthe
difference may fall on the remaining employers.
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Note 33 Cash Flows from Operating Activities

The cash flows for operating activities include the
following items:

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000
(10,521)  Interest received (11,302)
11,101 Interest paid 8,502
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements
(87,213)  Depreciation and Amortisation (77,516)
(8,183) Impairment and downward valuations (26,517)
(3,561) Increase/(decrease) in creditors 16,087
(63,384) (Increase)/decrease in provisions -
67,321 Increase/(decrease) in debtors (29,609)
7 Increase/(decrease) in inventories 15
(71,802)  Movement in pension liability (17,022)
(89,498)  Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or derecognised (18,426)
9,224  Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 90,229
(247,089) Sub-total of non-cash movements (62,759)
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are
investing or financing activities
32,700 Capital Grants credited to surplus or deficit on the provision of services 115,460
113,642  Proceeds from the sale of property plantand equipment, investment property and intangible assets 23,420
146,342 Sub-total of adjustments included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that 138,880
are investing or financing activities
(100,747) Total 76,121
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Note 34 Cash Flows from Investing Activities

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000
279,913  Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets 240,046
2,954,718  Purchase of short and long-term investments 1,336,050
(113,642)  Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets (23,420)
(3,138,289)  Proceeds from short and long-term investments (1,402,030)
(23,710)  Other receipts from investing activities (113,821)
(41,010) Total Cash Flows from Investing Activities 36,825
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Note 35 Cash Flows from Financing Activities

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000
(2,000) Cashreceipts of short- and long-term borrowing R
19 Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating to finance leases and on-Balance-Sheet PFl contracts 20
30,040 Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 3,004
302,105 Other payments for financing activities (44,503)
330,164 Net cashflows from financing activities (41,479)
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Note 36 Related Party Transactions

This disclosure note has been prepared using the
Council’s Register of Members’ Declarationsof
Interestin addition to a specific declaration obtained
in respect of related party transactions from members
and senior officers. The Councilis required to disclose
material transactions with related parties - bodies and
individuals that have the potential to control or
influence the Council or to be controlled or influenced
by the Council.

CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

Central Government has significantinfluence over the
general operations of the Council - itis responsible for
providing the statutoryframeworkwithin whichthe
Council operates. It provides the majority of its
fundingin theform of grants and prescribes the terms
of many of the transactions that the Council has with
other parties (e.g. Council Tax bills, Housing Benefits).
Grants received fromGovernment departments are
set outin the analysisin Note 13.

MEMBERS

The following Members held positions of control or
significantinfluencein related parties to the Council
during 2019/20:

Councillor Angela Harvey is Trustee to the Edward
Harvist Trust, which passes income to the Council for
distributionto Westminster’s charitable
organisations.

CouncillorsMitchell, Caplan, Robathan and Butler-
Thalassis are trustees of the City of Westminster
Charitable trust. The trustreceives fundscollected via
a voluntary community contributionfrom the Council
and distributes this via grant funding to community
groups working in Westminster.

Councillor Nafsika Butler-Thalassis is also a trustee of
One Westminster — The charity has various contracts
with the Council aimed at delivering voluntary sector
and volunteering support, The Council spent
£327,425 with One Westminster in 2019/20.

Councillor Robert Rigby is the Council appointed
trustee of the London Marathon Charitable trust from
which Westminster has received funding duringthe
year.

Lady Christabel Flight served as a trustee of the Sir
Simon Milton Foundation the year. The Foundation
staff are co-located with the Council andhave
benefited from the use of Council support services (IT
and use of desk space). During 2019/20the value of
in-kind services provided was £16,212 (2018/19:
£19,962), whilethe chargeable cost of services
provided was £16,212(2018/19:£19,962).

Further details are recordedin the Register of
Member’s Declarations of Interest, which canbe
found on the Council’s website.
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Note 36 Related Party Transactions (continued)

ENTITIES CONTROLLED OR SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCED BY THE COUNCIL

The Council hasanumberof subsidiaries over whichit has control and an associate company over which it exerts
significantinfluence. The Council’s subsidiary companies and related transactions are summarised below:

31 March 2019 Restated

Name Loan Expenditure Income Income outstanding Balance -
to WCC (WCC debtor  outstanding (WCC o
balance) creditor balance) =
>
2
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E
>
City West Homes Ltd* - 35,316 (693) 5 38 ;
a
(@)
Westminster Community Homes 10,058 10,333 (2,173) - 561 8
2
WestCo Trading Ltd - 2,453 (1,237) 667 779 7
N
(=]
Paddington Recreation Ground Trust** - 1,298 (764) - - B
S~
[
Westminster Housing Investment Ltd - - - - - g
[ ]
=
o
=
31 March 2020 ﬁ
o
Name Loan Expenditure Income Income outstanding Balance . , =
to WCC (WCC debtor  outstanding (WCC *The Council’s Arm’s-Length Management o
balance)  creditor balance) Organisation (ALMO), City West Homes, was brought §
H c
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 backin-houseon 31 March2019. 2
wv
City West Homes Ltd* - - - - - **Paddington Recreationgroundtrust 18/19 figures
Westminster Community Homes 9,147 22,297 (3,263) 104 - restated to representfmal audited fIgU res.
WestCo Trading Ltd - 2,734 (470) 170 273 The Council alsohasacontrollinginterestin
) ) Westminster Housing Development Ltd and
Paddington Recreation Ground Trust - 1,787 (854) - -

Westminster Procurement Services butthereareno
Westminster Housing Investment Ltd 10,342 - (98) 98 - transactions to reportin these entities.




Note 36 Related Party Transactions (continued)

The Following officers and members hold positionson
boards of entities controlled or significantly

influenced by the Council:

Westminster Community Homes —Dermot Moloney,
Thomas Harding, James Green, ClIr Jim Glen

Westco trading Limited — Julia Corkey, Dai Williams,
Cllr Tony Devenish

Westminster Housing Investment Ltd - Barbara
Brownlee, James Green, Stephen Muldoon, CllIr
Jacqueline Wilkinson

Westminster Housing Development Ltd -Barbara
Brownlee, James Green, Stephen Muldoon, Clir

Jacqueline Wilkinson

Westminster Procurement Services - Dai Williams

The Council has the following associate:

Hub Make Lab CIC
a) Nature of the business

The company, whichtrades as Hub Westminster, is an
innovative business start-up and smallbusiness centre
located in a single open-plan office floor space,
providing low cost affordable hot-desking and other
spaceintheheartof London’s West End for start-up
businesses, particularlyin the social enterprise sector,
with a particularfocus on socialand environmental
sustainability.

b) Relationship with the Council
The company is acommunity interest company with a
nominal share capital of £0.940m of which 40.0% is

owned by the Council.

Loans outstanding at 31 March 2020 anddueto the
Councilare£0.091m (£0.191mat 31 March 2019).

c) Financial performance

The Company ceased tradingatits currentlocationin

February 2018and is currently considering options for
futuretrading butasat31st March 2020, thereare no
material transactions for the financial year.

d) Council Officers/Members on the Board

The following Council representatives are/were
directors of the Company during 2019/20: Greg Ward.
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Note 37 Contingent Liabilities

No liability is recognisedif an outflow of economicresources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Suchsituations are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
outflow of resources is remote.

Thereareno contingent liabilities at the reporting date.
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Note 38 Contingent Assets

A contingentasset arises where an event has taken
placethat gives the Council a possible asset whose
existence will only be confirmedby the occurrence or
otherwise of uncertainfuture events not wholly
within the control of the Council. Contingent assets
arenotrecognised in the Balance Sheetbutare
disclosed in anoteto theaccounts whereitis
probablethattherewill bean inflow of economic
benefits or service potential.

i) In connection with the sale of the Dolphin Square
residential complex, a company called Dolphin Square
2005 Ltd was set up to manage tenants’ rights. The
Company was partfunded by a proportion of the
Council’s proceeds and a legal chargeis held over this
fundin favour of the Council. Any unexpended
amountwill bereturned, inclusive of interest, to the
Council on theevent of the winding up of the
Company or when therelevant number of tenants
with protected rights falls below twenty.

ii) Following the decision of the Supreme Court to
allowin partthe City Council’s appeal in relationto
the recoveryof costs throughlicence fees, the
European Court of Justice has now issued a rulingon
matters referred to it by the Supreme Court. The City
Councilisnow seeking an Orderfromthe
Administrative Court forthereturn of the sum of
approximately £1.4m paidto the claimants. Itis
considered thatthereisagood prospectthatthe
Courtwill agreeto do so.
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Note 39a Fair Value — Basis of Valuation

The basis of valuation of each class of investment asset is set out below. There has been no change in the valuation techniques used during the year. All assets have been valued
using fair value techniques based on the characteristics of each instrument, with the overall objective of maximising the use of market-based information.

Description of asset or Valuation Basis of valuation Observable and unobservable inputs Key sensitivities affecting the valuations provided
liability hierarchy
Assets and liabilities held Level 2 Fairvalue has been assessed by calculating the For PWLB loans payable, PWLB premature Not required.
atamortised cost present value of the cash flows that take place repayment rates.
over the remaining life of the instruments. For non-PWLB loans payable, prevaioling
market rates.
For loans receivable, prevailing market rates.
No early repayment is recognised.
Where instruments have a maturity of less
than 12 months or are trade or other
receivables, fairvalue is taken to be the
carrying amount or billed amount.
Investment property Level 2 Valued at Fair Value at the year-end by Assumed void periods All variables listed are observable inputs and susceptible to market

Sanderson Weatherall, using thg investment Estimated Rental Value (ERV) change.

method of valuation. The yaluatlons have been e ) ) The portfolio experiences high occupancy levels with most assets capable

prepared in accordance with the RICS Capitalisation Rate (Equivalent Yield) ) )

) of generating good levels of tenant demand in the current market.

Vﬂaluatlon —Glo”bal Stanqards (}anuary 2020) Consequently, the total Fair Value reported for the portfolio has a low

(“the Red Book”) - ifmd in particular VPS 4 and level of sensitivity to significant changes in the assumed void period

UKVS 1, 2 and 4. This report also takes account input

of the requirements of the CIPFA Code of '

Practice on Local Authority Accounting. In contrast, the total Fair Value of the portfolio has a much higher level of
sensitivity to significant change in both the ERV and Equivalent Yield
inputs.

Investment in closed Level 3 Council's share of the Net Asset Value of the NAV based on the latest quarterly unaudited Material economic events occurring between 31 December 2019 and 31
pooled property fund fund accounts. March 2020
Investment property held Level 3 Valued at fair value using the investment Existing lease terms and rentals. The valuation is sensitive to both assumptions.

for sale

method of valuation by Sanderson Weatherall
in accordance with the RICS Valuation - Global
Standards 2020
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Note 39b Valuation of Assets and Liabilities Measured at

Fair Value

Financial and non-financial assets and liabilities
measured at Fair Value are classified in accordance
with threelevels as shown below:

e Level 1inputs—quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identicalassets that
the Council canaccess atthe measurement
date.

e level 2inputs—inputsother thanquoted
pricesincluded within Level 1 thatare
observablefor the asset, either directly or
indirectly.

e Level 3inputs—unobservableinputs forthe
asset.

The following table provides an analysis of the
financial assets and liabilities of the Fund grouped
into thelevel at which fair valueis observable.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Quoted Using With Quoted Using With
market observable significant market price observable significant
price inputs  unobservable inputs  unobservable
inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Assets
- - 24,366  Fairvalue through profit and loss assets - - 29,874
- 115,608 - Assets atamortised cost - 230 -
- 472,825 - Investment property - 499,381 -
- - - Assets held forsale - - -
- 588,433 24,366 Total Financial Assets - 499,611 29,874
Liabilities at Amortised Cost*
- 180,584 - Borrowing: Public Works Loan Board - 174,113 -
(PWLB)
- 101,150 - Lender Option Borrower Option loan - 95,899 -
- 4,045 - Service Concessions - 3,065 -
- 285,779 - Total Liabilities - 273,077 -

*Loans and service concession liabilities are disclosed at fair value in this Note in accordance with the Code but are

carried atamortised cost in the Council’s balance sheet.
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Note 39c Transfers between Levels 1 and 2

There were no transfers of assets between levels 1 and 2 during theyear.

Note 39d Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements
within Level 3

=
S

B

S

2018/19 1 April 2018 Transfers into Transfers out of Purchases Sales Unrealised Realised 31 March 2019 E
Level 3 Level 3 gains/(losses) gains/(losses) P

>

a

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 8

c

Pooled property fund 15,000 - - 11,000 - (1,634) - 24,366 3
w

N

Assets held forsale* - 40,000 - - (40,000) - - - =
(-]

S~

[

15,000 40,000 - 11,000 (40,000) (1,634) - 24,366 S

s

=

o

=5

a

2019/20 1 April 2019 Transfers into Transfers out of Purchases Sales Unrealised Realised 31 March 2020 5'
Level 3 Level 3 gains/(losses) gains/(losses) 3

.

m

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 5

Pooled property fund & 24,366 - - 6,391 - (883) - 29,874 g
Luton Street A

24,366 - - 6,391 - (883) - 29,874

*In March 2018, property was re-classified to Assets held for sale, pendingimminent sale.




Note 40 Events After the Reporting Period

The Director of Finance and Resources authorised the
Statement of Accounts on 24 November 2020.
Events taking place after this dateare notreflected in
the financial statements or notes. Where events
taking place before this date provided information
about conditions existing at 31 March 2020, the
figuresin thefinancial statements and notes have
been adjusted in all material respects to reflect the
impact of thisinformation.

Covid-19has had animpact on the Council’s 2020/21
financial positionand the Council is forecasting a
variance against budgetin therange of £50mto
£60m, largely due to a shortfallin commercial
income. This is partly offset by grantincome from
central government and the remainder will be funded
from useablereserves.
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Note 41 Prior Period Adjustment

A review of the Council's accounts identified the following issue requiring restatement of the 2018/19 figures.

Marylebone Boys' School, a part of the Dudley House site development, was completed in October 2018 and disposed of, but not written out of the books of the Council until

2019/20, whenthe whole development was complete. This has now been rectified and the write-out of the school effected in the 2018/19 accounts.

As the adjustment occurs during 2018/19, the balances at 1 April 2018 are not affected and as such no restatement is required.

EFFECT ON COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT 2018/19

2018/19 as previously stated Restatement
Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School

2018/19 Restated

£'000 £'000
Other operating income and expenditure (15,648) 22,918
(S urplus)/Deficit on provision of services (99,991) 22,918
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Surplus)/Deficit (201,427) 22,918

£'000
7,270
(77,073)

(178,509)

EFFECT ON MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT — GENERAL FUND BALANCE

2018/19 as previously stated Restatement

Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School

2018/19 Restated

£'000 £'000
(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services (91,666) 22,918
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (91,666) 22,918

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations (25,589) (22,918)

£'000
(68,748)
(68,748)

(48,507)

=
D
()]
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
a
2]
(@]
c
2
puur
w
N
(=]
=
o
SN
N
(=]
[~}
(=)
[ ]
=
(@]
=5
m
(%]
—
O
=
.
m
>
a
o]
(@]
c
=
=
wv




Note 41 Prior Period Adjustment (continued)

EFFECT ON MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT — GENERAL FUND TOTAL

2018/19 as previously stated

Restatement

Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School

2018/19 Restated

£'000 £'000 £'000

(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services (91,666) 22,918 (68,748)

Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (91,666) 22,918 (68,748)

Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations (25,589) (22,918) (48,507)
EFFECT ON MOVEMENT IN RESERVES - TOTAL USABLE RESERVES

2018/19 as previously Restatement 2018/19 Restated

stated Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School
£'000 £'000 £'000
(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services (99,991) 22,918 (77,073)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (99,991) 22,918 (77,073)
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations (81,843) (22,918) (104,761)
EFFECT ON MOVEMENT IN RESERVES - TOTAL UNUSABLE RESERVES
2018/19 as previously Restatement 2018/19 Restated

stated Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School
£'000 £'000 £'000
Adjustments between accounting basis & funding basis under regulations 81,843 22,918 104,761
Net (increase)/decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (19,593) 22,918 3,325
(Increase)/Decrease in Year (19,593) 22,918 3,325
Balance at 31 March 2019 (1,656,661) 22,918 (1,633,743)
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Note 41 Prior Period Adjustment (continued)

EFFECT ON MOVEMENT IN RESERVES — TOTAL COUNCIL RESERVES

2018/19 as previously stated Restatement 2018/19 Restated

Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School

£'000 £'000 £'000

(Surplus)/Deficit on provision of services (99,991) 22,918 (77,073)
Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (201,427) 22,918 (178,509)
Net (increase)/decrease before Transfers to Earmarked Reserves (201,427) 22,918 (178,509)
(Increase)/Decrease in Year (201,427) 22,918 (178,509)
Balance at 31 March 2019 (2,479,909) 22,918 (2,456,991)

EFFECT ON BALANCE SHEET AT 31 MARCH 2019

2018/19 as previously stated Restatement 2018/19 Restated

Disposal - Marylebone Boys' School

£'000 £'000 £'000
Property, plant and equipment 2,532,109 (22,918) 2,509,191
Total long-term assets 3,141,258 (22,918) 3,118,340
Net Assets 2,479,909 (22,918) 2,456,991
Total Unusable Reserves (1,656,661) 22,918 (1,633,743)

.
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Group Accounts and Explanatory Notes

INTRODUCTION

The purpose ofthe GroupAccountsisto providea
picture of Westminster City Council and the group of
companies and otherentities, whichare either
controlledor are significantlyinfluenced by the
Council. The GroupAccounts showthe full extent of
the Authority’s widerassets and liabilities. While the
Group Accounts are not primary statements, they
providetransparency and enable comparisonwith
other entities that have different corporate entities.

The Group Accounts include the following:

e Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement - summarises
the resources thathave been
generated and consumedin providing
services and managing the Group
duringtheyear.Itincludes all day-to-
day expenses and related income on an
accruals basis.

e  Group Movement in Reserves - shows
the movementin theyear on the
Council's single entity usable and
unusablereserves together with the
Council's share of the Groupreserves.

Group Balance Sheet-reportsthe
Council Group financial position at the
year-end.

Group Cash Flow Statement - showsthe
changesin cash and cash equivalents of
the Group duringtheyear.The
statement shows how the Group
generates and uses cash and cash
equivalents by classifying cashflows as
operating, financingand investing
activities.

Notes to the Group Accounts where the
balances are materially different to
thosein the single entity accounts.

RESULTS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The following notes provide additional details about
the Authority'sinvolvementin the entities
consolidatedto formthegroupaccounts.

Westminster Community Homes Ltd

The company is a housing development vehicle for
the Council andis structuredas an Industrial and
Provident Society. The Council holds one of the three
sharesin thecompany. The Council has dominant
control of the company byvirtue of guaranteed
majority voting rights on the Board. Three officers of
the Council are membersof the Board.

For 2019/20, the company’sresults showed a deficit
of £2.390m (£0.145m surplus in 2018/19), and net
assetsof £9.320m (£11.713mat31 March2019).
Loans outstanding fromthe Council to the company
total £9.147m (£10.158m at 31 March2019).

A full copy of the company'saccounts can be
obtained fromthe Directors, Westminster Community
Homes Ltd, 64 Victoria Street, London SW1E6QP. The
accounts areaudited by Jones Avens Ltd.
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Other entities within the Group
The other entities within the Group are:

WestCo Trading Ltd, which provides
communications supportand business
transformation programmes mainly to public
sector clients. Thecompanyis a private
limited company with share capital of
£0.080mandis whollyowned bythe Council.
The company broke evenin 2019/20
(£0.014min 2018/19), and had net assets of
£0.997m (£0.956m at 31 March 2019).

Hub Make Lab CIC, which trades as Hub
Westminster, provides low cost office space
in the heart of London’s West End for start-
up businesses. In 2019/20, the company
reported aloss of £3.210m. (£0.039m loss in
2018/19), and net liabilities of £0329.m (net
liabilities of £0.321mat 31 March2019)

Paddington Recreation Ground charity was
set up under the Paddington Recreation
Ground Act 1893 to managetheland and
facilities at Paddington Recreation Groundin
perpetuity. The Council is sole trustee of the
charity, whichaims to break even year-on-
year, entirely supported by funding from the
Council. The charity generateda surplus of
£0.933min 2019/20(£0.323min 2019/20).

Westminster Housing Investments Group
which includes, Westminster Housing
Developments Limited, and Luton Street LLP
to provide cost effective housing in
Westminster and the rest of London madea
loss of £0.096min 2019/20, the first year of
trading, the group has netliabilities of
£0.252m).
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Group Account Statements

GROUP COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

The statement shows the economic costin year of providingservices in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice s/IFRS, ratherthan the amount to be funded
fromtaxation. Councils' raise taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations: this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position, general fund, is
shown in the Movementin Reserves statement.

2018/19 Restated* 2019/20

Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
94,509 (9,224) 85,285  Finance & Resources 112,615 (63,281) 49,334
8,601 (12,243) (3,642)  Policy, Performance & Communications 7,718 (10,402) (2,684)
153,204 (92,710) 60,494  Adult Services 151,862 (93,661) 58,201
146,086 (97,369) 48,717  Children’s Services 162,551 (115,551) 47,000
194,767 (134,903) 59,864  City Management & Communities 192,637 (140,096) 52,541
433,163 (404,023) 29,140  Growth, Planning & Housing 443,780 (374,671) 69,109
1,030,330 (750,472) 279,858 Cost of Services — Continuing Operations 1,071,163 (797,662) 273,501
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Group Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (continued)

2018/19 Restated* 2019/20
Gross Gross Net Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure Income Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
- (19,681) (19,681)  Other operating expenditure 1,814 - 1,814
1,220 (13,397) (12,177)  Financing and investment income and expenditure 511 (32,874) (32,363)
- (350,317) (350,317)  Taxation and non-specific grant Income - (315,520) (315,520)
1,031,550 (1,133,867) (102,317)  (Surplus)/Deficit on Provision of Services 1,073,488 (1,146,056) (72,568)
8 - 8  Taxexpenses of subsidiary 17 - 17
1,031,558 (1,133,867) (102,309) Group (Surplus)/Deficit 1,073,505 (1,146,056) (72,551)

(Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of financial assets (Available
223 - 223 - - -

for sale)

- (66,344) (66,344)  (Surplus)/deficit on revaluation of fixed assets - (68,748) (68,748)
- (39,893) (39,893)  Actuarial (Gains)/Losses on Pensions Assets and Liabilities - (93,911) (93,911)
223 (106,237) (106,014) Other Comprehensive Income And Expenditure - (162,659) (162,659)
1,031,781 (1,240,104) (208,323) Total Comprehensive Income And Expenditure 1,073,505 (1,308,715) (235,210)

*For furtherdetail, pleaserefer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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GROUP MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

2018/19 Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves Total Unusable Total Authority's Total
. Usable Reserves Authority share of Group
Restated Reserves Reserves subsidiaries Reserves
General  Earmarked Schools General Housing Ear- HRA Capital Capital
Fund General Reserves Fund Revenue marked Total Receipts Grants
Balance Fund Total Account HRA Reserve Unapplied
Reserves Reserves
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 31
March 2018 (59,597) (151,333) (5,643) | (216,573) (25,366) (9,169) (34,535) (61,612) (329,426) (642,146) (1,580,737) (2,222,883) (63,391) (2,286,274)
Restated

Movementin
reserves during
2018/19

(Surplus) or deficit
on provision of
services
(accounting basis)

(68,748) = = (68,748) (8,325) = (8,325) = - (77,073) = (77,073) (25,639) (102,712)

Other

Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

- - - - - - - - - - (101,435) (101,435) (4,579) (106,014)

Total
Comprehensive
Income and
Expenditure

(68,748) - - (68,748) (8,325) - (8,325) - - (77,073) (101,435) (178,508) (30,218) (208,726)
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement (continued)

2018/19 Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves Total Unusable Total Authority's Total Group
Restated* Usable Reserves Authority share of Reserves
Reserves Reserves subsidiaries
General  Earmarked Schools General Housing Ear- HRA Capital Capital
Fund General Reserves Fund Revenue marked Total Receipts Grants
Balance Fund Total Account HRA Reserve Unapplied
Reserves Reserves
£'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Adjustments
between group
accounts and 731 - - 731 - - - - - 731 3,752 4,483 -4,080 403
authority
accounts
Net increase (68,017) - -| (68,017) | (8,325) | (8325) - - (76,342)  (97,683)  (174,025) (34,298) (208,323)
before transfers
Adjustments
between
accounting basis (48,507) - - (48,507) 25,626 - 25,626 (65,879) (16,001)  (104,761) 104,761 - -
& funding basis
under regulations
Net Increase /
Decrease before
Transfers to (116,524) - - | (116,524) 17,301 - 17,301 (65,879) (16,001) (181,103) 7,078 (174,025) (34,298) (208,323)
Earmarked
Reserves
Transfers to/
from Earmarked 113,338 (116,564) 3,226 - (9,169) 9,169 - - - - - - - -
Reserves
Increase /
(3,186) (116,564) 3,226 | (116,524) 8,132 9,169 17,301 (65,879) (16,001) (181,103) 7,078 (174,025) (34,298) (208,323)
Decrease In Year
Balance at 31
(62,783) (267,897) (2,417) | (333,097) | (17,234) - | (17,234) | (127,491) (345,427) (823,249) (1,573,659) (2,396,908) (97,689) (2,494,598)

March 2019

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement (continued)

2019/20 Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves Total Unusable Total Authority's Total

Usable Reserves Authority share of Group

General Earmarked Schools General Housing Ear- HRA Capital Capital Reserves Reserves subsidiaries Reserves

Fund General Reserves Fund Revenue marked Total Receipts Grants
Balance Fund Total Account HRA Reserve Unapplied
Reserves Reserves
£000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000 Q
Balance at 31 -
T (62,783) (267,897) (2,417) | (333,097) | (17,234) - | (17,234) (127,491) (345,427) (823,249)  (1,573,659) (2,396,908) (97,689) (2,494,598) 3
2
Movementin g
reserves during P
2019/20 8
c
(Surplus) or deficit é
on provision of
g (44,546) = - | (aa546) | (12,539) - | (12,539) s = (57,085) = (57,085) 1,686 (55,399) S
services 2
(accounting basis) E
N
Other 5
Comprehensive

P - - - - - - - . - -~ (162,659 (162,659) - (162659) o
Income and 8
Expenditure 31;
]
Total o)
Comprehensive %
Income and (44,546) - - (44,546) (12,539) - (12,539) - - (57,085) (162,659) (219,744) 1,686 (218,058) z
Expenditure Z
=
S
* Theunusablereservesinclude the revaluation reserve for dwellings held by Westminster Community Homes Ltd. Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure includes the %
. . - . . e L >
adjustmentfor the re-valuation to Existing Use Value - Social Housing on consolidationinto the Council's Group Accounts 3
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Group Movement in Reserves Statement (continued)

2019/20 Revenue Reserves Capital Reserves Total Unusable Total Authority's Total
Usable Reserves Authority share of Group
General  Earmarked Schools General Housing Ear- HRA Total Capital Capital  Reserves Reserves subsidiaries Reserves

Fund General Reserves Fund Revenue marked Receipts Grants
Balance Fund Total Account HRA Reserve Unapplied
Reserves Reserves

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Adjustments

between group
accounts = = = - - - - - - - - - (17,153) (17,153)
authority
accounts

Net increase

before transfers (44,546) - - | (44,546) | (12,539) - (12,539) - - (57,085)  (162,659)  (219,744) (15,467)  (235,211)

Adjustments
between
accounting basis 11,517 - - 11,517 12,408 - 12,408 31,637 (6,534) 49,028 (49,028) = = =
& funding basis
under regulations

Net (Increase) /
Decrease before
Transfers to (33,029) - - (33,029) (131) - (131) 31,637 (6,534) (8,057) (211,687) (219,744) (15,467) (235,211)
Earmarked
Reserves

Transfers to/
from Earmarked 32,499 (33,168) 669 - - - - - = o o - - -
Reserves

(Increase) / (530) (33,168) 669 (33,029) (131) - (131) 31,637 (6,534) (8,057) (211,687) (219,744) (15,467) (235,211)
Decrease In Year

Balance at 31 (63,313) (301,065) (1,748) | (366,126) (17,365) - (17,365) (95,854) (351,961) (831,306) (1,785,346) (2,616,652) (113,156) (2,729,808)
March 2020
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

31 March 2019 Restated* 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000
ASSETS
Non-current
2,564,688  Property, plant and equipment 2,746,503
42,846  Heritage Assets 44,578
472,825  Investment property 499,382
731 Intangible Assets 1,318
25,070  Long -term investments 85,633
58,457  Long -term debtors 54,450
3,164,618 Totallong Term Assets 3,431,864
Current
673,751  Short-term investments 543,945
357  Inventories 22,197
147,436  Short-term debtors 97,559
53,508  Cashand other cash equivalents 45,119
1,238  Assets held forsale -
876,290 Current Assets 708,820
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Group Balance Sheet (continued)

31 March 2019 Restated* 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000
LIABILITIES
(2,485)  Short-term borrowing (16,828)
(348,595)  Short-term creditors (354,306)
(893)  Short-term provisions (687)
(16,979)  short-term RIA (23,226)
(368,952)  Current Liabilities (395,047)
(4321)  Long-term creditors (227)
(144,150)  Provisions (72,299)
(222519)  Long-term borrowing (216,446)
- Grants deferred -
(720,187)  Other long-term liabilities (642,316)
(86,180)  Capital Grants - Receipts in Advance (84,541)
(1,177,357)  Long-term liabilities (1,015,829)
2,494,598  Net assets 2,729,808
(823,249)  Total Usable Reserves (831,306)
(1,573,659)  Total Unusable Reserves (1,785,346)
(97,689)  share of Subsidiary reserves (113,156)
(2,494,598) Total Reserves (2,729,808)

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2018/19  Group Cash Flow Statement 2019/20
Restated*
£'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
(77,073) Operating loss/surplus for the financial year (57,085)
(10,521)  Interest received (11,302)
11,101  Interest paid 8,502
Adjust net surplus or deficit on the provision of services for non-cash movements
(87,213)  Depreciation (77,516)
(8,183)  Impairment and downward valuations (26,517)
(3,561) Increase/(decrease) in creditors 16,087
(63,384)  Increase/(decrease) in provisions -
67,321 (Increase)/decrease in debtors (29,609)
7  (Increase)/decrease in inventories 15
(71,802)  Movement in pension liability (17,022)
(89,498)  Carrying amount of non-current assets and non-current assets held for sale, sold or derecognised (18,426)
9,224  Other non-cash items charged to the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 90,229
(247,089) Sub-total of non-cash movements (62,759)
Adjust foritems included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing
or financing activities
113,642  Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible assets 23,420
32,700  Any other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows 115,460
146,342 iSnuvt;-:;:;l::;::itcraznatsctiir\lﬂctliue(ied in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of servises that are 138,880
5,431  Subsidary's Cash Flows from Operating Activities by Group Entities 7,021
(172,389) Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 26,057
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

2018/19  Group Cash Flow Statement 2019/20
Restated*
£'000 £'000
Investing activities
279,913 Purchase of property, plant and equipment, investment property and intangible 240,046
assets
2,954,718  Purchase of short-term and long-term investments 1,336,050
(113,642) Z:ch;etgzgfirslr: at:See:Sale of property, plant and equipment, investment property (23.420)
(3,138,289)  Proceeds from short-term and long-term investments (1,402,030)
(23,710)  Other receipts from investing activities (113,821)
(41,010) Authority's Cash Flows from Investing Activities 36,825
9,450  Subsidiary's Cash Flows from Investing Activities N[O
(31,560) Net cash flowsfrom investing activities 51,019
(2,000) Cash receipts of short- and long-term borrowing -
19 Cash payments for the reduction of outstanding liabilities relating to finance 20
leases and on-Balance-Sheet PF| contracts
30,040 Repayments of short- and long-term borrowing 3,004
302,105 Other payments for financing activities (44,503)
330,164 Authority's Cash Flows from Financing Activities (41,479)
(5,937)  Subsidiary's Cash Flows from Investing Financing (27,208)
324,227 Net cash flowsfrom financing activities (68,687)
120,278 Net (increase) ordecrease in cash and cash equivalents 8,389
173,786  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period 53,508
53,508 Cashand cashequivalents at the end of the reporting period 45,119

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 1 Accounting Policies for the Group

The Group Accounts have been preparedin
accordance with the Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2019/20,
issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance
and Accountancy (CIPFA).

The Council has consolidated its interests in all the
entities over which it exercises control orsignificant
influence. Westminster Community Homes Ltd
Westminster Housing Investments Group have been
consolidated because together they are material to
the Council’s balance sheet. In addition the Council
has consolidatedthe following remainingentities
within the Council Groupin orderto providea full
picture of the Council’s arrangements for good
governance:

e WestCo Trading Ltd
e \Westminster Procurement Services Ltd/CIC
e Hub Makelab Ltd

e PaddingtonRecreation Ground Charity

The results of entities, which the Council controls,
have been consolidatedon aline by line basis as
subsidiaries.

Where group entities use different accounting policies
to the Council, their accounts have been restated to
re-align their accounting policies with those of the
Council wherethe effect of not doingso wouldbe
material to the reader’s interpretation of the
accounts.

Grants held by Westminster Community Homes Ltd
areheld on an amortised basis, as prescribedin the
Housing AssociationsSORP. Uponconsolidation into
the Council’s Groupaccounts thegrants are
recognised asincome once conditions are met, in
order to comply withthe CIPFA Code of Practice.

Intra-grouptransactions have been eliminated before
consolidationon aline by line basis.
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Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment

Property, plantand equipment withinthe Groupis measured at current value and revalued at least every five years, by the Council’s valuers Sanderson Weatherall.

Details of when the Council’s property plantand equipment were revalued are shownin Note 1 9b to the single entity accounts.

2018/19 Restated* Council Other Land and Vehicles, Plant, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Property,
Dwellings Buildings Furniture & Assets Assets Construction Plant and

Equipment Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Gross bookvalue

At 1 April 2018 (Restated) 1,519,304 561,013 71,636 477,268 21,301 117,202 2,767,724
Additions 81,844 65,909 6,292 53,391 1,834 74,220 283,490
Revaluations increases/(decrease) recognised in the Revaluation Reserve (69,101) 68,677 - - - (424)

Revaluations increases/(decrease) recognised in the Surplus/deficit on the

Provision of Services - (8,3827) - - - - (8,827)
Derecognition - disposals (4,606) (22,918) (1,170) - - (28,694)
Derecognition - other (57) (1,052) - - - (13,282) (14,391)
Assets reclassified - (52,491) - - = (35,061) (64,634)
At 31 March 2019 1,527,384 633,229 76,758 530,659 23,135 143,079 2,934,244

*For further detail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment (continued)

2018/19 Council Dwellings  Other Land and Vehicles, Plant, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Property, Plant
Buildings Furniture & Assets Assets Construction and Equipment
Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2018 (29,500) (8,866) (67,484) (243,800) - - (349,650)
Depreciation Charge (19,413) (26,331) (2,294) (40,516) - - (88,554)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 36,147 24,120 - - - - 60,267
Accumulated Impairment written out to the Revaluation 6,600 ) ) B ) ) 6,600
Reserve
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit ) 616 ) } . ) 616
on the Provision of Services
Derecognition - disposals 15 _ 1,099 - - - 1,114
Derecognition - other 20 31 - - - _ 51
At 31 March 2019 (6,131) (10,430) (68,679) (284,316) - - (369,556)
Net book value:
At 31 March 2019 (Restated) 1,521,253 622,799 8,079 246,343 23,135 143,079 2,564,688
At 31 March 2018 (Restated) 1,489,804 552,147 4,152 233,468 21,301 117,202 2,418,074
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Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment (continued)

2019/20 Council Other Land and Vehicles, Plant, Infrastructure Community Assets Under  Total Property, Plant
Dwellings Buildings Furniture & Assets Assets Construction and Equipment
Equipment
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Gross bookvalue
At 1 April 2019 Restated* 1,527,384 633,229 76,758 530,659 23,135 143,079 2,934,244
Additions 84,623 30,072 4,375 50,287 1,965 78,306 249,628
Revaluations increases/(decrease) recognised in the Revaluation (5,405) 9,939 ) ) ) ) 4,534
Reserve
Revaluations increases/(decrease) recognised in the Surplus/deficit
- ) (5,116) (25,417) - - - - (30,533)
on the Provision of Services
Derecognition - disposals (9,909) (7,639) - - - (357) (17,905)
Derecognition (386) (2,849) - - - (832) (4,067)
Assets reclassified 7,691 (9,895) (63) - - 2,267 -
Other Movement in Cost or Valuation 9,423 48,580 - 2 2 (59,550) (1,543)
At 31 March 2020 1,608,305 676,020 81,070 580,948 25,102 162,913 3,134,358

*For furtherdetail, please refer to Note 41 — Prior Period Adjustment
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Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment (continued)

2019/20 Council Dwellings Other Land and Vehicles, Plant, Infrastructure Community Assets Under Total Property, Plant
Buildings Furniture & Assets Assets Construction and Equipment
Equipment

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At1 April 2019 (6,131) (10,430) (68,679) (284,316) = = (369,556)
Depreciation Charge (17,829) (25,907) (2,842) (31,392) - - (77,970)
Depreciation written out to the Revaluation Reserve 31,500 22,006 - - - - 53,506
Impairment losses/(reversals) recognised in the Surplus/Deficit
on the Provision of Services ) 4,393 ) ) ) ) 4,393
Derecognition - disposals 24 449 - - - - 473
Derecognition - other 22 - - - - - 22
Other Movements in Depreciation and Impairments - 1,995 (2) - - (716) 1,277
At 31 March 2020 7,586 (7,494) (71,523) (315,708) - (716) (387,855)
Net book value:
At 31 March 2020 1,615,891 668,526 9,547 265,240 25,102 162,197 2,746,503
At 31 March 2019 1,521,253 622,799 8,079 246,343 23,135 143,079 2,564,688
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Note 3 Group Inventories

Critical Judgements in Applying

2019/20

Accounting Policies

Opening balance at 1 April 2019 357

Westminster Housing Investments Group which includes, Westminster Housing Developments Purchases 21,950

Limited, and Luton Street LLP provide cost effective housing in Westminster. The sole businessactivity  pecognised as an expense during the period (110)
of Luton Street LLP is to build assets to sell. Therefore related expenditureis treated as work in

progress during theyear and the Council recognises the expenditure as inventory on consolidation. At 31 March 2019 22,197
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6.
Supplementary
Accounts and

- Notes




Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Statements

HRA INCOME AND EXPENDITURE HRA Income and Expenditure Statement
STATEMENT AND MOVEMENT ON HRA 2018/19 2019/20
BALANCE £000 £'000
This account shows the cost of financing, managing Expenditure
and maintaining the Council’shousing stock. The total 20,162 Repairs and Maintenance 24459
costis met by incomefromrents, charges and other
income such as commercialrents. The Council 50,906 Supervision and Management 50,583
brought Housing Services in house from 2019/20, 1,378  Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 1,568
which was prEViOUSIVOUtsourced tothe Council’s 397  Increase/(decrease) in Impairment Allowance for Doubtful Debts (1,302)
Arm’s Length Management Organisations(ALMO),

24,800  Depreciation, Impairment and Revaluation losses in relation to non-current assets 26,354

City West Homes. There was no management fee for
192019/20and CWH staff were transferred over to 130  Debt Management Cost 98
the Council as part of TUPE arrangements. The

. . . 97,773 Total HRA Expenditure 101,760
increase or decreasein HRA Balances, on the basis
upon which income and expenditure are managed, is
shown in the Movement on the Housing Revenue HRA Income
Account Statement. (73,764)  Dwellings Rents (72,810)
(1,154)  Non-dwellings Rents (1,794)
(7,434)  Charges for Services and Facilities (7,488)
(21,809)  Contributions towards Expenditure (19,264)
(104,161) TotalHRAIncome (101,356)
(6,388) Net Cost of HRA services as included in the whole-authority Income and Expenditure Statement 404
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Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Statements (continued)

HRA Income and Expenditure Statement (continued)

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000
45  HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic Core 163
(6,343) Net Cost of HRA services including HRA share of costs not allocated to specific services 567
(11,942)  (Gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets (8,971)
(245)  Capital grants and contributions (5,803)
7,998 Movements in the fairvalue of investment properties (770)
11,017 Interest payable and similar charges 10,000
(8,329)  HRA Investment Property income (7,494)
(481)  HRA Investment Income (68)
(8,325) (Surplus) or deficit for the year on HRA services (12,539)
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2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000
Movement on the Housing Revenue Accou nt Statement
(25,366) Balance onthe HRA atthe end of the previous reporting period (17,234)
(8,325)  (Surplus) or deficit for the year on the HRA Services (12,539)
Adjustments between the accounting basis and funding basis:
24,256  Transfer to Major Repairs Reserve 23,331
11,942  (Gain) or loss on sale of HRA non-current assets 8,962
(7,998)  Movements in the fairvalue of investment properties 770
22,148  Capital expenditure funded by the HRA -
77  Financial Instrument Adjustment 59
(24,799)  Transfer (to) the Capital Adjustment Account (CAA) (20,714)
17,301 Net (increase) ordecrease before transfers to or from reserves (131)
(9,169)  Transfers (to) or from earmarked reserves -
8,132 Increase or (decrease) in year on the HRA (131)
(17,234)  Balance onthe HRA at the end of the current reporting period (17,365)
- Earmarked Reserves -
(17,234) Total HRA Reserves (17,365)
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Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Explanatory Notes

HRA 1 Housing Stock

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000

741 Rented Houses 748

11,029 Rented Flats 11,009

70 Shared Ownership 80

8,927 Leasehold Properties 8,949

20,767 Total Stock 20,786
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HRA 2 Housing Asset Valuation

a) The vacant possession fair value of HRA tenanted dwellings is £6.206bn.

b) The difference between the vacant possession value and the Balance Sheet value of dwellings within the HRA adjusts for the economic cost to the Government of providing
housing at below market rents. This costis determined by applying the Government prescribed discount rate (25% of Market Value) to the vacant possession value.

HRA 3 Rent Arrears and Provision

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000

3,218 Rent Arrears 2,966

(1,417) Bad Debt Provision (1,448)

1,801 Total 1,517
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Collection Fund Accounts

The Collection Fund shows the transactions of the billing authorityin relationto the collection of counciltaxand non -domestic rates from local taxpayers, and its subsequent
distributionto local authorities and the Government. Thereis no requirement for a separate Collection Fund Balance Sheet since the assets and liabilities arising fromcollecting
non-domesticrates and council taxbelong to the bodies concerned (i.e. major preceptors, the billing authority and the Governmen t). The Council’s share of council taxand
business ratesincomeis reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an accruals basis in line with th e Code.

The Council’sshare of council taxand business rates incomeis reflected in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on an agency basisin line with the Code.
However, theamountto be reflected in the General Fund is determined byregulation. Therefore, thereis an adjustment for th e difference between the accruedincome and the

statutory credit made throughthe Movementin Reserves Statementand the Collection Fund Adjustment Account.

2018/19 2019/20
Business Rates  Business Rates Council Tax Total Collection Fund Business Rates  Business Rates Council Tax Total
Supplement Supplement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
INCOME

- - (95,162) (95,162)  Council Tax - - (104,703)  (104,703)

(2,167,524) - - (2,167,524) Non-domestic rates (2,224,437) - - (2,224,437)

(37,054) - - (37,054) Transitional protection payments - non-domestic rates 5,119 - - 5,119

- (80,058) - (80,058) Income collectable in respect of Business Rate Supplements - (78,908) - (78,908)
Contributions towards previous year's Collection Fund deficit:

- - - - Central Government - - - -

- - - - City of Westminster Council - - - -

- - = - Greater London Assembly - - - _

(2,204,579) (80,058) (95,162) (2,379,798) Total amounts to be credited (2,219,318) (78,908) (104,703) (2,402,929)
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Collection Fund Accounts

(continued)

2018/19 2019/20
Business Rates  Business Rates Council Tax Total Collection Fund Business Rates  Business Rates Council Tax Total
Supplement Supplement
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
EXPENDITURE
- - - - Transitional protection payments - non-domestic rates - - - -
Precepts, demands and shares
- - - - Central Government 555,939 - - 555,939
1,388,483 - 53,834 1,442,317 City of Westminster Council 1,067,403 - 56,683 1,124,086
781,022 - 37,907 818,928 Greater London Assembly 600,414 - 41,769 642,183
Business Rate Supplement:
- 79,575 - 79,575 Payment to levying authority's Business Rate Supplement Revenue Account - 77,976 - 77,976
= 102 = 102  Administrative Costs = 102 = 102
Charges to Collection Fund
9,832 381 2,661 12,874  Write-offs of uncollectable amounts 22,745 830 - 23,575
2,400 - (1,100) 1,300 Increase/(decrease) in allowance for impairment 200 - 3,920 4,120
(23,000) - - (23,000) Increase/(decrease) in allowance for appeals (72,500) - - (72,500)
3,310 - - 3,310 Charge to General Fund for allowable collection costs for non-domestic rates 3,324 - - 3,324
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Collection Fund Accounts (continued)

2018/19 2019/20
Business Rates  Business Rates Council Total Collection Fund Business Rates  Business Rates Council Tax Total
Supplement Tax Supplement
£'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Apportionment of previous year's estimated Collection Fund surplus:

123,126 - - 123,126  Central Government (11,442) - - (11,442)
85,859 - 900 86,759  City of Westminster Council 13,962 - 846 14,808
77,211 - 618 77,829  Greater London Assembly 875 - 598 1,473

2,448,242 80,058 94,820 2,623,120 Totalamounts to be debited 2,180,920 78,908 103,816 2,363,644
Movements on the Collection Fund

243,664 - (341) 243,322  (Surplus) /deficit arising during the year (38,398) - (887) (39,285)

(251,522) - (1,253) (252,775)  (Surplus)/deficit brought forward at 1 April (7,858) - (1,594) (9,453)

(7,858) - (1,594) (9,453)  (Surplus)/deficit carried forward at 31 March (46,256) - (2,481) (48,737)
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Collection Fund Explanatory Notes

COLL 1 General

The Council, as a billing authority, is statutorily
required to maintain a separate Collection Fund
accountas agentinto whichall transactions relating
to collection of business rate and counciltaxincome
from taxpayers and distributionto local government
bodies and central government are made. The
Collection Fundaccountis accounted for separately
fromthe General Fund.

Surpluses or deficits on the council taxincome and
distributions are apportionedto the relevant
precepting bodyin the following financial yearin
proportion to each body’sBand D Council Tax
amount.

Business rate surpluses or deficits are distributed in
accordance with the relevant proportions setoutin
the localised business rate regulations.

The proportions were as follows:

2018/19 2019/20

Council Tax Business Rates Council Tax  Business Rates
- - Department of Communities & Local Government - 25%

42.5% 36.0% Greater London Authority 42.5% 27%
57.5% 64.0% Westminster City Council (General Fund) 57.5% 48%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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COLL 2 Council Tax

Council taxis charged on residential properties based
upon valuationbandingsestablished when the system
was introducedin 1993. The number of propertiesin 2018/19 2019/20
each band and calculation of the tax base (adjusted to

Band Range of property Number of chargeable Multiplier Number of Band D -

. . 5
reflect relevantdlscoun.ts'and exemptlons)wa§ values (£) dwellings chargeable equivalent =
approvgd by.FUIICounUI mJanuhary 2018, andis dwellings dwellings >
summarised in the table to theright: =
£ £ (=

2

A 40,000 1,730 6/9 1,722 958 g

(@]

B 40,001 52,000 6,668 7/9 6,676 4,152 8

2

C 52,001 68,000 15,945 8/9 15,962 12,102 a

N

(=]

D 68,001 88,000 22,796 9/9 22,834 19,850 o

N

(=]

E 88,001 120,000 22,972 11/9 23,159 24,649 S

[ ]

F 120,001 160,000 17,635 13/9 17,806 22,642 z

B

G 160,001 320,000 22,788 15/9 23,180 34,688 E

<

H 320,001 15,522 18/9 15,867 29,923 %

>

126,056 127,206 148,963 E

(@]

Adjustment for Council Tax Reduction Scheme (13,698) g

=

Total 135,265 g

5

W estminster Council Share (96%) 129,854 z

3

Ministry of Defence Adjustment 465 o

Final Council Tax Base 130,320




COLL 3 Business Rates

The Council collects business rates forits area based The total rateable value for business premises as at
on rateablevalues (as determined by the Valuation the end of March 2020was £5.078bn (£5.164bn for
Office Agency) and multipliers set by central the prior year).

government. There are two multipliers: .
A system of Tariff and Top-Up payments operates on

Standard Multiplier 504p/f the localised shares distributedto local government
Rateable Value bodies (Westminster and the GLA). Asignificant
(49.3pin proportion of Westminster’s retained share
2018/19) (£1.067bn) in 2019/20 is subsequently top-sliced and

. o returned to Business Rates Poolfor redistribution
Small Business Multiplier 49.1p/£ : .
acrosslocal government. The main advtange of being

Rateable Value . . )
4800 partofthepoolis notpayinglevy on growthwhich
(48.0pin would normally be paid to MHCLG butis now
2018/19)

redistributed within London boroughs.
The total incometo bereceived in the year was

estimated and notified to related bodies in the

immediately precedingJanuary in accordance with

Regulations. Those estimates were as follows:
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2018/19 2019/20
£000 £'000
Central Government 555,939

1,388,483  Westminster City Council 1,067,403
781,022  Greater London Assembly 600,414

2,169,505 Total 2,223,756




COLL 4 Business Rates Supplements — Crossrail

Business Rates Supplement (BRS)is levied by the The aggregate rateable value of properties liable for BRS at 31st March 2020 was £4.546bn (the equivalent figure at
Greater London Authority onnon-domestic properties 31stMarch 2019 being £4.638bn). The multiplier has remained at 2.0p / £ since the BRS was introduced.

with a rateable value of £70,0000r moreand is

subject to certain allowances and exemptions.
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Pension Fund Accounts and Explanatory Notes

FUND ACCOUNT

2018/19 Notes 2019/20

£'000 £'000

Dealings with members, employers and others directlyinvolved in the fund

Contributions

(45,363) From Employers Note 6 (54,244)
(8,982) From Members Note 6 (10,105)
(6,897) Individual Transfers in from Other Pension Funds (8,267)

(61,242) (72,616)

Benefits
45,610 Pensions Note 7 47,628
7,464 Commutation, Lump Sum Retirement and Death Benefits Note 7 7,092
- Payments in respect of tax 1,190

Payments toand on Account of Leavers

4,919 Individual Transfers Out to Other Pension Funds 7,480
196 Refunds to Members Leaving Service 306
58,189 63,696
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Fund Account (continued)

2018/19 Notes 2019/20
£'000 £'000
(3,053) Net (Additions)/Withdrawals from Dealings with Members (8,920)
5,823 Management Expenses Note 8 6,834
2,770 Net (additions)/withdrawals including management expenses (2,086)
Returns on Investments
(12,194) Investment Income Note 9 (16,259)
(48) Other Income = (1,716)
(12,242) (17,975)
(72,884) (Profit) and loss on disposal of investments and changes in the market value of investments Note 11 114,859
(85,126) Net return oninvestments 96,884
(82,356) Net (Increase)/Decrease in the Net Assets Available for Benefits During the Year 94,798
(1,335,976) Opening Net Assets of the Scheme (1,418,332)
(1,418,332) Closing Net Assets of the Scheme (1,323,534)
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Net Assets Statement for the Year Ended 31 March 2020* (continued)

NET ASSETS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020*

2018/19 Notes 2019/20

£'000 £'000

- Investment assets
150 Equities 150
1,402,288 Pooled Investment Vehicles 1,300,427

Other Investment Balances:

120 Income Due 119

= Debtors =

5,802 Cash Deposits 19,044
1,408,360 1,319,740

- Investment Liabilities -

Note
1,408,360 Net Value of Investment Assets 1,319,740
10
Not
11,293 Current Assets ote 4,640
18
iabiliti Note
(1,321) Current Liabilities (846)
19
1,418,332 Net Assets of the Fund Available to Fund Benefits at the Period End 1,323,534

* The Fund's financial statements do not take account of liabilities to pay pensionsand other benefits after the periodend.
The actuarial presentvalue of promised retirement benefits is disclosed in Note 17.

[y
]
w
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
o
o
o
c
2
pur
»
N
=]
=
©
S
N
o
]
o
.
[%2]
c
B
)
—
m
<
m
=
=
>
X
=<
>
@)
o)
o
c
=
=
[%2]
>
=
o
=
o
=
m
w




Note 1 Description of the City of Westminster Pension

Fund

a) General

The Pension Fund (the Fund)is part of the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) and is
administered by the City of Westminster Council. Itis
a contributory defined benefits scheme established in
accordance with statute, which provides forthe
payment of benefits to employees and former
employees of the City of Westminster and the
admitted and scheduled bodies in the Fund. These
benefits include retirement pensions and early
payment of benefits on medical grounds and payment
of death benefits where death occurs either in service
orin retirement. The benefits payablein respect of
servicefrom 1st April 2014 are based on career
averagerevalued earnings and the number of years of
eligible service. Pensions areincreased each year in
line with the Consumer Price Index.

The Fund is governed bythe PublicService Pensions
Act 2013 and thefollowing secondary legislation:

o The LGPSRegulations 2013 (asamended)

o The LGPS (transitional Provisions, Savings and
Amendment) Regulations 2014 (as amended)
and

o The LGPS (Managementand Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2016.

b) Funding

The Fund is financedby contributions from
employees, the Council, the admitted and scheduled
bodies and frominterest and dividends onthe Fund’s
investments. Contributions are made by active
members of the Fund in accordance with the LGPS
Regulations 2013 andrangefrom 5.5% to 12.5% of
pensionable pay forthe financial yearending 31
March 2018. Employers also pay contributions into
the Fund based on triennial funding valuations. The
last such valuation was asat31 March 2019, this
coversthethreefinancial years following 2019/20.
Currently employer contribution rates range from
10.1%to 38.8% of pensionable pay, as per the 2016
valuation.
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Note 1 Description of the City of Westminster Pension Fund (continued)

c) Benefits d) Governance
Priorto 1 April 2014, pension benefitsunderthe LGPS were based on final pensionable pay andlength of The Council has delegated management of the fund
pensionable service, summarisedin the following table: to the Pension Fund Committee (the ‘Committee’)
| Service pre 1 April 2008 Service post 31 March 2008 who decide on theinvestment policy most suitable to
t the liabilities of the F h he ulti
Pension Each year worked is worth 1/80x Each year worked is worth 1/60x mee se !ébll €50 .t eFundand Aavet eultimate
final pensionable pay final pensionable pay responsibility fortheinvestment policy. The
Lump Sum Automatic lump sumof 3 xpension.  No automatic lump sum. Comm!tteels madeupoffour_l\/lerhbers ofthe
In addition, part of the annual Council each of whom has votingrights.
pension can beexchanged foraone- Partoftheannual pension canbe The Committee reports to the Full Council and has ful
offtax—free;ash'payment. Alump exchanged for a one-off tax-free , delegated authority to make investment decisions.
sum'of£1.2|s paid for each £1 of ca;h payment.AIumpsqmof£12|s The Committee considersviews from the Tri-Borough
pension given up. paid for each £1 of pension given up.

Director of Pensionsand Treasury, and obtains, as
necessary, advice fromthe Fund’s appointed

From 1 April 2014, the scheme became a career average revalued earnings (CARE) scheme, whereby members investmentadvisors, fund managers and actuary.
accrue benefits based on their pensionable pay in that year atan accrual rate of 1/49th. Accrued pension is

s _ ' In line with the provisions of the Public Service
updated annuallyin line with the Consumer Prices Index.

Pensions Act 2013 the Councilhas set up a Local
Therearea range of other benefits provided underthe schemeincluding early retirement, disability pensions, and Pension Boardto oversee the governance

death benefits. arrangements of the Pension Fund. The Board meets
guarterly and has its own Terms of Reference. Board
members areindependent of the Pension Fund
Committee.

Westminster Pension Fund provides an additionalvoluntary contributions (AVC) scheme for its members, the assets
of which areinvested separatelyfrom the pension fund. The Fund has used Aegon as its appointed AVC provider for
the past 15 years and Equitable Life before. AVCs are paid to the AVC providers by employers and specifically for
providing additional benefits forindividual contributors. Each AVC contributor receives an annual statement
showingtheamountheld in their accountand the movementsin theyear.
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Note 1 Description of the City of Westminster Pension Fund (continued)

e) Investment Principles

In accordance with the LGPS (Management and
Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016 the Committee
approved an Investment Strategy Statementon 21
March 2017 (available on the Council’s website). The
Statement shows the Authority’s compliance with the
Myners principles of investment management.

The Committee has delegated the management of the
Fund’sinvestments to external investment managers
(see Note 10) appointed in accordance with regulations,
and whose activities are specifiedin detailed investment
management agreements and monitoredon a quarterly
basis.

f) Membership The following table summarises the membership
Membership of the LGPSis voluntary andemployeesare  numbers of the scheme:
freeto choose whether to join the scheme, remainin the 31 March 31 March
scheme or make their own personalarrangements outside 2019 2020
the scheme. 29 Number of employers with 30
Organisations participating in the City of Westminster EE ST
Pension Fund include:
o Scheduled bodies, which are local authorities 4,371 Active members 3,981
and similar bodies whose staff are 5921 Pensioners receiving benefits 6,122
automatically entitled to be members of the )
6,201 Deferred Pensioners 6,700
Fund
16,493 Total 16,803

o Admitted bodies, which are other
organisations that participate in the Fund
under an admissionagreement between the
Fund and therelevant organisation. Admitted
bodiesincludevoluntary, charitable and similar
bodies or private contractors undertaking a
local authority function following outsourcing
to the private sector.
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Note 2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The Statement of Accounts summarise the Fund’s
transactionsfor2018/19and its position atyear end
as at31stMarch 2019. Theaccounts have been
prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom
2018/19 (the Code) issued by the Chartered Institute
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) which is
based upon International Financial Reporting

Standards (IFRS) as amended forthe UK public sector.

The accounts summarise the transactionsof the Fund
and reporton the net assets available to pay pension
benefits.

The accounts donot take account of obligations to
pay pensions and benefits which fall due after the end
of the financial year, nor do they take into account
the actuarial present value of promisedretirement
benefits. The Code gives administering authorities the
option to disclose thisinformationin the Net Asset
Statement, in the notes to theaccounts or by
appendingan actuarial report preparedfor this
purpose. The Authority has opted to disclose this
informationin an accompanying reportto the
accounts, which isdisclosed in Note 18. The Pension
Fund Accounts have been preparedon a going
concern basis.
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Note 3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

FUND ACCOUNT - REVENUE
RECOGNITION

a) Contribution Income

Normal contributions, both from the members and
from the employer, areaccounted foron an accruals
basis atthe percentage rate recommended by the
actuaryinthepayroll period to which they relate.

Employer deficit funding contributions are accounted
for onthe due dates on which they aredue under the
schedule of contributions set by the actuary oron
receiptif earlier than thedue date.

Employer’s augmentationand pensionstrain
contributions areaccounted forin the period in which
the liability arises. Any amount duein year but unpaid
is classed as a current financial asset.

b) Transfers to and from Other Schemes

Transfer values represent the amounts received and
paid during theyear for members who have either
joined or leftthe Fund duringthefinancial year and
arecalculated in accordance with the LGPS
Regulations. Individual transfers in/out are accounted
for when received/paid, which is normallywhen the
member liability is accepted ordischarged. Bulk
(group) transfers areaccountedfor on an accruals
basisin accordance with the terms of the transfer
agreement.

c) Investmentincome

Investmentincomeis reported gross of withholding
taxes which areaccrued in line with the associated
investmentincome. Investmentincome arising from
the underlying investments of the Pooled Investment
Vehicles is either reinvested within the Pooled
Investment Vehicles and reflected in the unit price or
taken as a cash dividend to support the Fund’s
outgoing cash flow requirements.

Interestincomeisrecognisedin thefund accountas it
accrues, using the effective interest rate of the
financial instrument as at the date of acquisitionor
origination.

Distributions from pooled funds are recognised at the
date of issue. Any amount notreceived by the end of
the reporting periodis recognisedas a current
financial assetin the net asset statement.

Where the amount of anincome distributionhas not
been received from an investment manager by the
balance sheet date, an estimate based upon the
market value of their mandate attheend of the year
isused.

Changesin the net market value of investments are
recognised asincomeand comprise all realised and
unrealised profits and losses during the year.

FUND ACCOUNT - EXPENSE ITEMS

d) Benefits Payable

Pensions and lump-sum benefits payableinclude all
amounts known to be due as at the end of the
financial year. Lump sums are accountedfor in the
period in whichthe member becomes a pensioner.
Any amounts duebutunpaidaredisclosed in the net
assets statement as currentliabilities.

e) Taxation

The Fundis an exemptapproved fund under section
1(1) of Schedule 36 of the Finance Act 2004 and as
such is exempt from UK income tax on interest
received and from capital gains tax on the proceeds of
investments sold. As the Council is the administering
authority for the Fund, VAT input taxis recoverable
onall Fund activities including expenditure on
investment expenses. Where tax can bereclaimed,
investmentincomein theaccountsis showngrossof
UK tax. Income from overseas investments suffers
withholdingtaxin the country of origin, unless
exemption is permitted. Irrecoverable taxis
accounted forasafund expenseasitarises.

f) VSP, MSP and lifetime allowance

Members are entitled to requestthe Pension Fund
pays their tax liabilities due in respect of annual
allowance and life time allowance in exchange for a
reductionin pension.

Wherethe Fund paysmember tax liabilities direct to
HMRCit istreated as an expensein the yearin which
the paymentoccurs

[y
0
®
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
o
)
o
c
2
pur
wv
N
o
=
©
~
N
(=]
N
o
[ ]
[%2]
cC
B
)
—
m
<
m
=4
=
>
X
=<
>
)
O
o
c
=
=
[%2]
>
=4
o
=
(@]
=
m
(%2}




Note 3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

g) Management Expenses

Pension fund management expenses are accounted
for in accordance with the CIPFA guidance Accounting
forlocal Government Pension Scheme Management
Costs 2016.

All administrative expenses are accountedfor on an
accruals basis. All staff costs of the pension
administrationteam are charged direct to the Fund.
Associated management, accommodationand other
overheads are apportioned to this activity and
charged as expenses to the Fund.

Oversightand governance expenses are accounted
for on an accruals basis. All staff costs associated with
governanceandoversightare chargedto the Fund.
Associated management, accommodationand other
overheads are apportioned to this activity and
charged as expenses to the Fund.

The cost of obtaining investment advice from the
external advisorisincludedin oversightand
governance costs.

Allinvestment management expenses are accounted
for onan accruals basis. The Committee has
appointed external investment managers to manage
the investments of the Fund. Managersare paid a fee
based on the marketvalue of theinvestments they
manage and/or afee based on performance.

Where an investment manager’s fee note has not
been received by the balance sheet date, an estimate
based upon the market value of the mandate as at
the end of theyear is used for inclusionin the fund
account.

NET ASSETS STATEMENT

h) Financial Assets

Financial assets areincluded in the net assets
statement on afair value basis as at the reporting
date. Afinancial assetis recognisedin the net asset
statement on the date the Fund becomes party to the
contractual acquisition of the asset. From this date
any gains or losses arising from changes in the value
of the assetare recognisedin the Fund account.

The values of investments as shown in the net asset
statement have been determined at fair valuein
accordance with the requirements of the Code and
IFRS 13 (see Note 14).

i) Derivatives

The Fund uses derivative financialinstruments to
manage its exposure to specificrisks arising fromits
investment activities. The Fund does not hold
derivatives for speculative purposes.

j) Foreign Currency Transactions

Dividends, interestand purchases and sales of
investments in foreign currencies have been
accounted forat the spot market rates at the date of
the transaction. End of year spot market exchange
rates are used to value cash balances held in foreign
currency bankaccounts, market values of overseas
investments and purchases andsales outstanding at
the end of the reporting period.

k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalentscomprise cash in handand
deposits with financial institutions which are
repayable on demand without penalty.

1) Financial Liabilities

The Fund recognises financial liabilities at fair value as
at thereporting date. Afinancial liabilityis recognised
in the netassets statementon the datethe Fund
becomes party to theliability. Fromthis dateany
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the liability are recognised by the Fund.

m) Actuarial presentvalue of promised retirement
benefits

The actuarial present value of promisedretirement
benefits should be disclosed and based on the
requirements of IAS 19 Post-Employment Benefits
and relevant actuarialstandards. As permitted under
the Code, thefinancial statementsinclude a note
disclosing the actuarial present value of retirement
benefits (see Note 17).

n) Additional Voluntary Contributions

AVCsare notincludedin theaccountsin accordance
with Regulation 4(1)(b) of the Local Government
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of
Funds) Regulations 2016 but aredisclosedas a note
only (Note 20).

o) Recharges from the General Fund

The LGPS (Managementand Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016 permit the Council to charge
administrationcosts to the Fund. A proportion of the
relevant Councilcosts have been charged to the Fund
on the basis of actual time spent on Pension Fund
business. Costsincurred in the administration and
the oversightand governance of the Fund are set out
separately in Note 21.
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Note 4 Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting

Policies

In applying the accounting policies set outin Note 3
above, the Council has had to make certaincritical
judgements about complextransactions or those
involving uncertainty about future events.

PENSION FUND LIABILITY

The Pension Fundliability is calculated triennially by
the appointed actuarywith annual updatesin the
intervening years. The methodology used in the
intervening years followsgenerally agreed guidelines
andisinaccordance with IAS 19. These assumptions
aresummarised in Note 16. The estimates are
sensitiveto changesin the underlying assumptions
underpinning the valuations.

COVID-19 IMPACT

The ongoingimpact of the Covid-19 pandemichas
created uncertainty surroundingilliquid asset values.
Assuch, the PensionFund property and
infrastructure allocations as at 31 March 2020 are
difficultto value according to preferred accounting
policy. Professional Valuers have not been actively
valuing many similar sized assets in the market due
to the currentlockdown environment, as such values
have been rolledover from Period 11 with an
adjustmentand may be inaccurateto the true 31
March position.
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Note 5 Assumptions Made About the Future and Other
Major Sources of Uncertainty

Preparing financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect theamounts reportedfor
assets and liabilities at the year-end and the
amounts reported forincome and expenditure
duringtheyear. Estimates and assumptions are
made takinginto account historical experience,
currenttrendsand other relevantfactors. However,
the nature of estimation means thatthe actual
results could differ fromthe assumptions and
estimates.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENTS LEVEL 3

The Pension Fundcontainsinvestments in unitised
pooled property funds that are classified within the
financial statements as level 3 investments (as
detailed in note 13). These funds arevalued

according to non-exchange based market valuations.

As aresult of this, the final realised value of those
pooled units may differ slightly from the valuations
resented in theaccounts.

Item

Actuarial present value of promised
retirement benefits

Uncertainties

Estimation of the net liability to pay
pensions depends onanumber of
complexjudgments relating to the
discountrates used, therateat
which salaries are projected to
increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected
returns on pensionfundassets. A
firm of consulting actuaries is
engaged to provide the fund with
expertadvice aboutthe
assumptions to be applied.

Effect if actual results differ from
assumptions
The effects on the net pension
liability of changes in assumptions
can bemeasured. For instance, a
0.1%increasein thediscountrate
assumption wouldresultina
decreasein the pension liability of
£35.09m.A0.1%increasein
assumed earnings wouldincrease
the value of liabilities by
approximately £2.24m and a year
increasein life expectancy would
increasetheliability by about
£72.73m.
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Note 6 Contributions Receivable

Employees’ contributions are calculated on a sliding scale based ona percentage of their gross pay. The Council, scheduledand admitted bodies are required to make
contributions determined by the Fund’sactuary to maintainthe solvency of the Fund. The table below shows a breakdown of the total amount of employers’ and employees’
contributions.

BY AUTHORITY BY TYPE

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
(45,265)  Administering Authority (56,968) (8,982) Employees' normal contributions (10,105)

(5,146) Scheduled bodies (3,087) Employers’ contributions:
(3,934) Admitted bodies (4,294) (20,025)  Normal contributions (21,634)
(54,345) Total (64,349) (24,743)  Deficit recovery contributions (31,820)
(595)  Augmentation contributions (790)
(54,345) Total (64,349)

=
©
N
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
o
o
o
c
2
pur
»
N
=]
=
©

S
N
o
]
o
.
[%2]
c
B
)
—
m
<
m
=
=
>
X
=<
>
@)
o)
o
c
=
=
[%2]
>
=
o
=
o
=
m
w




Note 7 Benefits Payable

The table below shows a breakdown of the total amount of benefits payable by category.

BY TYPE BY AUTHORITY
2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
45,610 Pensions 47,628 41,837  Administering Authority 42,709
6,839 Commutation and lump sum retirement benefits 6,686 2,172 Scheduled Bodies 2,481
625  Lump sum death benefits 406 9,065 Admitted Bodies 9,530
53,074 Total 54,720 53,074 Total 54,720
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Note 8 Management Expenses

The table below shows a breakdown of the Investment management expenses are further analysed below in line with the CIPFA Guidance on Accountingfor
management expenses incurredduring the year. Management Costs in the LGPS.

2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
546  Administration Expenses 750 4572  Management fees 4,778
437  Oversight and Governance 422 - Performance fees 85
4,840 Investment Management Expenses 5,662 38  Custody fees 31
5,823 Total 6,834 230  Transaction costs 768
4,840 Total 5,662
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Note 9 InvestmentIncome

The table below shows a breakdown of theinvestmentincome forthe year:

2018/19 2019/20
£'000 £'000
210  Income from bonds -
9,653  Pooled investments - unit trust and other managed funds 13,856
2,240  Pooled property investments 2,070

- Infrastructure Income 182

91 Interest and cash deposits 151
12,194 Total before taxes 16,259
12,194 Total 16,259
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Note 10 Investment Management Arrangements

As at 31 March 2020, theinvestment portfoliois Northern Trustacts as the Fund’s global custodian. They are responsible for safe custody and settlement of all
managed by eight external managers: investment transactions and collectionof income. The bank accountforthe Fund is held with Lioyds Bank.
o UK property portfoliosare split between The marketvalue and proportion of investments managed by eachfund manager at 31 March 2020 was as follows:
Hermes Investment Managers and Standard
Life: 31 March 2019 % Fund Manager Mandate 31 March 2020 %
Market Value Market Value
o Fixedincome mandates are managed by CQS
(Multi Asset Credit, via the London CIV), £'000 £'000 2
Insight (Bonds) and Pantheon (Infrastructure); Investments merged by the London CIV asset pool: 2
>
. . . e 0, _ H H B . 0, 2
o  Equity portfolios are split between Baillie 292,964 208%  London LGPS CIV Ltd - Majedie UK Equity (Active) 3 0.0% s
Gifford (active global, managed by the London 150 0.0% London CIV UK Equity (Passive) 150 0.0% 2
>
CIV), Legal and General Investment 293,114 20.8% UK Equity 153 0.0% g
Management (passive global)and Longview c
. . 283,978 20.2%  London LGPS CIV Ltd - Baillie Gifford Global Equity (Active) 276,397 20.9% 5
Partners (active global). During the year, the a
Fund transitioned their active UK equity 325,643 231% LGIM World Equity (Passive) 523,071 39.6% §
holdings fromMajedie Investment Managers 609,621 43.3% Global Equity 799,468 60.5% E
into the Legal and General Global Passive. 8
91,629 6.5% London LGPS CIV Ltd - CQS Multi Asset Credit 78,765 6.0% ]
wv
i i c
All managers havediscretionto buy and sell 91,629 6.5% FixedIncome 78,765 6.0% S
investments within the constraints set by the g
Committee and their respectivelnvestment 994,364 70.6% Total pooled Sub-Total 878,386 66.5% 5
=
Management Agreements. Each manager has been Investments managed outside of the London CIV asset pool: z
=
appointed with clear strategic benchmarks which 70,003 50% Longview Global Equity {Active) 55,353 42% E
place maximum accountability for performance ) @)
. . 70,003 5.0% Global Equity 55,353 4.2% S
againstthatbenchmark ontheinvestment manager. =
) 198,690 14.2% Insight Buy and Maintain Bond Fund Bonds 216,088 16.4% JZ>
The Fund becamea shareholder in the London LGPS S
- 198,690 14.2% Bond 216,088 16.4% =
CIV Ltd (the organisation setup to run pooled LGPS o bonds S
investmentsin London)in 2015and holds £150,000 65,247 46% Hermes Property 61,478 4.7% o
of regulatory capital in the form of unlisted UK 64,709 46%  Standard Life Property 68,592 5.2%

equity shares.
129,956 9.2% Property 130,070 9.9%




Note 10 Investment Management Arrangements (continued)

31 March 2019 % Fund Manager Mandate 31 March 2020 %
Market Value Market Value
£'000 £'000

14,403 1.0% Pantheon Global Infrastructure Infrastructure 20,639 1.6%

14,403 1.0% FixedIncome 20,639 1.6%

413,052 29.3% Total outside pool Sub-total 422,150 32.0%

944 0.1%  Cash deposits 19,204 1.4%

1,408,360 100% Totalinvestments at 31 March 1,319,740 100%
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Note 11 Reconciliationin Movementin Investments

2018/19 Market value 1 April 2018 Purchases during the year Sales during the year and Change in market value during Market value 31 March
and derivative payments derivative receipts the year 2019
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds 183,879 - (183,658) (221) -
=
Equities 150 - - - 150 3
Pooled investments 1,008,609 287,433 (101,278) 66,098 1,260,862 12>
2
Pooled property investments 120,667 50 (309) 6,615 127,023 ;C>
2
Infrastructure - 14,403 - - 14,403 2
(@]
Derivatives: =
a
Futures 109 129 (216) (22) - N
=2
Forward foreign exchange (1) 272 (443) 172 - g
(=]
N
Total 1,313,413 302,287 (285,904) 72,642 1,402,438 o
wv
Cash deposits 10,321 190 5,802 %
Amounts receivable for sales of investments 13,218 - - %
=
Investment income due 2,785 = 120 =
X
=<
Spot FX contracts 5 7 - g
(@]
Amounts payable for purchases of investments (9,663) 45 - g
5
wv
Net investment assets 1,330,079 72,884 1,408,360 JZ>
o
=
o
=
m
[%2]




Note 11 Reconciliation in Movement in Investments (continued)

2019/20 Market value 1 April 2019 Purchases during the year Sales during the year and Change in market value Market value 31 March
and derivative payments derivative receipts during the year 2020
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bonds - - - - -
Equities 150 - - - 150
Pooled investments 1,260,862 20,035 (10,404) (120,669) 1,149,824
Pooled property investments 127,023 84 (665) 3,537 129,979
Infrastructure 14,403 9,243 (5,673) 2,650 20,623
Derivatives: 14,403
Futures - - - - -
Forward foreign exchange - - - - -
Total 1,402,438 29,362 (16,742) (114,482) 1,300,576
Cash deposits 5,802 (367) 19,045
Amounts receivable for sales of investments - - -
Investment income due 120 = 119
Spot FX contracts - (10) -
Amounts payable for purchases of investments - - -
Net investment assets 1,408,360 (114,859) 1,319,740

Purchases andsales of derivatives are recognised in Note 11 above as follows:

e Forward currency contracts — forward currency contracts settled during the period are reported on a gross basis as gross receipts and payments;

e Futures—on closeoutor expiryofthefutures contract the variation margin balances held in respect of unrealised gains or losses ar e recognised as cash receipts or

payments, depending on whether thereis a gain or loss.
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Note 12 Investments Exceeding 5% of Net Assets

The table below shows the Fund’s investmentswhich
exceed 5% of net assets. These areall pooled 31 March 2019 31 March 2020
investmentvehicles, whichare made up of underlying

investments, each of which represent substantially less Market Value Holding Market Value Holding
than 5%. £'000 % £'000 %
292,609 20.8% London LGPS CIV Ltd - Majedie - 0.0%
325,643 231% LGIM 523,071 39.6%
282,477 20.1% London LGPS CIV Ltd - Baillie Gifford 276,397 20.9%
70,003 50% Longview 55,353 4.2%
198,500 14.1% Insight Buy and Maintain Bond Fund 216,088 16.4%
91,629 6.5% London LGPS CIV Ltd - CQS 78,765 6.0%
- - Aberdeen Standard 68,592 5.2%
1,260,861 89.6% Total Top Holdings 1,218,266 92.3%
1,408,360 Total Value of Investments 1,319,740
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Note 13a Fair Value — Basis of Valuation

The basis of the valuation of each classof investment asset is set out below. There has been no changein the valuationtech niques used during the year. All assets have been
valued using fair value techniques based onthe characteristics of each instrument, with the overall objective of maximising the use of market-basedinformation.

Description of asset

Valuation
hierarchy 18/19

Valuation
hierarchy 19/20

Basis of valuation

Observable and
unobservable inputs

Key sensitivities
affecting the
valuations provided

and fair value.

statements are prepared in
accordance with ECVA
guidelines

Pooled Investments - Equity Funds UK Level 2 Level 2 The NAV for each share class is calculated Evaluated price feeds Not required
and Overseas Managed Funds based on the market value of the underlying
equity assets.
Quoted UK and Overseas Bonds Level 2 Level 2 Fixed income securities are priced based on Evaluated price feeds Not required
evaluated prices provided by independent
pricing services.
Pooled Long Lease Property Fund Level 2 Level 2 The Standard Life Long Lease Property Fundis  In house evaluation of Not required
priced on a Single Swinging Price. market data
Pooled Investments — Property Funds  Level 3 Level 3 Closing bid price where bid and offer prices Adjusted for net capital Estimated acquisition
are published. current assets and disposal costs
Pooled Investments — Multi Asset Level 2 Level 2 Fixed income securities are priced based on Evaluated price feeds Not required
Credit evaluated prices provided by independent
pricing services.
Pooled Investments - Infrastructure Level 3 Level 3 Valued by Fund Managers at the lower of cost  Manager valuation Upward valuations are

only considered when
there is validation of the
investment objectives
and such progress can
be demonstrated
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Note 13a Fair Value — Basis of Valuation (continued)

SENSITIVITY OF ASSETS VALUED AT LEVEL 3

Having analysed historical data and current market trends, and consulted with independent investment advisors, the fund has d etermined that the valuation methods described
abovearelikely to be accurate to within the following ranges, and has set out below the consequent potential impact on the closing value of investments held at 31 March 2020.

Description of asset Assessed Valuation Range (+/-) Value at 31 March Value on increase Value on decrease
2020
£'000 £'000 £7000
Pooled investments - Property funds 1.3% 61,388 62,186 60,590
Pooled investments — Infrastructure* 12.2% 20,623 23,139 18,107
Total 82,011 85,325 78,697

*Pantheon have confirmed due to the valuationassumptionsused and materialuncertainty during the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, the true market value could be as much as
12.2% greater or lesser than reflected in the statement of accounts

As at March 2019:

Description of asset Assessed Valuation Range (+/-) Value at 31 March Value on increase Value on decrease
2019
£000 £000 £000
Pooled investments - Property funds 3% 62,315 64,184 60,445
Total 62,315 64,184 60,445
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Note 13b Valuation of Financial Instruments Carried at

Fair Value

The valuation of financial instruments has been
classified into threelevels, according to the quality
and reliability of information used to determine fair
values.

Level 1 — wherefair values are derived from
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (quoted equities, quoted
fixed securities, quoted indexlinked securities and
unittrusts). Listed investments are shown at bid
prices. Thebid valueis based on the market
guotation of therelevant stockexchange.

Level 2 - where market prices are not available, for
example, wherean instrumentis traded in a market
thatis not consideredto be active or where
valuation techniques are used to determine fair
valueand wherethesetechniques useinputs that
are based significantlyon observable market data.

Level 3 —whereatleastoneinputthatcould havea
significant effect on theinstrument’s valuationis not
based on observable market data. Suchinstruments
would include unquoted equity investments and
hedge fund of funds, neither of whichthe Fund
currentlyinvestsin.

The following table provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabilities of the Fund groupedinto the level at
which fair valueis observable.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Quoted Using With Significant Quoted Using Observable With Significant
Market Observable Unobservable Market Inputs Unobservable
Price Inputs Inputs Price Level 2 Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Financial Assets
- 1,325,571 76,868  Financial assets at fair value - 1,218,415 82,161
through profit and loss
Financial Liabilities
R R - Financial liabilities at fair value - - -
through profit and loss
- 1,325,571 76,868 - 1,218,415 82,161
1,402,438 Total 1,300,576
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Note 13c Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements
Within Level 3

2019/20 Opening balance Transfersinto  Transfers out of Purchases Sales Unrealised Realised Closing balance
Level 3 Level 3 gains/losses gains/losses

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equity 150 - - - - - - 150

Pooled investments - property funds 62,315 - - - - - (927) 61,388

Pooled investments - Infrastructure 14,403 - - 9,243 (5,673) - 2,650 20,623

Total 76,868 - - 9,243 (5,673) - 1,723 82,161

As at March 2019:

2018/19 Opening balance Transfersinto  Transfers out of Purchases Sales Unrealised Realised Closing balance
Level 3 Level 3 gains/losses gains/losses

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Equity 150 - - - - - - 150

Pooled investments - property funds 60,193 - - - - 2,122 - 62,315

Pooled investments - Infrastructure - - - 14,403 - - - 14,403

Total 60,343 - - 14,403 - 2,122 - 76,868
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Note 14a Classification of Financial Instruments

The following table shows the classification of the Fund’s financial instruments and also shows the split by UK and overseas.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020

Fair value through Financial assets at Financial liabilities at Fair value through Financial assets at Financial liabilities at
profit and loss amortised cost amortised cost profit and loss amortised cost amortised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Assets

Pooled funds - investment vehicles

992,509 UK Managed Funds Other 878,383
127,023 UK Unit Trusts Property 129,980
268,503 Overseas Managed 271,591

14,403 Infrastructure 20,623

Derivative Contracts
Futures

Forward Foreign Exchange

7,397 Cash Balances (held directly by Fund) 807
120 Other Investment Balances 119
5,802 Cash Deposits 19,044
3,875 Debtors 3,833
1,402,438 17,194 - 1,300,577 23,803 -
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Note 14a Classification of Financial Instruments (continued)

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Fair value through profit Financial assets at Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit Financial assets at Financial liabilities at
and loss amortised cost amortised cost and loss amortised cost amortised cost
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Financial Liabilities
Derivative Contracts
- - - Futures - - -

- - - Forward Foreign Exchange - - -

- - - Other Investment Balances - - -

- - (745) Creditors - - (209)

- - (745) - - (209)

1,402,438 17,194 (745) Total 1,300,577 23,803 (209)
1,418,887 1,324,171
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Note 14b Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

This table summarises the net gains and losses on
financial instruments classified by type of
instrument.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000
Financial Assets

72,642  Designated at fair value through profit and loss (114,482)

192  Financial assets atamortised cost (367)

72,834 (114,849)
Financial Liabilities

51  Financial liabilities at amortised cost (10)

51 (10)

72,883 Total (114,859)

The authority has notenteredinto any financial guarantees that are requiredto be accounted foras financial

instruments.
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Note 15 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from
Financial Instruments

RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund’s primary long-termrisk is that its assets
will fall short of its liabilities (i.e. promised benefits
payableto members). Thereforetheaim of
investment risk managementis to minimise the risk
of an overall reduction in thevalue of the Fund and
to maximise the opportunity forgains across the
wholefund portfolio. The Fund achieves this
through asset diversificationto reduce exposure to
marketand creditrisk to an acceptable level. In
addition, the Fund manages its liquidity risk to
ensurethereis sufficient liquidity to meet the
Fund’s forecast cash flows.

Responsibilityfor the Fund’s risk-management
strategy rests with the Committee. Risk
management policies are established thataim to
identify and analyse theinvestmentrisks faced by
the Fund and theseareregularlyreviewedin the
light of changing marketand other conditions.

a) Market Risk

Marketriskis therisk of loss emanating from
general market fluctuations in equityand
commodity prices, interest and foreign exchange
ratesand credit spreads. The Fund is exposed to
market risk across all its investment activities. In
general, excessive volatility in market riskis
managed through the diversification of the portfolio
in terms of asset class, geographical andindustry
sectors and individual securities. To mitigate
marketrisk, the Committee and its investment
advisors undertake regular monitoring of market
conditions and benchmarkanalysis.

Price Risk

Pricerisk represents therisk thatthevalueofa
financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changesin market prices (other than those arising
frominterestraterisk or foreignexchangerisk),
whether those changes are caused byfactors
specific to theindividual instrument or itsissuer or
factors affecting all such instruments in the market.

The Fund is exposed to share and derivative price
risk. This arises from investments held by the Fund
for which thefuture priceis uncertain. All securities
representa risk of loss of capital. The maximum risk
resulting from financial instruments (with the
exception of derivatives wheretherisk is currency
related) is determined by the fair value of the
financial instruments. The Fund’s investment
managers aim to mitigate this price risk through
diversificationand the selection of securities and
other financial instruments.

The following table demonstrates the changein the
net assets available to pay benefits if the market
price had increased or decreased by 10%. The
analysis excludes cash, debtors, creditors, other
investment balances and forward foreign exchange,
as thesefinancial instruments are not subject to
pricerisk.

Assets exposed to
price risk

Value on 10%
price decrease

Value £bn Value on 10%
price increase

As at 31 March 2019

£'000 £'000 £'000
1,408,360 1,549,196 1,267,524

As at 31 March 2020

1,319,740 1,451,714 1,187,766
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Note 15 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising From Financial Instruments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk Currency Risk

The Fund investsin financialassets for the primary purpose of obtaining areturn onits investments. Fixed interest Currencyrisk represents the risk that the fair value of
securities and cash are subject to interest rate risks, whichrepresent the risk that the fair value or future cash flows future cash flows of a financial instrument will

of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marketinterest rates. The Committee and its fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
investmentadvisorsregularlymonitor the Fund’s interest rate risk exposure during the year. rates. The Fund is exposed to currencyrisk on

financial instruments thatare denominatedin any
currency otherthan Sterling. The Fund aims to
mitigate this risk through the use of hedging. The
Assets exposed to Average Value Value on 1% Value on 1% Committeerecognises thata

interest rate risk Duration increase decrease strengthening/weakening of the pound against the
various currencies in whichthe Fund holds

Fixed interest securities, cash and cash equivalents are exposed to interest raterisk. The table below demonstrates
the changein value of these assets had theinterest rate increased or decreased by 1%.

Years £'000 £'000 £'000 . .
investments would increase/decrease the net assets
Fixed Income - Global Bonds 8.16 198,690 182,477 214,903 availa ble to pay ben efitS.
Fixed Income - Global Multi Asset Credit 1.27 91,629 90,465 92,793

Overseas equities, fixed interest securities and

As at 31 March 2019 290,319 272,942 307,696 futures, cash in foreigncurrencies, forwardforeign
exchange contracts and some elements of the pooled
investment vehicles are exposed to currency risk. The

Assets exposed to Average Value Value on 1% Value on 1% following table demonstrates the changein value of
interest rate risk Duration increase decrease these assets had there beena 10%
o - . o strer?gthenmg/\{veakemng of the pound against
foreign currencies.
Fixed Income - Global Bonds 8.15 216,088 198,477 233,699
Fixed Income - Global Multi Asset Credit 1.86 78,765 77,300 80,230
As at 31 March 2020 294,853 275,776 313,930
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Note 15 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments (continued)

Assets exposed to Value Value on 10% Value on 10%
currency risk foreign exchange foreign exchange
rate increase rate decrease

£'000 £'000 £'000

As at 31 March 2019* 363,234 399,557 326,910
As at 31 March 2020 316,823 348,505 285,140

*Currency risk figures as at 31 March2019 have been restated due to the LGIM portfoliobeingincorrectly.

b) Credit Risk
Creditrisk represents theriskthat the counterparty to a transaction orafinancial instrument will fail to discharge
an obligation and cause the Fund to incurafinancial loss.

The marketvalues of investments generally reflect an assessment of credit in their pricing and consequently the
risk of lossisimplicitly providedfor in the carrying value of the Fund’s financial assets and liabilities. The selection
of high quality fund managers, counterparties, brokers andfinancial institutions minimises credit risk that may
occur throughthefailureto settle a transactionin a timely manner.

Thereis a risk that some admitted bodies may not honour their pension obligations with the result that any ensuing
deficit mightfall upon the Fund. To mitigate this risk, the Fund regularly monitors the state of its admitted bodies.

c) Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents therisk that the Fund will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall
due. The Committee monitors cash flows and takes
stepsto ensurethatthereare adequate cash
resources to meetits commitments.

The Fund hasimmediate access to its cash holdings.
The Fund defines liquid assets as assets that can be
converted to cash withinthree months, subject to
normal market conditions. Asat 31 March 2020,
liquid assets were £1,169m representing 89% of total
fund assets (£1,264m at 31 March 2019 representing
90% of the Fund at that date). The majority of these
investments can in fact beliquidated within a matter
of days.
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Note 16 Funding Arrangements

The LGPS Regulations require that a full actuarial
valuation of the Fund is carried out every threeyears.
The purpose of thisis to establish that the City of
Westminster Pension Fundis able to meetits
liabilities to past and present contributors and to
review the employer contributionrates.

The latest full triennial valuation of the Fund was
carried out by Barnett Waddingham, the Fund’s
actuary, asat31 March 2019in accordance with the
Funding Strategy Statement of the Fund and
Regulation 36 of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Administration) Regulations 2008. The
results were published in the triennial valuation
reportdated 31 March 2020, with the funding level
risingto 100%. This report details the fund
assumptions and employer contribution rates for the
threeyears following 2019/20. Thereportand
Funding Strategy Statement are both available on the
Council’s website.

The triennial valuation undertakenasat31 March
2016 covers the followingfinancialassumptions for
2019/20.The actuary’s smoothed market value of the
scheme’s assets at 31 March 2016 was £1,056.7m
and the Actuary assessed the present value of the
funded obligation at £1,320.8m. Thisindicates a net
liability of £264.1m, whichequates to a funding
position of 80% (2013:£297.3mand 74%).

The actuarial valuation, carried out using the
projected unitmethod, is based on economicand
statistical assumptions, the main ones being:

Future assumed returns at 2016 Assumed Risk
returns adjusted
% Weighting

%

Other Bonds 33 20
Equities 74 65
Property 59 15
Financial assumptions 2019 2016 2013
% % %
Discount rate - scheduled 4.8 51 59
bodies
Discount rate - admitted 33 45 49
bodies
RPI 36 33 35
CPI 26 24 2.7
Pension increases 26 24 2.7
Short-term pay increases n/a 24 10
Long-term pay increases 3.6 39 4.5

The 2016 valuation certified an aggregate employer
contributionrate of 33.9%of pensionable pay (2013:
29.8%). Thecontributionrateis set on the basis of
the cost of future benefit accrual, increasedto bring
the funding level backto 100% over a period of 22
years, as set outin the Funding Strategy Statement
(2013:25 years). Thecommon future service
contributionratefor the Fund was setat 16.9% of
pensionable pay (2013:13.3%).

The triennial valuation alsosets out the individual
contributionrate to be paid by each employerfrom 1
April 2017 depending on the demographicand
actuarial factors particular to each employer. Details
of each employer’s contribution rate are containedin
the Statement to the Rates and Adjustment
Certificatein thetriennial valuationreport.
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Note 17 Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement

Benefits

The table below shows the total net liability of the
Fundasat31 March 2020. Thefigures have been
prepared by Barnett Waddingham, the Fund’s
actuary, only forthe purposes of providing the
informationrequired bylAS26. In particular, they are
notrelevantfor calculations undertaken for funding
purposes or forother statutory purposes under UK
pension’s legislation.

In calculating the required numbers, the actuary
adopted methods and assumptions thatare
consistent with IAS19.

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000
(2,046,789)  Present Value of (1,860,231)
Promised
Retirement
Benefits
1,402,762  FairValue of 1,319,740
Scheme Assets
(bid value)
(644,027) Net Liability (540,491)

Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
compriseof £1,839m (2018/19: £2,003m)and
£21.4m(2018/19:£43.8m) in respect of vested
benefits and non-vested benefits respectivelyas at 31
March 2020.

ASSUMPTIONS

To assess thevalue of the Fund’s liabilities at 31
March 2020, the value of the Fund’s liabilities
calculated for the funding valuation as at 31 March
2016 have been rolledforward, usingfinancial
assumptions that comply with IAS19.

DEMOGRAPHIC ASSUMPTIONS

The demographic assumptions used are consistent
with those used for the most recent Fund valuation,
which was carried outasat31 March2016, hence
they aredifferent from those used for the 2019/20
statement of accounts. The post retirement mortality
tables adopted are the S3PAtables with a multiplier
of 110%, for males and 105% for females. These base
tables are then projected using the CMI2018 Model,
allowing for along-term rate of improvement of
1.25%p.a.

Assumed life expectancy fromage 65 is:

Life expectancy 31 March 2019 31 March 2020
from age 65
years
Retiring today Males 234 21.8
Females 248 244
Retiring in 20 Males 25.0 232
years
Females 26.6 25.8
FINANCIAL ASSUMPTIONS
The main financialassumptionsare:
31 March 2019 31 March 2020
% %
RPI increases 3.40 2.90
CPI Increases 2.40 1.90
Salaryincreases 3.90 2.90
Pension increases 2.40 1.90
Discount rate 2.40 2.35

N
B
N
>
2
2
c
>
-
>
o
o
o
c
2
pur
»
N
=]
=
©
S
N
o
]
o
.
[%2]
c
B
)
—
m
<
m
=
=
>
X
=<
>
@)
o)
o
c
=
=
[%2]
>
=
o
=
o
=
m
w




Note 18 Current Assets

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

£'000 £'000
Debtors:

1,893 Contributions due - employers 2,436

578 Contributions due - employees 776

1,425 Sundry debtors 621

7,397 Cash balances 807

11,293 Total 4,640

ANALYSIS OF DEBTORS

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

Note 19 Current Liabilities

31 March 2019

31 March 2020

£'000 £'000
(1,321)  Sundry creditors (846)
(1,321) Total (846)

£'000 £'000

28  Central Government Bodies -

718  Other entities and individuals 784

3,150  Administering Authority 3,049

3,806  Total 3,833
ANALYSIS OF CREDITORS

31 March 2019 31 March 2020

£'000 £'000

(576)  Central government bodies (637)

(140)  Other entities and individuals (209)

(605)  Administering Authority -

(1,321) Total (846)
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Note 20 Additional Voluntary Contributions

The Pension Fund’s Additional Voluntary
Contributions (AVC) providers are Aegon and Utmost
Life and Pensions. Thetable below shows information
aboutthese separately invested AVCs.

Market Value Market Value
31 March 2019 31 March 2020
£'000 £'000

895  Aegon 828

312  Utmost Life and Pensions* 214

1,207 Total 1,042

*Followingthe transfer during 2019/20, AVCs
previously held with Equitable Life are now managed
by Utmost Life and Pensions.

In accordance with Regulation 4(1)(b) of the Pension
Scheme (Managementand Investment of Funds)
Regulations 2016, the contributionspaid and the
assets of theseinvestments arenotincluded in the
Fund’s Accounts.

The AVC providerssecure benefits on a money
purchasebasis forthose members electing to pay
AVCs. Members of the AVC schemes each receive an
annual statement confirming the amounts held in
their accountand the movementsin theyear. The
Fund relies on individual contributors to check that
deductions areaccuratelyreflected in the statements
provided by the AVC provider.
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Note 21 Related Party Transactions

Fund is administered by Westminster City Council.
The Councilincurred costs of £0.535min the period
2019/20(2018/19:£0.424m) in relationto the
administration of the Fund and were reimbursed by
the Fund for the expenses. The Fund uses the same
Banking and Control Service provider as WCCand no
chargeis madein respect of this.

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
REMUNERATION

The key management personnelof the Fund arethe
Members of the Pension Fund Committee, the
Director of Finance and Resources, the Tri-Borough
Director of Pensionsand Treasury Management and
the Director of People Services. There were no costs
apportionedto the Pension Fund in respect of the
Director of Finance and Resources post for 2019/20.
Total remuneration payable to key management
personnel fromthe Pension Fund is set out below:

31 March 31 March
2019 2020
£'000 £'000

58  Short-term benefits 56
22 Post-employment benefits 253
80 Total 309
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Note 22 External Audit Costs

The external fee payable to the Fund’s external auditors Grant Thornton UK LLP was £16k(£16k in 2018/19).

31 March 31 March

2019 2020
£'000 £'000
16  External audit fees 16
16 Total 16

Note 23 Events After the Reporting Period

Management have reviewed and can confirm that there are no significant events occurring after the reporting period.

Note 24 Contractual Commitments

The Fund has committed $91.5m to the Pantheon Global Infrastructure Fund Ill. Of this commitment $65.87m was still outstandingat 31 March 2020.
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Glossary of Terms

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The rules and practices adopted by the Council that determine how transactions and
events arereflected in theaccounts.

ACCRUALS

Amountsincludedin theaccounts forincome or expenditurein relationto the
financial year but notreceivedor paid asat 31 March.

ACTUARIAL GAINS AND LOSSES

These arise where actual events have not coincided with the actuarialassumptions
made for the last valuations (known as experience gains andlosses) or the actuarial
assumptions have been changed.

AMORTISATION

A measure of the cost of economic benefits derived fromintangible fixed assets that
areconsumed during the period.

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The annual governance statement is a statutory document that explains the
processes and procedures in place to enablethe council to carry outits functions
effectively.

BALANCES (OR RESERVES)

These represent accumulated funds available to the Council. Some balances
(reserves) may be earmarked for specific purposes for funding future defined
initiatives or meeting identified risks or liabilities. There area number of unusable
reserves, which areset out for technical purposes. Itis not possible to utilise these
to provideservices.

BUSINESS RATES (NNDR/NDR)

Rates are payable on businesspremises based on their rateable value (last assessed
inthe 2017 Rating List by the Valuation Office Agency) and a nationalrate poundage
multiplier (50.4p/Ein 2018/19). Westminster acts as the “billing authority” for its
areaand under the current Localised Business Rates regime retains 64% of the net

yield frombusiness rates with the Greater London Authority receiving 36%. A system
of Tariffs and Top-ups as well as a Safety Net scheme operate within the Council’s
General Fund to further adjust the amount the Councilultimately retains.
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Payments for the acquisition, construction, enhancement or replacement of assets
such asland, buildings, roads, and computer equipment.

CAPITAL ADJUSTMENT ACCOUNT

Areserve setaside fromrevenueresources or capital receipts to fund capital
expenditure or therepayment of external loansand certain other capitalfinancing
transactions.

CAPITAL RECEIPTS

Incomereceived fromthe sale of land, buildings or equipment.

CENTRAL SUPPORT SERVICES

Supportprovided to front line services by administrative and professional officers,
includingfinancial, legal, people services, IT, property and general administrative
support.

CIPFA (CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND
ACCOUNTING)

CIPFAis the professional institute for accountants workingin the publicservices.
CIPFApublishes the Code.

COLLECTION FUND

Anaccountthat shows theincome due from NNDR and Council Tax payers andthe
sums paid to central governmentand to the precepting authorities.
COMMUNITY ASSETS

The class of Fixed Assets held by an authority in perpetuitythathaveno
determinable useful life and may haverestriction on their disposal, such as parks and
open spaces, historical buildings, works of art, etc.
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Glossary of Terms (continued)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT

A statement which details the total income received and expenditureincurred by the
Council during ayear in line with IFRS reportingas required by the Code.

CONTINGENT ASSET

An asset arising from past events, whereby its existence can only be confirmed by
oneor more uncertainfuture events not wholly withinthe control of the Council.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A contingent liability is either:

e apossibleobligation arising from a past event whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Council; or

e apresentobligationarising from pastevents whereitis not probablethatthere
will be an associated cost or theamount of the obligation cannot be accurately
measured.

CORPORATE AND DEMOCRATIC CORE

This comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically because
they are elected, multi-purpose organisations. The cost of these activities are thus
over and above those whichwouldbeincurred by a series of independent, single
purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services. Itincludes costs relating to
the corporate managementand democraticrepresentation.

COUNCIL TAX

Alocal taxon properties withinthe City Council, set by the charging (Westminster)
and precepting (GLA) authorities. Thelevel is determined by the revenue
expenditurerequirements foreach authority divided by the counciltaxbase for the
year.

COUNCIL TAX BASE

The amountcalculated foreach billing authority from which the grant entitlement of
its shareis derived. The number of properties in each band is multiplied by the

relevantband proportion in order to calculate the number of Band D equivalent
propertiesin the area. The calculation allows for exemptions, discounts, appeals and
a provision fornon-collection.

CREDITORS

Amounts owed by the Councilfor goods and services received but not paidfor as at
31 March.

CURRENT SERVICE COST

An estimate of the true economic cost of employing peoplein afinancial year. It
measures the full liability estimated to have been generated in theyear.

DEBTORS

Amounts owed to the Council forgoodsand services providedbut where the
associated income was not received as at 31 March.

DEFERRED CAPITAL INCOME

Deferred Capital Income comprises amounts derived from sales of assets which will
bereceived in instalments over agreed periods of time. They arise principally from
mortgages on sales of council houses, whichform the main part of mortgages under
loans for purchase andimprovement of property.

DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the
contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investments of
the scheme.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION SCHEME

A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employee pays regular
fixed contributionsas an amountor as a percentage of pay, and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to the employee service in the
currentand prior periods.
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Glossary of Terms (continued)

DEPRECIATION

A measure of the cost of the economic benefits of the tangible fixed assets
consumed duringthe period.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary
activities of the Council, which need to be disclosed separately byvirtue of their size
or incidenceto give a fair representationin the accounts.

EXPECTED RETURN ON ASSETS

For a defined benefit scheme, thisis a measure of thereturn on theinvestment
assets held by the plan for theyear. Itis notintended to reflect the actual realised
return by the plan, butalonger-term measure based on the value of assets at the
start of the year taking into account movements in assets during the year and an
expected return factor.

FINANCE LEASE

A lease that substantially transferstherisks and rewards of a fixed asset to the
lessee. With a Finance Lease, the present value of the lease payments would equate
to the fair value of the leased asset.

FIXED ASSETS

Assets thatyield benefit to the Council and the services it provides fora period of
morethan onevyear.

GENERAL FUND

The accountto which the cost of providing the Council Services is charged that are
paid for from Council Taxand Government Grants(excluding the Housing Revenue
Account).

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA)

A statutory account maintained separately from the General Fund forthe recording
ofincome and expenditure relating to the provision of councilhousing.

IMPAIRMENT

Areductioninthecarryingvalue of a fixed asset below its carrying value (due to
obsolescence, damage or an adverse change in the statutory environment).

INTEREST COST

For defined benefit pensionschemes the interest costis the presentvalue of trhe
liabilities during the year as a result of moving oneyear closer to being paid.

INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

A class of assets whose lifeis of indefinite length and whichare not usually capable
of being sold, such as highways and footpaths.

INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

‘Non-financial’ fixed assets that do not have physical substance but are identifiable
and are controlled by the Council through custody orlegal rights. Purchased
intangibles, such as software licences, are capitalised at cost whilst internally
developed intangibles are only capitalised where thereis a readily ascertainable
market value for them.

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) are a set of accounting standards
developed by an independent, not-for-profit organisation called the International
AccountingStandardsBoard (IASB)

INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC SECTOR ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
(IPSAS)

International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) are a set of accounting
standardsissued by the IPSAS Board for use by publicsector entities around the
world in the preparation of financial statements.

LEVIES

Payments madeto the London PensionsFund Authority, the Environment Agency
and the Lee Valley Regional Park Authority.
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Glossary of Terms (continued)

LONG TERM DEBTORS

These debtorsrepresent the capital incomestill to bereceived, forexample, from
the sale of an asset or the granting of a mortgage or aloan.

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION

The minimum amount that the Council must chargeto theincome and expenditure
statement to provide for the repayment of debt.

MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT

This financial statement presents the movement in usable and unusable reserves
(the Council’s total reserve balances).

NET BOOK VALUE

The amountat which fixed assets areincluded in the Balance Sheet, i.e. their
historical cost or currentvalue, less the cumulative amount provided for
depreciation.

NET REALISABLE VALUE

The amountat which an asset could be sold after the deduction of any direct selling
costs.

NON-DISTRIBUTED COSTS
Non-distributed costs are defined as comprising:

e retirement benefit costsincluding past service costs, settlements and
curtailments. To note, current service pensioncosts areincluded in the total
costs of services;

e the costsassociated with unused shares of IT facilities; and
e the costs of shares of other long-term unused but unrealisable assets.

NON-OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Fixed assets held by alocal authoritybut not directly occupied, used orconsumedin
the delivery of services. Examples of non-operational assets are investment

properties and assets thatare surplus to requirements, pending sale or
redevelopment.

OPERATING LEASE

A lease other than afinancelease. Thisis a method of financing assets which allows

the Council to use, but not own the asset and thereforeis not capital expenditure. A
third party purchases the asset on behalf of the Council, who then pays thelessor an
annual rental charge for the use of the asset.

OPERATIONAL ASSETS

Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local authority, in the
direct delivery of those services for whichit has either a statutory or discretionary
responsibility.

PAST SERVICE COST

A costarising from decisions taken in the current year but whose financial effect is
derived fromyears of service earned in earlieryears.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

These events, both favourable and unfavourable, occur between the Balance Sheet
date (31 March) and the date on whichthe statement of accounts are signed.

PRECEPTS

These are demands made upon the Collection Fund, by the Greater London
Authority for monies, which it requires to finance the services it provides.

PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT

A material adjustmentapplicableto prioryears arising from changes in accounting
policies or correction of fundamental errors.

PROJECTED UNIT METHOD - PENSION FUND VALUATION
An accrued benefits valuation method in whichthe scheme liabilities make
allowancefor projected earnings. An accrued benefits valuation methodisa
valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at the valuationdate relate to:
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Glossary of Terms (continued)

e the benefits for pensioners anddeferred pensioners (i.e. individuals whohave
ceased to be active members butare entitled to benefits payable at a later date)
and their dependents, allowing where appropriate for futureincreases, and

e the accrued benefits for membersin service on the valuation date.

PROVISIONS

A liability thatis of uncertaintiming or amount which is to be settled by transfer of
economic benefits.

PRUDENTIAL CODE

Since 1 April 2004, local authorities have been subject to a self-regulatory
“prudential system” of capital controls. This gives authorities the freedomto
determine how much of their capital investment they can affordto fund by
borrowing. The objectives of the code are to ensure that the local authority’s capital
investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable, with Councils being
required to set specific prudential indicators.

RELATED PARTIES

Two or more parties arerelated parties when atany time during the financial period:

e onepartyhasdirectorindirect control of the other party; or
e the partiesaresubjectto commoncontrol from the same source; or

e onepartyhasinfluence over thefinancialand operational policies of the other
party, to an extent that the other party might beinhibited from pursuingatall
times its own separate interests; or

e the parties, in entering atransaction, are subject to influence from the same
source, to such an extentthat one of the parties to the transaction has
subordinated its own separate interests.

Advicefrom CIPFAis thatrelated parties to a local authorityinclude Central
Government, bodies precepting or levying demands on the Council Tax, members
and chief officersof the Council and its pension fund.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Arelated party transactionis the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance
of services by, to, or for arelated party, irrespective of whether a chargeis made.
Examples of related party transactions include:

e the purchase, sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related parties;

e the provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans, irrespective
of any direct economic benefit to the pension fund;

e the provision of services to a related party, including the provision of pension
fund administrationservices; and

e transactionswithindividuals whoarerelated parties of an authority ora
pension fund, except those applicable to other membersof the community or
the pension fund, suchas Council Tax, rents and payments of benefits.

RESERVES

An amount set aside for a specific purposein one year and carried forward to meet
future obligations.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE

Day to day payments on therunning of Council services includingsalaries, wages,
contract payments, supplies and capital financing costs.

REVENUE SUPPORT GRANT

The main Government grant paid to local authorities. Itis intended to adjust for
differencesin needs between areas so that, if all local authorities were to spend at
the level which the Government assess that they need to spend, the Council Tax
would be the same across the whole country.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE FUNDED FROM CAPITAL UNDER
STATUTE (REFCUS)

Legislation in England and Wales allows some expenditure to be classified as capital
for funding purposes whenitdoes notresultin the expenditure beingcarried onthe
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Balance Sheet as a fixed asset. Examplesinclude works on property owned by other
parties, renovationgrants and capital grants to other organisations.

SERVICE CONCESSIONS

An arrangementinvolvingthe private sector constructing or upgrading assets used in
the provision of a public service and operating and maintaining those assets for a
specified period of time.

SOCIETY OF LOCAL AUTHORITY CHIEF EXECUTIVES (SOLACE)

Solace (Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers) is the
representative bodyfor senior strategic managers working in the publicsector.

SOCIETY OF LONDON TREASURERS

Representative body of section 151 Officers fromall 32 London Boroughs, the City of
London Corporationand the Greater London Authority Group.

THE CODE

The Codeincorporates guidancein line with IFRS, IPSAS and UK GAAP Accounting
Standards. It sets outthe proper accounting practice to be adopted forthe
Statement of Accounts to ensurethey ‘presentfairly’ the financial position of the
Council. The Code has statutorystatus via the provision of the Local Government Act
2003.

NOTE: values throughout these accounts are presented rounded to wholenumbers.
Totals in supporting tables and notes may not appear to cast, cross-cast, orexactly
match to the core statements orother tables due to rounding differences.

UK GAAP

UK GAAP is the Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in the UK (UK GAAP) is the
body of accounting standards and other guidance published by the UK's Financial
Reporting Council (FRC)
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Note References

Note Description Note Description
Notes to the Accounts Note 22b Financial Instruments - Income and Expense Gains and Losses
Note 1 Accounting Policies Note 22¢ Financial Instruments - Fairvalue of assets and liabilities
Note 2 Accounting standards issued but not yet adopted Note 23 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Note 3 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty Note 24 Nature and Extent of Risk
Note 4 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies Note 25 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing
Note 5 Other operating expenditure Note 26 Leases
N
Note 6 Financing and investment income and expenditure Note 27 Service Concessions E
Note 7 Taxation and non-specific grantincome Note 28 Debtors J§>
Note 8 Expenditure and funding analysis Note 29 Creditors g
Note 9 Section 75 Note 30 Provisions g
Note 10 Officers’ remuneration (including termination benefits and members’ allowances) Note 31 Other Long-Term Liabilities g
w
Note 11 External Audit Fees Note 32 Pension Schemes §
Note 12 Dedicated Schools Grant Note 32a Pension Schemes Accounted for as Defined Contribution Schemes §
Note 13 Grant Income Note 32b Defined Benefit Pension Schemes ?
Note 14 Trading Operations Note 33 Cash Flows from Operating Activities g
Note 15 Agency Services Note 34 Cash Flows from Investing Activities %
Note 16 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under regulations Note 35 Cash Flows from Financing Activities %
Note 17 Unusable Reserves Note 36 Related Party Transactions g
Note 18 Transfer to/from earmarked reserves Note 37 Contingent Liabilities §
Note 19a Capital Contractual Commitments Note 38 Contingent Assets
Note 19b Revaluations Note 39a Valuation of assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Note 19¢ Property, Plantand Equipment Note 39b Transfers between Levels 1 and 2
Note 20 Heritage Assets Note 39¢ Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within Level 3
Note 21 Investment Property Note 40 Events After the Reporting Period

Note 22a Financial Instruments - Analysed by type




Note References (continued)

Note Description Note Description
Group Accounts Explanatory Notes Note 8 Management Expenses

Note 1 Group Accounting Policies Note 9 Investment Income

Note 2 Group Property Plant and Equipment Note 10 Investment Management Arrangements

Note 3 Group Inventories Note 11 Reconciliation in Movement in Investment
Housing Revenue Account Explanatory Notes Note 12 Investments exceeding 5% of Net Assets

HRA 1 Housing Stock Note 13a Fair Value — Basis of Valuation

HRA 2 Housing Asset Valuation Notes Note 13b Valuation of Financial Instruments carried at Fair Value

HRA 3 Rent Arrears and Provision Note 13c Reconciliation of Fair Value Measurements within Level 3
Collection Fund Explanatory Notes Note 14a Classification of Financial Instruments

COLL 1 General Note 14b Net Gains and Losses on Financial Instruments

COLL 2 Council Tax Note 15 Nature and extent of risks arising from Financial Instruments

COLL 3 Business Rates Note 16 Funding Arrangements

COLL 4 Business Rates Supplements - Crossrail Note 17 Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits
Pension Fund Explanatory Notes Note 18 Current Assets

Note 1 Description of the City of Westminster Pension Fund Note 19 Current Liabilities

Note 2 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements Note 20 Additional Voluntary Contributions

Note 3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Note 21 Related Party Transactions

Note 4 Critical Judgements in applying Accounting Policies Note 22 External Audit Costs

Note 5 Assumptions made about the future and other major sources of uncertainty Note 23 Events after the reporting period

Note 6 Contributions  receivable Note 24 Contractual Commitments

Note 7

Benefits payable
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Contact Information

This document gives details of Westminster City Council’sAnnual Accounts
and is available on the Council’swebsite at westminster.gov.uk.

CONTACT FOR FURTHER INFORMATION:

Rikin Tailor

Head of Corporate Finance
Corporate Finance

64 Victoria Street

London

SWI1E6QP

Telephone: +44(0)7971026029
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